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Our Vision
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The Group strives to fortify its business portfolio by leveraging on the experience in
entertainment and tourist-related industries and strengthening its competitiveness by
exploring new opportunities in property investment business. We endeavor to create
long-term value for all of our stakeholders through the balanced and diversified business
portfolio, while adhering to a high standard of corporate governance.

REE BRI R B TR E RIS R L E AL - R BEAYREIRE L
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Group Structure

SEZRE

Success Universe
Group Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and a Hong Kong listed company)
(Stock Code: 00487)

EERIREBREL A

(RERZFME L BRAF]
K—E&E ETAA])
(A5 : 00487)

Travel
Business

e 2

Property
Investment
Business
MEREXER

Flagship
Investment
Project

EEREEE

Jade Travel Ltd.

Ponte 16 Integrated

(Incorporated in Canada Hong Kong C
with limited liability) Commercial Buildings
Jade Travel Ltd. EEEE
(RIS AL ML
ZBRAA])

asino-entertainment
Resort
TNHER A RS

JERAY
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Business Highlights
FBEWME

Revenue was approximately HK$1,147.4 million and
gross profit was approximately HK$30.3 million for
2019

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$74.2 million

Revenue of the travel business increased to
approximately HK$1,128.6 million due to strategic
collaborations with leading domestic and
international travel portals and the further
development on online presence

Revenue of the property investment business was
approximately HK$18.8 million

The Adjusted EBITDA* of Ponte 16, the Group's
flagship investment project, increased by
approximately 6% to approximately HK$377.5
million, with the average occupancy rate of Sofitel
Macau At Ponte 16 achieved over 90%

Adjusted EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from the bank
deposit)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Financial Highlights

IS E
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=+—HLEE
2019 2018 2017
“E-hE —T-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
BETT BETT AT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: BT EER
Revenue Wz
Travel g3 1,128,574 1,090,196 583,425
Property investment MERE 18,797 30,082 6,510
1,147,371 1,120,278 589,935
Share of results of associates JEIRE S AR EE 116,757 68,110 (9,879)
Profit for the year from RERFBELEEB 2
continuing operations RE Z i A 74,194 54,213 4,369
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: BRI EETE -
Loss for the year from REERIREEB 2
discontinued operation: REEZBAE
Lottery = - - (37,825)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF,(BE) 74,194 54,213 (33,456)
Profit/(loss) attributable to DT RRE
owners of the Company A (&) 74,194 54,464 (29,810)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF e MBI E
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2019 2018 2017
“E-hE T\ —T—+F
HKS$’'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
BETT BETr AT
Total assets BEMHAE 1,385,035 1,382,749 1,046,047
Total liabilities BEBE 240,776 314,628 48,191
Net assets EEEE 1,144,259 1,068,121 997,856
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

With our solid fundamentals and proactive business strategies, the
Group will continue our endeavor to overcome uncertain economic

headwinds ahead, and enhance the value of our business to ensure
sustained growth in future.

BRERE N ER AR RBRE - NEER Zi%it@ljjf\%ﬁi%
NAIFRRE B N - BEIEE AR SRS EIE
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SUCCESS
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Global economy maintained a modest growth in 2019,
despite the influence of key economic and political issues
like trade protectionism and Brexit. The economy of China
continues to grow at a steady rate on the back of
monetary and fiscal stimulus and makes crucial
contributions to the economic developments of Hong
Kong and Macau. On top of these positive market
sentiments, the global economic condition is expected to
be further benefited from the conclusion of the first phase
of the Sino-US trade deal in the beginning of 2020.

Nevertheless, Hong Kong’s economy has been weakened
by lingering local social incidents, while the outbreak of
the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) since late 2019 has even
brought a shock to the global economy and heavy
pressure on various business sectors, which inevitably
affected sectors related to hotel, tourism and retail in
Hong Kong. The business outlook in the near term is
highly uncertain, and the impact of the pandemic to the
world is yet to be fully reflected. However, governments
around the world are dedicating all necessary resources to
fight against the pandemic, we believe that the difficulties
will be overcome with concerted efforts from all countries.
Recovery of economic momentum may take time, but the
global economy will pick up again after the pandemic has
been brought under control.

FOUNDATION FOR SUSTAINABLE
SUCCESS

In the midst of the current economic turmoil, we will
continue to take great efforts to make timely adjustments
to our strategies and improve internal operational
efficiency. During the reporting year, Jade Travel Ltd. has
been moving forward in improving services and travel
products, while our flagship investment project — Ponte 16's
growth of revenue outperformed the market in accordance
with its strategic direction in 2019. These results reflected
our growing operating efficiency and solid growth in
business margins, which were part of our ultimate
objective to maximise shareholders’ value.

Chairman'’s Statement (Continued)

ER®E (&)

BHEENRR :

RARBRREZBEREFBARAR(AR
Al BREMBARGHE [ AEE])E
ze((EgFg)) REARABE=ZT
—HhFtT-A=+T—BLEFENFR-

—TNF - BEXEZIREIBRMER
B EBEABERETE - RIKEEIEE
MEFPRAIR R - PEIAMGEEE R R
BRSO S 85 MR RRERE R - I
BEBMAFINEERREEHARER -
BEEMSRAZHOE  — T -FFY)
RRERE-RRESHEERBIK
AR LIRS R 2%

R BENA S EHERETBLHE
BEEE . 9 - NETAHRTRE
SQROIERRER)IEE  FE—FE
ERREE  BEROTSESKIERS
EREBEE  IREMSESHEBITE
Al R TR E o XA SRR
TBTEERA - MRIEEH 2 EEKFZE IR
TEFIE o TiB - SEBATIEEA Y%
TEREEZE  BOAEESEERS
NT - THRENEBEMHEE - b
TE—REREAERER N BERREE
BN SR IR B EE o

FERIDERRERE

FEERMEERRT « ZMBEEETK
BhH ERAERE BARITEER
e MIMEFEN » Jade Travel Ltd. T
MAT - RS MIREE @ - mEBEEE
WEIEE — T/ EERENTS
FRCEBRE-_Z-NEFNXRB A&
LERERRBMOEE S TERA - %
HBABEERBEER  BRERAREREIE
BEABEENRKEZ-
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ER|E (&)

Positioning as a World Centre of Tourism and Leisure,
Macau is emphasising holistic tourism development, and
contributing to the Greater Bay Area’s vision as a first-class
region for trade and tourism. Chinese President
Xi Jinping’s visit to Macau in late 2019 represents a strong
support from the Chinese government and reassures the
importance of Macau in the region. We remain positive to
the long term development of the gaming and tourism
industries in Macau.

Ponte 16 has been transforming and marching forward
together with Macau over the past decade, and has gone
through numerous ups and downs with it. In February
2020, the Macau government suspended all casino
operations for 15 days to curb the spread of COVID-19,
Ponte 16 fully complied with all the preventive measures
laid out by the government, and temporarily closed its
hotel operation at the same time on a voluntary basis.
Although Macau’s gross gaming revenue (GGR) and
visitation will stay weak in the near term, we believe that it
is critical for the community to unite and work together to
overcome these challenges.

REMARKABLE RESILIENCE TO CHANGE

Border closure and other travel restrictions across the
globe have been significantly minimising public movement
and have undoubtedly impacted on tourist-related
industries. It is difficult to predict when these conditions
will improve, but Jade Travel Ltd. has well-established
business network, brand reputation and track record of
premium service that will help us through the current
challenges. Despite the unprecedented impact brought
from the pandemic, we believe that the growth of
international tourism will outpace the global economy in
the long term, signifying a strong and unwavering demand
for the industry.

Taking advantage of changes in the world’'s demand and
emerging internet technology, we will continue to work
with our business partners and explore new service and
travel products, transforming these opportunities into
sustainable developments.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

MRFE LA FURERFEF O - R 8K
EETNER  URAKNERERAAE
E—HESHEKERNBES BRIE
B FR - NFIRBFHRF - KRR
FIREIR RBUFR R 55 HERRFE
BEAEZEEZAER - WIAIENRFIBR RN
REFNREZERRITIEEEE -
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Although Hong Kong's property market was affected by
continuous social incidents and recorded softening price
and reductions in trading volume since June 2019, leasing
demand for office premises remained stable. The Group
remains resilient in the face of growing challenges and will
stay close with the commercial investment market in order
to manage its properties portfolio, generate a steady
recurring rental income stream and provide capital
appreciation potential.

EMPOWER TODAY FOR A BRIGHTER
TOMORROW

Uncertainties have posed challenges to current business,
we will continue to strengthen our business focus through
operational and institutional management. It is believed
that the consumer’s confidence will be rebuilt gradually,
while consumer spending and traffic will get back to
normal, and the economy is poised for continued
sustainable growth. The Group stays committed to achieve
sustainable developments and provide quality customer
service to maintain our competiveness. With our solid
fundamentals and proactive business strategies, we are in
good faith that our endeavors will be paid off for a long-
term development, ensuring sustained business growth in
the future.

APPRECIATION

I'would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business
partners for their continuous supports and trust, and
extend my heartiest thanks and appreciation to our fellow
directors for their guidance, to all staffs for their hard work
and contributions, during the challenging period. Looking
ahead, we will continue our endeavor to overcome the
future challenges and enhance the value of our business.

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2020

Chairman'’s Statement (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

OVERVIEW

Despite the impact of the Sino-US trade tensions and the
rising geo-political issues around the globe, the world'’s
economy maintained a modest growth in 2019 and
China’s gross domestic product (GDP) sustained a high
growth rate of 6.1% for the year. Concerns over the novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak, however, has led to a
quick turnaround in the market growth and has brought
challenges to the world economy. Nevertheless, the Group
remains positive to the longer term outlook for the
economy of China and Macau, and reiterates the
importance of prudent finance policy, together with the
balanced and diversified business portfolio, in overcoming
uncertain economic headwinds ahead.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the related
notes included in this annual report.

BmE

HAEMEPEXEHERREHROEBOR

RERBEARNEE 2EER
“E-NFNEFRFEE  MPERER
SELEBNEEAE) NFRERS
BRIZE6.1% ° A + FEEARKE (2019
BRASH)RBEEEENER  BY
MR RSRPE - WH IR ES Rk
B oo BEWMI - AEEHE P ERRPILE
MERAISFIEMAEE - WERFRIEM
BERERHEBBEZTb 2 EBHEENE
B - AR R R AT FE AR AR S o

DA 5 5 1 SR 4R SR L AR A MRS HR
= B ARBAN 5 — 0§53 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of the
Group was approximately HK$1,147.4 million, increased
by approximately 2% from approximately HK$1,120.3
million for the last corresponding year. Gross profit
decreased by approximately 12% to approximately
HK$30.3 million (2018: approximately HK$34.4 million).
The Group's shared profit of the associates relating to
Ponte 16, the flagship investment project of the Group
(the "Associates”), for the year of 2019 was approximately
HK$116.8 million, increased by approximately 71% from
approximately HK$68.1 million for the last year. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the reporting
year amounted to approximately HK$74.2 million (2018:
approximately HK$54.5 million), whilst earnings per share
was 1.51 HK cents (2018: earnings per share was 1.11 HK
cents).

The increase in profit was mainly attributable to the
increase in the Group’s share of profit of the Associates,
notwithstanding the decrease in fair value gain on the
Group's investment properties as well as the write-down
of carrying amount of the Group's stock of properties.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid in 2019 (2018: nil). The
directors of the Company do not recommend any payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: nil).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)
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Leveraging on its vast experience and extensive business networks, Jade Travel Ltd.
strives for business growth by offering quality customer service and diversified travel

products.

Jade Travel Ltd. ERHESEL R IEZNEHEL - REEETPRE NS TUIREE
mn o BORERBRE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

.

(RSN RRE ]

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Travel Business

The Group operates Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”), one
of the largest travel agencies in Canada, which has
dedicated segments targeting wholesale and retail markets
respectively to provide customers with satisfying and
professional services.

Jade Travel has been working closely with leading regional
and international online travel portals to keep track of the
latest market dynamics and to offer competitive and
comprehensive products, and the online ticketing
fulfilment services for travel agencies maintained a steady
growth in 2019. Responding to the changes in market
conditions, Jade Travel has been making continuous
efforts in exploration and improvement to develop its
online presence with technological upgrades and
marketing strategies.

EERENWE DN (&)
E 3 JC1)

$ %/
L}
FE T

N £ B & & #Jade Travel Ltd. ([Jade
Travel]) EMMEREAMKRITIHZ— * &
BHEMERTEMSENEES AR
FREBEREENRE °

Jade Travel —H H[& A fz BIFR 78 75 HY ik 12
WBURBEZAE UBMKZHTSH
B WIRHABFHORZAMZER 2
RARITHEEZBETEZERBE TR =
T-NFHFETER - BEMSEFERD
. Jade Travel —MBRER » S3kik
# o BB BRARMKE R & R RS
REM X -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

Jade Travel has been leveraging its vast experience and
extensive business networks to strive for business growth
by offering quality customer service and diversified travel
products. Jade Travel remains steadfast in providing more
personalised travel packages to alternative and exotic
destinations all around the world, from long haul excursion
to exceptional local tours. Through the international online
travel portals and the widely-used portals in China, Jade
Travel's leading products are able to reach all travellers in
the global travel market, including the growing markets in
Asia Pacific and China.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{ZRI AR A T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEBNWKR DN (E)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

Although Jade Travel has been responding to the market
dynamics swiftly in order to stay ahead of the competition,
trade disputes and geo-political tensions created pressures
on the tourism market worldwide as discretionary
spending in corporate and personal travels was
suppressed. For the reporting year, revenue of the travel
business segment increased to approximately HK$1,128.6
million, increased by approximately 4% for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: approximately HK$1,090.2
million). Loss in this segment amounted to approximately
HK$ 3.9 million (2018: profit of approximately HK$2.0
million including reversal of impairment loss on intangible
assets of approximately HK$3.2 million).
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Property
Inve_stment
Business

MRIRE X

SHG

i

YAY
AV

WA
AY
(N7AS

WV
’

The Group closely monitors the commercial property market and review available
options to enhance its investment portfolio, for steady rental income and capital

appreciation potential in a longer term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business

The overall property market in Hong Kong has been
clouded by local social incidents and economic
uncertainties since mid-2019, but the leasing demand for
office premises remained solid in prime locations during
the year. Capital value of Grade A office buildings in
Central and Admiralty remained stable, while the ongoing
decentralisation trend stimulated the rents of office
buildings in sub-prime locations.

During the reporting year, the Group remained resilient in
the face of challenges and enjoyed steady rental income
from its investment portfolio of commercial properties in
prime locations in Hong Kong. Despite the pressure on the
property market in the short term, the Group will closely
monitor the commercial property market and review
available options to enhance its investment portfolio for
steady rental income and capital appreciation potential in
a longer term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business (continued)
Revenue of the property investment business for the
reporting year amounted to approximately HK$18.8
million, representing a decrease of approximately 38% as
compared with approximately HK$30.1 million for the last
corresponding year. Segment profit decreased by
approximately 71% to approximately HK$11.0 million
(2018: approximately HK$37.7 million), which was mainly
due to the decrease in fair value gain on investment
properties to approximately HK$1.2 million (2018:
approximately HK$27.3 million) as well as write-down of
carrying amount of stock of properties amounting to
approximately HK$14.5 million (2018: nil), despite gain on
disposal of properties of approximately HK$18.4 million
(2018: approximately HK$6.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Investment Project —
Ponte 16
REIEB F7508
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The Group believes families and middle class will be the significant drive for Macau
tourism, and Ponte 16 will continue to stably develop its premium hospitality services and
entertainment to attract a wider visitor mix.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWmEkD

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16

With its charming heritage history as a colonial outpost
and a place where Western and Eastern cultures coexist,
Macau is one of the most fascinating destinations in Asia
and ranked the third most visited Asian city of 2019 in the
Euromonitor Top 100 City Destinations Report. The overall
visitation of Macau in 2019 amounted to approximately
39.4 million, up by approximately 10.1% year-on-year
("yoy”). The growth was attributable to the rising number
of visitors from Mainland China and the rapidly-developing
Asian countries including Philippines and Malaysia, which
supports the healthy development of the gaming and
tourism industries in Macau.

The openings of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge and
The Macau Light Rapid Transit further enhance the
accessibility to and within Macau for both Chinese and
international visitors, and the Group believes that families
and the up-rising middle class will continue to be the
significant drive for Macau tourism. Positioning as a world-
class integrated casino-entertainment resort, Ponte 16 is
able to leverage on its unique geographical location in the
vibrant cultural site of the Inner Harbour near a World
Heritage Site, recognised by the United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation
(UNESCO), to constantly discover new and entertaining
experiences for visitors. In April 2019, Ponte 16 introduced
Macau's first Angry Birds-themed playground — The
Angry Birds Play Center @ Ponte 16, which has been well-
received by locals and tourists.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)
Macau'’s gross gaming revenue (GGR) contracted 3.4% yoy
in 2019, amounted to approximately MOP292.4 billion.
With the effective allocation of resources to reach the
mass market segment, Ponte 16's growth of revenue
outperformed the market. As at 31 December 2019, the
casino of Ponte 16 had 109 gaming tables, consisting of
98 mass gaming tables, 7 high-limit tables and 4 VIP
tables, maintaining a competitive mix for the current
market trend of Macau. Adjusted EBITDA* for the
reporting year increased by approximately 6% to
approximately HK$377.5 million (2018: approximately
HK$356.7 million). The average occupancy rate of Sofitel
Macau At Ponte 16 achieved over 90% in 2019 (2018:
over 90%,).

In recognition of the exceptional quality of service provided
by Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16, the hotel has received 11
honourable international and regional awards as of 31
December 2019, including “Luxury Cultural Hotel” by
World Luxury Hotel Awards 2019, “China’s Best
Destination Hotel” by the 19th Golden Horse Awards of
China, “Bronze Award 2018" by Rakuten Travel, “U
Magazine Travel Awards — My Favourite Hotel & Resort”
by U Magazine, "“Excellent Communication Service Hotel
Award” by Macao Smart Hotel Awards, “Excellent Service
Oriented Hotel of the Year” by 2019 Greater Bay Area
Hospitality Awards, and was given an 8.5 out of 10 rating
by Booking.com’s Guest Review Awards 2018 and a 5.7
out of 6 rating in the “Recommended on HolidayCheck
2019 Certificate”. Le Chinois was awarded “U Magazine
Favourite Food Award 2019” and So SPA was awarded
“Luxury Hammam Experience” by World Luxury Spa
Awards 2019 and “Asia’s Top Wellness Spa” by 2019-
2020 Now Travel Asia Awards.

* Adjusted EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from the bank
deposit)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

o R (&)

BREEFEB — T30 (&)
BPIEREERA(TEEERANDRE
— IR T #K3.4% £ 49292,400,000,000
BFITT o BB AN B EIRAF E 518
FoEs s TNERKEERRIVENT
HBeRNZE-—NF+_A=+—8H" '+~
HIRGEIS KB 109RKE R - BIE8 K5
HR TRIBHERERAREERR  #
F—(ERTAA B ARS8 AR F
NZHEE - RREFENAN - LEFTHRT
B BiIR -~ TE R AN X I 6%
E4978% 377,500,000 L ( ZF— \F : 4
78 356,700,0007C) e R=ZZE—N4F - B
FIT/BERIEFNBENFEHAT RS
90% (ZZF—/\4F : #90%) °

BREBRPTNBRIFFRBIEFTRME
MEERE B2E_ZT—NLE+_-A
=+—H8  BEEREXVIERR KRR
BIE - RS- NFHABERE AR
EEIEBREXL] £ F19ETHS
HBHER [PREKEREB OBEE] -
BRIRERE [HERIKE_Z— \FE
# ] + U Magazine 78 % [U Magazine Jik %%
A — BEEEMRFVEE REBMN] -
RIS BB E AT [ BARBERBE
221 2019 BB A R XK & fE 508 5%
[FFESBARMEE] - 375 Booking.com
Z 12018 ERFIDEME] 21095 D
F S 8.5 K [Recommended on
HolidayCheck 2019 Certificate| 2 6% &F
DHERBSTD  RETEBZEEEMRE
[UMagazineE &= E B RFIB JER &
2019 ifiSo SPARE T — N FHRE
FERBEABBAE [ RERERBR] BR -
E-NFEZTFTFTMIRTTRER
B [N KBRS K88 -

* KEEETRIRFE  HIR - TEREHE AT
(X BT BIRERITIFELTE KBTI EHA)



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

Ponte 16 is committed to making a positive contribution
to the local communities that it has deep roots in. It has
taken proactive approaches in the sustainable
development of the hotel and the entertainment business,
supporting the Macau government in the promotion of
responsible gaming culture, and managing corporate
environmental performance. Ponte 16 incorporates
environmental practices in its daily operations, strives to
make efficient use of resources and promote green
awareness. During the reporting year, Sofitel Macau At
Ponte 16 was granted the “Silver Award” by Macao Green
Hotel Award 2019 as a recognition of its continuous effort
in upholding a high level of commitment to sustainability.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$32.3 million (31 December
2018: approximately HK$23.0 million) and net assets of
approximately HK$1,144.3 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$1,068.1 million). The Group adopts a
conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the trade receivables of its customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments can meet its funding requirements.
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s transactional
currencies are Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Canadian
dollars (“CAD") as substantially all the revenues are in HK$
and CAD. The Group'’s transactional foreign exchange
exposure was insignificant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
("Mr. Yeung”, being the Chairman of the Board, an
executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company), provided a HK$200 million term loan facility to
the Company which is unsecured and charged with
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars
loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited. The principal amount of the loan
facility was increased up to HK$290 million on 14 April
2009 (the “Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the
final repayment date of the loan and all other sums owing
to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung'’s Loan Facility
was further extended from 31 October 2020 to 31
October 2022 by a supplemental letter of agreement
dated 20 September 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the
Company had no outstanding loan owed to Mr. Yeung
under the Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility (31 December
2018: HK$39.0 million).

During the year, the Group’s secured bank facilities were
increased to HK$339.5 million and CADO0.9 million (31
December 2018: HK$222.5 million) which bear interest at
Hong Kong interbank offered rate (HIBOR) plus a margin
that was ranged from 1.7% per annum to 1.75% per
annum and at prime rate quoted by the Bank of Canada
plus 1.95% per annum respectively. In addition, the Group
obtained a general bank facility for issuance of a standby
letter of credit of CAD 2.0 million which carries a
commission rate of 1.2% per annum. The proceeds of the
facilities were for the Group’s general operation. As at 31
December 2019, the outstanding bank loans were
approximately HK$194.0 million (31 December 2018:
HK$222.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

As at 31 December 2019, total equity attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$1,144.3
million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$1,068.1
million). The gearing ratio, which was measured on the
basis of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group over
total equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
approximately 17% as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: approximately 25%).

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had secured the
following assets:

(a)

the Group pledged the time deposits of
approximately CAD1.6 million and USDO.1 million,
totally equivalent to approximately HK$10.4 million
(31 December 2018: approximately CAD1.6 million
and USDO.1 million, totally equivalent to
approximately HK$10.0 million) to certain banks for
the issuance of a standby letter of credit and
overdraft facility of approximately CAD1.5 million
and a standby letter of credit of approximately
USDO.1 million, totally equivalent to approximately
HK$9.6 million (31 December 2018: a standby letter
of credit and overdraft facility of approximately
CAD1.5 million and a standby letter of credit of
approximately USDO.1 million, totally equivalent to
approximately HK$9.3 million) for the operation of
the Group;

World Fortune Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, pledged all (31 December
2018: all) of its shares in Pier 16 — Property
Development Limited (“Pier 16 — Property
Development”, an associate of the Group) to a bank
in respect of the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 —
Property Development (the “Loan Facilities”);
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Pledge of Assets (continued)

()

the Group pledged all of its investment properties
and one of its stock of properties totally with the
carrying amount of approximately HK$547.3 million
(31 December 2018: all of its investment properties
with the carrying amount of approximately HK$443.6
million) to secure against the bank facilities of
approximately HK$339.5 million and CAD2.0 million,
totally equivalent to approximately HK$351.6 million
(31 December 2018: HK$222.5 million) granted to
the Group; and

the Group pledged one of its freehold land and
building held outside Hong Kong with the carrying
amount of approximately CAD1.7 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$10.5 million (31 December
2018: nil) to secure against a credit facility of
approximately CADO0.9 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$5.4 million (31 December 2018:
nil) granted by a bank for the operation of the
Group's travel business.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company gave a corporate guarantee (the

“Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the Loan Facilities.

The maximum guarantee amount borne by the Company

under the Guarantee was HK$490 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at 31

December 2019 was approximately HK$235.0 million (31
December 2018: approximately HK$435.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 102
employees. Remuneration is determined on the basis of
qualifications, experience, responsibilities and
performance. In addition to the basic remuneration, staff
benefits include medical insurance and retirement benefits.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees
of the Group as a long-term incentive.

PROSPECTS

Stepping into 2020, the global economic conditions are
expected to be clouded by the trade disputes and geo-
political tension, as well as the impacts of the ongoing
COVID-19 crisis. The pandemic has brought further
pressure on worldwide business sectors, in particular of
gaming, tourism and entertainment industries, and it is
not possible to predict the full extent of the impact at this
point of time. Nevertheless, the Chinese government has
dedicated significant resources to fight the pandemic,
while the U.S. Federal Reserve has been cutting its interest
rate since March 2020. With such swift implementation of
stabilisation measures taken by the major nations, the
global economy is expected to weather the present
difficulties, and the Group will continuously enhance its
operational efficiency and maintain a well-balanced
business portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Ponte 16 is committed to the health and safety of all its
guests and employees, thus it has adopted all necessary
protective measures and supported the Macau
government'’s prevention and control measures. During
the temporary suspension of operations for 15 days since
5 February 2020, Ponte 16 has optimised the hygiene and
sanitisation measures to ensure a safe and comfortable
environment for visitors. It is believed that consumers’
confidence will rebound after the ease of COVID-19, as
the infrastructure will continue to improve the accessibility
to and within Macau. The Greater Bay Area integration
plan will further tighten economic links with China,
spurring Macau'’s economic benefits. With its solid and
dependable management team and the unwavering
commitment of its dedicated staff, Ponte 16 will overcome
the prevailing challenges and continue to stably develop its
premium hospitality services and entertainment to attract
a wider visitor mix once the pandemic is over.

Due to the spread of COVID-19, governments in all large
countries are closing borders to foreign nationals, both
inward and outward, in order to minimise travel and public
movement. The full extent and duration of the impact on
the global tourism industry is still hard to predict, Jade
Travel will closely monitor the tourism market and explore
new services, revenue streams and retail locations, as well
as enhancing operational efficiency and cost management.
The Group remains cautiously optimistic about the outlook
of travel and tourism industry. With advancement in the
automatic ticketing system and establishment of strategic
partnerships with leading travel portals, Jade Travel will
continue to address travellers’ diverse interests and
conducive to maintain healthy and sustainable growth
over the medium- to long-term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

As a premier international hub for finance, business and
trade, the Group believes that Hong Kong's property
investment market will regain strong momentum with the
city’s solid fundamentals, together with the new demands
for office, retail and industrial properties arising from the
ongoing developments in the Greater Bay Area. The Group
will continue to leverage on its property investment
portfolio for a steady recurring income stream, and scale
up its portfolio when opportunities arise.

The Group has always been cautious and prudent towards
the formulation of corporate strategy and financial
discipline. Although the operating environment is
challenging amid persistent global economic uncertainties,
the Group will adopt a forward-looking approach to
overcome the difficulties and remains cautiously proactive
about its future plans in accordance with corporate
direction in maintaining diversified business portfolio.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain high corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance
the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
("Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
whom has confirmed his/her compliance with the required
standard set out in the Code of Conduct and the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”), led by its chairman
(“Chairman”), Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the management of the business and
affairs, considering and approving strategic plans and
major corporate matters, as well as reviewing operational
and financial performance. The Board is committed to
make decisions in the best interests of both the Company
and its shareholders (“Shareholders”).
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently consists of six members, including two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
(Chairman) and Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman);
a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle
(“NED"); and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok,
Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming Yu (collectively “INEDs" or
each of them “INED"). All Directors, including the NED
and all INEDs, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
Board is also characterised by diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
independence. A list of Directors identifying their role and
function is available on the Company’s website and on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the paragraph headed “Directors”
under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 99 to 103 of
this annual report.

The roles of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman who
performs the function of chief executive are segregated
and assumed by separate individuals to strike a balance of
power and authority so that power and job responsibilities
are not concentrated in any one individual of the Board.
The Chairman, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, while the
Deputy Chairman, Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategies
regarding the business development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) as well as
managing the Group’s business and operations. The
functions and responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman are clearly segregated.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Except that Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman is the nephew of
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, there is no financial, business, family and/or
other material/relevant relationship among members of
the Board and between the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman who performs the function of chief executive.

The Board includes three INEDs and one of them, Mr.
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, is a certified public accountant
(practising) and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as
well as a certified tax adviser and a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 33 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and taxation.

The NED and all INEDs entered into service contracts with
the Company for a term of one year. All executive
Directors also entered into service contracts with the
Company without specific term of office. Pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), all Directors
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in case of
filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (in case of an addition to
the number of Directors) after their appointment and the
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. In addition,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
such that all Directors should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and
when required. Notices of at least 14 days are given to all
Directors for all regular Board meetings. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman in preparing the agendas for the
meetings and all Directors are consulted whether to
include any matters in the agendas. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the appointed
date of each meeting.

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings
and four non-regular Board meetings were held. Details of
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attendance of the Directors at the said Board meetings are ~ #iE B @ &% Y L4 F &N T ¢
set out below:
Number of
Board meetings
attended/held
HEEEEERRE
Directors 2= BITESEERNRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BB E (F/E) 6/8
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) BEX R (BIFE) 8/8
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BT 8/8
Independent non-executive Directors BIUKEHTES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRELL 7/8
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose 20 & Pivta s 8/8
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMEAE 8/8
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, one general meeting of the
Company, namely the annual general meeting, was held
on 14 June 2019 (“2019 AGM"). Details of attendance of
the Directors at the 2019 AGM are set out below:

Directors =

Exe(®)

REEFEARAABRITRBERX
g IR -E-AFARAATHBESETZR
RBFRG(ZZE-NAFREBFK
g2) BEEHE_Z-NERRBFRE
LSRR ESIT

Executive Directors
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

2019
AGM attendance
—2-hEF
BRREFAGZ
i E R 8%
HITES
BB T E (FE) 1
B (RIFEE) /1
FHITES
BEfRIEAE /1
BYFEHTES
BREL T /1
oK A /1
HRMmEE /1

The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to
assist them in performing their duties. All Directors are
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects to keep the Directors
abreast of the Group’s affairs in order to discharge their
duties. All Directors are also updated from time to time on
major changes/material developments in the laws, rules
and regulations applicable to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the contribution required from each of the Directors
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company was
appropriate and each of the Directors has given sufficient
time to perform his/her responsibilities. The Directors have
informed the Company in a timely manner of any change
in the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant
commitments. Each of the Directors discloses semi-annually
to the Company the identity and nature of office he/she
holds in the public companies or organisations as well as
an indication of the time involved.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive formal induction covering the Group's
business as well as the statutory and regulatory obligations
of a director of a listed company. To assist the Directors to
participate in continuous professional development, the
Company arranges and funds suitable training to the
Directors to update and enhance their knowledge and
skills for performing the Directors’ roles and
responsibilities. During the year under review,
all Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle,
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose
and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, were furnished with materials
regarding directors’ duties, corporate governance, business
transaction management as well as applicable laws, rules
and regulations updates, attended an in-house seminar
regarding Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
and Corporate Governance organised by the Company,
and also viewed the e-training course provided by the
Stock Exchange. The Directors are also encouraged to
attend training relevant to their duties and responsibilities
that they consider appropriate. All Directors are requested
to provide their respective records of training to the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board committees, namely
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “"Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the executive committee
(the "Executive Committee”) to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the
Board’s responsibilities. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration on matters covering corporate
strategy, annual and interim results, changes of members
of the Board and its committees, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant
operational and financial matters. All the Board
committees have clear written terms of reference and have
to report to the Board regularly on their decisions and
recommendations. The day-to-day running of the Group,
including implementation of the strategies and plans
adopted by the Board and its committees, is delegated to
management with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business/affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
for the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee currently consists of the NED and all INEDs and
is chaired by Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualification as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the
responsibility to perform the corporate governance duties
set out in the CG Code. During the year under review, the
primary duties of the Audit Committee included, inter alia,
monitoring integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and ensuring objectivity and credibility of
financial reporting, reviewing effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
(the "Risk Management and Internal Control Systems”),
overseeing the relationship with the external auditors of
the Company (”External Auditors”) as well as ensuring
maintenance of good corporate governance standard and
procedures by the Company.

During the year under review, three Audit Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the Audit
Committee members at the said Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:
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Number of
Audit Committee
meetings attended/held

HEEXZEEESR Y

Audit Committee members EREEERE HTERZEEERRE
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose Bk

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (FEZZEEFE) 3/3

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle EodiEang ks 3/3

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZT 3/3

Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBEE 3/3
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEER®RE (F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year included the following:

e  Reviewed the draft annual report and accounts as
well as the draft annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2018, and the draft
interim report and accounts as well as the draft
interim results announcement for the six months
ended 30 June 2019;

° Discussed with the External Auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

e  Considered the re-appointment of the External
Auditors;

e Considered the engagement of an external
independent consultant to provide internal audit
function for the year ended 31 December 2019,
which comprises, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment, review on the internal control system of
the Group as well as review on the corporate
governance practices of the Company;

e  Reviewed the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company'’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions;

e  Reviewed the continuing connected transactions of
the Company;

e Reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance

report contained in the annual report;

e Considered the terms of engagement of the External
Auditors, including their proposed fees;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

e Reviewed the arrangements for the employees of the
Group (“Employees”) to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters;

e Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e  Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of all Directors and the senior
management of the Company (“Senior Management");

e  Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and

e  Reviewed the codes of conduct, policy, guidelines
and compliance manuals applicable to the Directors
and the Employees.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. The terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Company'’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann acts as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of all
Directors and Senior Management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy, to determine the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and Senior Management and also to make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of the
NED and all INEDs. The Remuneration Committee takes
into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the Senior
Management.
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During the year under review, one Remuneration REBEEEANTRIT-AFMEEeS
Committee meeting was held and details of attendance of % - MFMEESKELE LMFMES
the Remuneration Committee members at the said @@ ViR EEEEYINT
Remuneration Committee meeting are set out below:
Number of
Remuneration Committee
meeting attended/held
HEFHEZSSSBRE
Remuneration Committee members FMEEERE BOFTMZEEEERREY
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRERt
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (3N ZE S 2 F =) 11
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny 1R 171
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle EARIR S A 1
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose oKL A 1
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRmEE 171
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included the following:

e  Reviewed the Company's remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and Senior Management;

e Reviewed and determined the remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and Senior
Management;

e Reviewed the remuneration packages of the NED and
all INEDs; and

° Reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all
executive Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Nomination Committee is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board annually, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on selection for
directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs, to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, as well as to review the policy for nomination
of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”) and the Board
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) as appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance, and will select candidates for the Board
basing on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
independence (the “Measurable Objectives”). The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the Measurable
Objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
by considering the Company’s business model and specific
needs from time to time and will recommend any revision
thereof, if necessary, to the Board for consideration and
approval.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets
out the process of identification, selection and evaluation
of a candidate for election to the Board. Where a vacancy
on the Board exists or an additional Director is considered
necessary, the Nomination Committee will solicit
recommendations for candidates from any source it deems
appropriate, including referrals from members of the
Board and management of the Company or
recommendations from personnel agents. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate the candidate by considering,
inter alia, (i) the candidate’s qualifications and contribution
from the candidate’s background, experience, specific
qualities, knowledge or skills; (ii) the candidate on merit
and against the Measurable Objectives, with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board; and (iii) the
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules
and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules, and it will also take
into account of the existing structure, size and composition
of the Board (collectively the “Criteria”). The Nomination
Committee will make recommendation to the Board to
appoint the appropriate candidate as a Director.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee will also evaluate retiring
Directors who wish to continue their services on the Board
based on the Criteria and will make recommendation to
the Board for proposing re-election of the relevant
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, and will
also discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
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Nomination Committee members at the said Nomination @@ VREEEIEEYII T
Committee meetings are set out below:
Number of
Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held
HEREZEEER RS
Nomination Committee members REZEBRE BITREZEEEENRE
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny B8 A
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (1BEZEEL/FE) 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BRI A 2/2
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRELL 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose KRS 2/2
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBEE 2/2
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EEER®RE (F)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included the following:

Assessed the independence of all INEDs;
e Considered the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election as Directors at the annual general

meeting held in 2019;

e  Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

e Reviewed the Nomination Policy; and

Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy.
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established by
the Board with specific written terms of reference. It
currently consists of all executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny and Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
with Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of
the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is
responsible for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any
matters concerning the day-to-day management, business
and operational affairs of the Company, and any matters
to be delegated to it by the Board from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, eleven Executive Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Executive Committee members at the said Executive
Committee meetings are set out below:

Executive Committee members HITEEERE
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Number of

Executive Committee
meetings attended/held
HEGTEEESBRE,
BOYTEEEERRY

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
(Chairman of the Executive Committee)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
(including environmental, social and governance-related
risks ("ESG-Related Risks”)) it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate
and effective Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks) and
reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees
management in performing its duties. The Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems are designed
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group's objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Group adopts a risk management system which
manages the risk associated with its business and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

e I|dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement
of objectives.

e Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

e  Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

The Company has in place an internal control system
which is compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO")
2013 framework. The COSO 2013 framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

e Control Environment: A set of standards, processes
and structures that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

e Control Activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement of
objectives are carried out.

50  SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B 325 A R 2 7]

R\ Be B K AR EE#E (&)

AEERBORABREERGEEEEE
G MEERECRR - ZRRBREAT

B B

o HAl:ERERFAE XHBEEK
AREFEEMBA R ZAR -

o W HREBRZTEERTE
A AR BRI -

o EE:EZEEMREUER  EKRE
EXZSANER  UHEEERG
R o

NARIRANEPEIE R L - B Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission ([COSOJ) 2013 &
ZRHETF - COSO 2013 1E R L 4 fE N 5k
RS E R MR - B HE R SR A
KBFEREN LRI Z BIF - ZIERZ
R EB N T PR ¢

o ERES —EE RFRERS -
YA EE (TP RD B 2 20

o [ERFHE —ETEELERZEN
BF - ARBER Lo rERE - LE
AAKENRE RETEROME
I B ST AL o

o EMRY: REBEREERFHEZ
T8 UEEREERESHEREE
HERZ AR -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

e Information and Communication: Internal and
external communication to provide the Group with
the information needed to carry out day-to-day
controls.

e  Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal
control is present and functioning.

A disclosure of inside information policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different
departments/operation units informing any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

e The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality;

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations;

e The Senior Management to evaluate the potential
inside information and to determine further
escalation, and the executive Directors to determine
disclosure as required; and

e  The Deputy Chairman is the designated person
who speaks on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties, such as media,
analysts or investors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in
possession of relevant expertise (the “Independent
Professional Firm") to perform internal audit function for
the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment and reviews on the internal control system of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The review plan was approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board. Based on the risk assessments
and the reviews of the internal control systems of the
Group conducted by the Independent Professional Firm for
the year, no significant risk and control deficiency was
identified. The relevant assessment and review reports
have been considered by the Audit Committee and the
Board for assessing the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function as well as the Company’s internal audit
function which was performed by the Independent
Professional Firm. The Board, through the reviews made by
the Independent Professional Firm and the Audit
Committee, concluded that the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems are effective and adequate for
the Group as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The statement of the External Auditors, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the paragraph headed “Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” under the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 110 to 113 of this annual
report.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amounts paid
to the external auditors of the Group in respect of the
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following services provided to the Group are as follows: SN eENT
HK$'000
BT T
Audit services RS 925
Other advisory services (Note) H b B RS BR 7% (rtaE) 280
1,205

Note: Other advisory services mainly comprised interim review services.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to provide clear and full
information of the Group to the Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars and
financial reports of the Company. Additional information,
such as press releases and other business information, is
also available and updated in a timely manner on the
Company's website at www.successug.com.

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the
Shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings. The Chairman, also being the chairmen
of the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee, as well as the chairmen of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee were
present at the 2019 AGM to answer the Shareholders’
guestions. HLB also attended the 2019 AGM for the
purposes of answering questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditors’ independence.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issues, including the election of
individual Directors. Notices of at least 20 clear business
days and 10 clear business days are given to the
Shareholders for all annual general meetings (“AGM(s)")
and special general meetings (“SGM(s)") of the Company
respectively. Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are
clearly explained at the commencement of the general
meetings.

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy for the purposes of ensuring that the Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
information about the Company, enabling the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner and allowing the Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Details regarding the necessary
procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are set out in the “Procedures for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is available on the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

The Board has also adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) on 1 January 2019 which aims to set
out the principles as a reference for the Company to
determine dividend distribution so as to allow the
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
preserving liquidity of the Group to capture future growth
opportunities.

Any payments/recommendations of payment of dividends
are subject to discretion by the Board that such
declarations/recommendations of payment of dividends
are in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders and are also subject to any restrictions under
and in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations
(including, inter alia, the Companies Act of Bermuda) and
the Bye-laws. In addition, any payment of final dividend
for a financial year will be subject to Shareholders’
approval.

The Board shall consider the Company’s ability to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and the amount of any
dividend in any financial year/period by taking into account
of the following factors:

e  capital requirements

e  distributable profits

e liquidity position

e results of operations

e future prospects

e investment plans

e  taxation considerations

e other funding covenants and requirements

e any other factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed by the Board from
time to time and any revisions thereof will be made as
appropriate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes is the Company Secretary. Her
biographical information is set out in the sub-paragraph
headed “Company Secretary” under the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on page 103 of this annual report.

During the year under review, in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a SGM

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call SGMs, and Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
(the “Head Office”) at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great
Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to call the SGM and include
the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Convening a SGM (continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with the detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Head Office at Suite 1601-2 &
8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at AGM or SGM varies according to the nature
of the proposal, as follows:

(@ Not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 20
clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an AGM and not less
than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing
if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in any SGM; or

(b)  Not less than 14 clear days’ notice or not less than 10
clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in all other SGMs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEER®RE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Shareholders’ enquiries

The Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. The Shareholders may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. The Shareholders
may also make enquiries to the Board in writing with their
contact information and deposit the enquiries at the Head
Office at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle Centre,
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the
Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) believes that
sustainable development is essential in achieving business
success. The Group is committed to incorporate
environmental, social and governance considerations into
its business operations.

REPORTING APPROACH

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report
summarised the Group’s sustainability performance and
accomplishments, aiming at providing stakeholders insight
into the progress towards the Group's sustainability
development during the financial year ended 31 December
2019.

This report was prepared in accordance with the “comply
or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Guide") contained in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Materiality, quantitative, balance
and consistency are the four reporting principles that the
Group follows to disclose its ESG-related measures. A
performance table is attached at the end of this report as
an overview to summarise the selected key performance
indicators (KPIs) corresponding to the ESG Guide
requirements. Information regarding corporate governance
is addressed in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 34 to 58 of this annual report.

SCOPE OF REPORT

The scope of this report covered the environmental and
social performance of the operations in the Group’s head
office located in Hong Kong as well as Jade Travel Ltd.
("Jade Travel”), the travel-related business in Canada and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019.

Property investment business in Hong Kong has been
excluded from the scope of this report as certain office
premises of the property investment business were leased
out to the tenants for their respective business operations,
while Ponte 16 is not under the Company’s direct
operational control therefore excluded in this report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBE - -HEeRERRE (E)

STAKEHOLDER'S ENGAGEMENT

The Group strives to build a good relationship with a wide
range of stakeholders, especially with its internal
stakeholders, and thus listens carefully to managerial and
general staff in head office and other business operations
through a variety of channels, in order to foster two-ways
communications and greater understanding. During the
reporting year, the Group has conducted an ESG survey
focusing on Jade Travel’s sustainable business operation.
Interview with top management and online survey with
employees were conducted in Jade Travel to identify internal
stakeholders’ concerns and prioritise the overall interest of
stakeholders in leading sustainable development.

The survey contained 26 environmental and social material
topics that were identified under the assistance of an
independent consultancy company. Through the analysis
of collected responses, the Group has consolidated the
results and ranked the top three material environmental
and social topics of the Group’s head office and Jade
Travel as below:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

STAKEHOLDER'S ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group considers the identified material topics into the
long-term ESG management approaches and operations,
and will continue to engage stakeholder groups and carry
out materiality assessment in order to formulate a holistic
materiality matrix and reduce associated operational risks.

Stakeholders’ comments are valuable to the Group’s
continuous improvement on operations. Comments and
feedback on this report are welcome by e-mail to
info@successug.com.

CREATING A CARING WORKPLACE

Fostering A Close-Knit Team

The Group places great emphasis on employee’s long-term
development, allocating resources for attracting, nurturing,
retaining and motivating talented employees with a variety
of strategies and practices.

Acquiring and retaining talents

The Group understands that business performance is
inseparable from employee attraction and retention. The
Group strives to provide a range of benefits and
competitive remuneration package with reference to
market terms and individual merits. In accordance with the
local employment laws, the Group offers paid holidays,
reasonable working hours, retirement scheme and medical
care to all employees, as well as discretionary bonuses,
employee discount, food and travel allowance for overtime
work. Share options were also granted to eligible
employees as long-term incentive to praise their efforts.

Investing in training and development

The Group believes that employee development is a long-
term initiative for its continuous business growth. Various
internal training programmes are designed for employees,
including orientation for new staff, while Jade Travel
provides operational and on-board training for employees
relating to their respective job duties. The Group also
provides examination leave for employees to acquire
professional accreditation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBE - -HEeRERRE (E)

CREATING A CARING WORKPLACE
(CONTINUED)

Fostering A Close-Knit Team (continued)
Advocating inclusive culture

Under the Group's practices, the talent acquisition
approach prohibits all forms of discrimination on age,
gender, religion belief, race, or physical disability while
equal opportunities in recruitment, internal transfer and
promotion are granted to all employees and applicants.
The Group strictly complies with applicable statutory and
legal requirements, identification and working permits
were verified to prevent employment of child of forced
labour. During the reporting year, the Group did not
violate any incident or lawsuit regarding employment of
child and forced labour.

Demonstrating business ethics and integrity

In upholding the ethical corporate image, the Group firmly
prohibits bribery and corrupt practices. Anti-corruption
guidelines in accordance with relevant regulations are also
explained to all employees on potential issues relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. To
maintain high ethical standards in business, whistle-
blowing policy is established, in ensuring any concerns,
improprieties or fraudulent acts can be reported in
confidence by the employees. Should there be suspected
case of corruption, the case would be investigated to
determine the validity and the subsequent appropriate
disciplinary actions.

Nourishing Employees’ Wellness And Health
Underpinned by the people-oriented corporate culture, the
Group considers employees’ well-being and safety in the
working environment as top priorities, and is dedicated to
improving occupational safety and health and further
enhance the teamwork and cohesiveness.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

CREATING A CARING WORKPLACE
(CONTINUED)

Nourishing Employees’ Wellness And Health
(continued)

Promoting workplace health and safety

The Group strives to offer a comfortable workplace where
emphasis on noise control, thermal comfort, lighting and
ergonomics in the design of office interior. Air circulation
and temperature control systems were installed at offices
to improve the indoor air quality, while smoking was
completely banned in the working area. The Group exerts
efforts to increase the awareness concerning occupational
safety, while first-aid kits and Automated External
Defibrillators (AED) are available in the office and
maintained regularly. During the reporting year, the Group
organised AED training and fire drill to arouse employees’
safety awareness.

Ensuring employee wellness

The Group cares about employees’ well-being, and
encourages them to strike a balance between work and
personal life. In addition to the healthy and amicable
working environment, the Group initiates and supports
various employee activities as a way to facilitate better
engagement and increase their sense of belongings.

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
MIND SET

Elevating Customer Experience

The Group continues to develop its business with high
services quality. Through its diversified business portfolio,
it is committed to enriching customers’ experience in all
range of businesses. To adopt a comprehensive quality
management approach, Jade Travel strives to provide
customer focused and oriented service when handling
complaint, customer privacy and intellectual property
rights.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBE - -HEeRERRE (E)

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
MIND SET (CONTINUED)

Elevating Customer Experience (continued)
Improving customer satisfaction

The Group considers complaints as an opportunity to
review services and improve management to prevent
similar occurrence in the future. Any received complaint is
redirected to relevant department to inspect and follow up
properly. During the reporting year, the Group did not
receive any case of complaint.

Protecting customer privacy

The Group respects customers’ privacy and believes that
safeguarding the privacy of customers’ personal data is
critical in maintaining customers’ satisfaction. With regard
to the protection of confidential information, the Group
sets up a principle in employee handbook, requiring
employees to protect all confidential and sensitive
information, as well as customer data carefully in
accordance with local laws and regulations. Employees
shall only collect necessary personal data and ensure the
information obtained was protected from unauthorised or
accidental access.

Delivering quality services

The Group believes that a sustainable supply chain is the
foundation of its continual business operation. To deliver
quality products and meet customer’s expectation, Jade
Travel has established a comprehensive supply chain
management policy to select quality suppliers including
airline, shuttle bus and tour guide.

As one of the largest travel agencies in Canada, Jade
Travel is an accredited agent under the International Air
Transport Association (IATA) accreditation, which served as
a seal of approval worldwide, and strives to provide
premium quality of tours and remarkable travel experience
to achieve customers’ satisfaction. During the reporting
year, Jade Travel has received Exceptional Partnership
Award from Air Canada and Appreciation of Continued
Contribution Award from China National Tourist Office,
Toronto.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Giving Back To The Community

To fulfil dedicated social responsibilities, the Group extend
care to the larger community. In this endeavour, the
Group is committed to serve the community through
corporate donations and different charitable events. To
promote the caring spirit among employees, the Group
also encourages employees to directly participate in various
community services and fundraising events.

During the reporting year, the Group supported the
outreach project organised by The Free Methodist Church
of Hong Kong by mobilising employees to visit senior
singles and couples at home to spread warmth, as well as
distributing goodie bags and rice-dumplings during the
Dragon Boat Festival. For the 8th consecutive year, the
Group has been participating in the Community Chest
Dress Casual Day by encouraging staff in the head office
to contribute for a good cause. The Group also continued
to take part in the Tung Wah Flag Day for the
enhancement of community services.

ADVOCATING AN ECO-FRIENDLY
OPERATION

Establishing A Green Office Culture

The Group strives for a greener future and established
environmental policies among its business operations. To
monitor and minimise environmental footprints, various
policies and measurable environmental objectives are
implemented, as well as regular review assuring up-to-date
development standard in environmental protection.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBE - -HEeRERRE (E)

ADVOCATING AN ECO-FRIENDLY
OPERATION (CONTINUED)

Establishing A Green Office Culture (continued)
The Group believes behaviour changes in the workplace
cause significant impact on the environmental
performance. Thus, environmental policy was established
in accordance with the relevant environmental laws and
regulations. Under the policy, a “Green Office Guideline”
has been formulated to integrate environmentally
conscious practices into daily operations, improve
efficiency of resources utilisation and raise employees’
awareness on environmental protection. The Group also
pledges to follow the guidelines from the third party in
order to cultivate a greener workplace. During the
reporting year, the Group has engaged and supported the
“Energy Saving Charter 2019” and “4T Charter” launched
by the Environment Bureau and the Electrical & Mechanical
Services Department.

Monitoring Energy Use and Emissions

The Group is fully committed to the sustainable
development and strives to minimise the long-term impact
on the environment by reducing the consumption of
electricity and fuel used for office operations and
transportation. Understanding the adverse impacts of
greenhouse gases (“GHG") generated from electricity and
fuel use, the Group takes responsibility to monitor and
mitigate the release of GHG. The energy and GHG data
collected have been used for monitoring the trend and
future target setting purposes.

To optimise electricity consumption in the office, the Group
has been using LED lights in the head office in Hong Kong
since 2016, as an effort to continue saving energy and
electricity. At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
head office achieved a 5% reduction of electricity
consumption compared to the last corresponding year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

ADVOCATING AN ECO-FRIENDLY
OPERATION (CONTINUED)

Managing Waste

As the Group’s business operations are primarily office-
based, waste generated are mainly consisted of paper. The
Group supports the Recycling Scheme organised by the
building management office of the head office, and pays
full attention in contributing responsible waste management
and reduction by stipulating a set of green office guidelines
for all employees to follow. The guidelines introduced the
concept of “4Rs of Environmental Protection” (i.e. Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle and Replace) in the workplace as a measure
to better manage resource consumption.

Apart from reducing waste, the Group proactively practises
green purchasing, seeking opportunities to purchase
sustainable office supplies. The Group has been using
refillable stationeries and Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)
certified paper for printing of annual and interim reports
since 2013. Besides, lighter-weight paper is used as an
environmentally and responsible manner in the head office
since 2017.

The Group requires all business operations to undergo
environmental policy. By reducing waste at source, offices
in Jade Travel have set up facilities to segregate and collect
different types of waste for recycling. To advocate a
paperless operation, Jade Travel has also adopted an
e-marketing and communication approach to progressively
reduce the use of papers.

The relevant data about general waste and intensity was
not available as the respective building management
handled the waste disposal both for the head office and
Jade Travel. The Group did not produce any significant
hazardous waste due to its business nature.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group is committed to strengthen sustainability
initiatives and performances in all levels of business
operations and services. In fulfilling the commitment, the
Group will continue to care for its employees and the
community, provide high quality services and achieve
environmental performance that goes beyond compliance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBE - -HEeRERRE (E)

PERFORMANCE TABLE

Environmental Performance

Indicator

EE
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 5= & 8 8 i *

Scope 1: Direct Emission Tonnes of CO, equivalent (tCO,-e)

EE  EEHN A (ZEREE)

Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCO,-e

FE2 : MEHN DB (ZEIREE)

Total tCO,-e

R A (ZEIREE)

GHG Intensity tCO,-e/millions of revenues (HK$)

B

RERE

39.40 41.67 42.78
58.55 6137 175.63
97.96 103.04 218.41

0.09 0.09 0.37

EREEE DM ZE(IRER) / FEEL(EY) S
Remarks e

Travel business in the PRC and certain number of offices in Canada were
excluded in Scope 2 “Indirect Emission” whose electricity charges had
already been included in rent.

The amount of Scope 3 “Other indirect GHG emission” and air emission
(particulate matter, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen oxides) were
insignificant to the Group’s operation, therefore the relevant data was
not disclosed.

* Certain relevant data in 2017 and 2018 were modified due to
enhancement in calculation method while changes are not
material.

Indicator

wE

Electricity Consumption #EZE&

Head office in Hong Kong kwWh
BAEHER TR
Travel Business in Canada & PRC kwh
JIEDN GRS TR
Total consumption kWh
BREEE TRE

000" kWh/millions of revenues (HK$)
KEE,/BEET (B W

Total intensity

i

PRENREXE I NEANFHRERELCREE
B QU EAABEL 2 [REHR 85 -

BE3Z [HtHEEZREHEN] R=RmIFR(R
R R R AE ) HAKENEEN S 1L
TEZ Rt ERERREEE -

* ZEtFER B NFEGIEREETE
FETEBRR MIEHE - MEEELE

A

66,203 69,783 72,927
130,044 145,163 260,000
196,247 214,946 332,927

0.17 0.19 0.56

Remark

Travel business in the PRC and certain number of offices in Canada were
excluded whose electricity charges had already been included in rent.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

Environmental Performance (continued)

Indicator

EE
Vehicle Fuel Consumption SEMREEAE

Head office in Hong Kong L
BB #
Travel Business in Canada & PRC L
NIEPN G EE #
Total consumption L
BERE #

L/ millions of revenues (HK$)

Tt/ ERET (B K

Total intensity

RiIR  HERERHRE ()

BNk (&)
RERR (F)

9,612 10,463 10,710
6,000 6,000 6,200
15,612 16,463 16,910
13.61 14.70 28.66

Remark

Shuttle bus service was provided by supplier for the travel business in
Canada, and the respective fuel consumption was not available; no fuel
consumption in the office of travel business in PRC.

(=

MERKEXBOFRELREEEEEREL L&
g%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬁ%%% isligid Stk kS

Indicator 2019 2018 2017
KE “E-NE ZBE-\fE —E—tF
Water Consumption k#E
Total m3 N/A N/A 20
st SR i A A

Remarks =523

Water was provided by municipal suppliers, the Group did not have any
significant issues in sourcing water. The relevant data was not available
as the respective building management offices managed all water utilities
of the head office and the travel business.

The figure of 2017 represented water consumed by the lottery business
in the PRC, which had been sold in September 2017.

#HOK MR G - REBESIUKR T A FAEER
EARIE - @I R R E I EATA fok iR
EEEREE  RUBRHAHEE -

T ERTRTEVREBNIKE  MYER
BER-_T—tFNALE-

Indicator 2019 2018

EE —E-REFE ZE-N\F

Hazardous Waste HEEEFEY

Total Tonnes N/A N/A N/A

fmEr N i A A A
Remark i

The Group did not produce hazardous waste in operation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBE - -HEeRERRE (E)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

Environmental Performance (continued)

Indicator

R

Non-Hazardous Waste EEREZEY

AR (&)

RERE (R)

2019 2018 2017
“E-hAE ZEBE-NE ZE—+F

Total Tonnes 0.1 N/A N/A
FoE RE i i
Remark B

The figure in 2019 only represented the paper wasted in the head office.
The Group did not keep the record of other non-hazardous waste in
operation and may consider to establish a better data collection system in
the future.

Indicator

B
Packaging Material &%

“ENERNEBREEEHERMEANMAR - A5
BN EET T RRFAMESERYNLE  BRN
ZERUEENERBERS -

2019 2018 2017

—BE-hE —B-N\FE —B—+tF

Total Tonnes N/A N/A N/A
mst NI T A T A TiE A
Remark B

The Group did not utilise packing material in operation.

AEEREEDUREABEDH -

Social Performance HERHE
Indicator 2018 2017
B —E-N\F —E—+tfF
Health and Safety ERZZ
Total number of work-related fatalities No. of people 0 0 0
AT ERERE ML T A AR AE
Lost days due to work injury Days 0 0 0
ATEERTIERE BHE
Anti-corruption RE5
Number of concluded legal cases No. of case 0 0 0

regarding corrupt practices RHEE

EEENESHARMTHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE -t RERKRE (F)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) B (E)

Social Performance (continued) HERE(E)

Business Units

HEIEE
Travel
The Business
Head Office in Canada &
Employment (no. of people) in Hong Kong the PRC
mEXRH
=08 (AR BHRANSER Y Bie 32 S 75
Total Number of Employees 47 54
EEAH
By Gender Male 16 14
e S
Female 31 40
g
By Employment Type Top Management 4 1
LAE(BREL S S RREEAB
Management 11 9
EEAB
General Staff 32 44
—HRELE
By Age Group <20 0 0
UASF R AE Bl B 21-30 7 7
31-40 8 12
41 -50 14 11
51 -60 14 19
> 60 4 5

Turnover Rate (%)
MR E (%) 34% 18%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - SR ERKRE (A)

COMPLIANCE TABLE

The Group strictly complied with the laws and regulations REB RGBT TS &R LB TR

in different aspects listed as follows:

Aspect
Lol

A1: Emission

795,87

B1: Employment
(=2

B4: Labour Standards
% TR

B2: Health and Safety
RERZZ

B6: Product Responsibility
EmEE

B7: Anti-corruption
REF

Laws and Regulation

EENER

Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong

EECEMEEIRD)

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FREE AR IEFBIRIBREE)

The Canadian Environmental Protection Act

Employee Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong
FE(EEMEKRD)

Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong

EECRR RS

Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong
BEB(HKEIE KD

Race Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong

FB CEIRBAR D)

Sex Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong

FB CERIBAR 551

Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARANBELEERE)

Canada Labour Code

Canada Labour Standards Regulations
Employment Equity Act of Canada

The Canadian Human Rights Act

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong
EECBELR D MEEED)D

Measures for the Supervision and Administration of Employers’
Occupational Health Surveillance
(RABMIBERREEREEEINE)

Occupational Health and Safety Act of Canada

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong
FEWEANER (L) &5

The Code of Advertising Standards in Canada
Travel Industry Act of Canada

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong
BT LR 501

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REE AR ATBETNED

The Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act of Canada
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The directors (“Director(s)”) of Success Universe Group
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the travel-related
and property investment businesses during the year.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 11 and pages 12 to 33
respectively of this annual report as well as the following
sub-paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
and “Relationships with Key Stakeholders”.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavors to attain long-term sustainable
development, and proactively determines ways to address
environmental, social and governance issues effectively in
the corporate decisions.

The Group upholds its principles of environmental friendly
practices by implementation of reducing, reusing, recycling
and replacing in its daily operations, and develops
initiatives to improve employee welfare and staff
development for betterment of working environment and
efficiency. The Group also believes in good corporate
citizenship and contributes to society by supporting various
charitable programmes.

For details, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
59 to 72 of this annual report.

Report of Directors
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is committed to maintain a high level of
corporate compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements in respect of business and operations. During
the year, the Group’s operations were mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in Canada, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong while the
Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Group
accordingly should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in, inter alia, Canada, the PRC, Hong Kong and
Bermuda during the year.

As far as the board of Directors (the “Board”) is aware,
during the year and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on its business and operations.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group's success also depends on the support from its
key stakeholders which comprise, inter alia, employees,
business partners, suppliers and customers.

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets
of the Group. Therefore, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract, motivate and retain
employees for their continued contribution to the Group
and also encourages them by way of sponsorship to
attend training courses which help employees’ career
development.

Besides, the Group has developed and maintained solid
and steady relationships with its business partners and
suppliers, and provides high quality services to its
customers so as to enhance its competitiveness,
sustainability and future development.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 114 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2018: nil).
The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Friday, 12 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM"). For the
purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
9 June 2020 to Friday, 12 June 2020, both days inclusive,
during such period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2020 AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 8 June 2020 for registration.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended
31 December 2019 by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on pages 293 and 294 of this
annual report.

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 118
and 119 of this annual report and note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the
Group during the year (2018: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT OR
SALE

Details of the properties held by the Group for investment
or sale as at 31 December 2019 are set out in notes 17
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
section headed “Particulars of Properties” on pages 295
and 296 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in notes 25 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

(G4

KEBMNARNBRANFERZ FiEE
ZHABA RN AFERE1ISREI119EH
AT EHR NGB HRERN T
40 o

MAFEAREEL EEHES REAM
BR(ZF—NF &) -

M - BER&RE

AEERAEEAZYE - BEREREE
B 2 FHIRHNER A M B MRMIFE15

FERESHENR

AEBR-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—HZ
BERESLEMELFBRNRGZEY
MR T 17 220 ME R A F 2R 295
NE296BEZ [MEFE] —&-

LN

AR ZBARAFERL BEB - AR
RIRA 2 BB A T TS HRRMIFE30 ©
BERREE
AEER-T-AF+-A=+—AZ

ERNEEZHBIHRGE M EHREMN
F25 K27 °



DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director (“NED"):
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"):
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
paragraph headed “Directors” under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 99 to 103 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman and
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose shall retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2020 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the existing
INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr.
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, an
annual confirmation of her/his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and all of the
said INEDs were considered to be independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There was no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules subsequent to the date of the Interim Report
2019 of the Company and up to the date of this report.

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2020
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no arrangement under which
a Director or a director of the subsidiaries of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of the duties in their respective
offices or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) for the benefit of the Directors and
directors/former directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

(1) On 1 December 2008, the Company as borrower and
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, being the Chairman of
the Board and an executive Director as well as a
controlling shareholder of the Company (“Mr.
Yeung”), as lender entered into a letter of agreement
regarding an unsecured term loan facility of up to
HK$200 million (“Loan Facility”). The rate of interest
on the entire principal amount drawn and
outstanding under the Loan Facility was the prime
rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. On 14 April 2009, the Company and Mr.
Yeung entered into a supplemental letter of
agreement to increase the principal amount of the
Loan Facility up to HK$290 million (the “Revised Loan
Facility”) and to confirm that Mr. Yeung undertook
not to demand early repayment of the loan and all
other sums owing to him under the Revised Loan
Facility before 30 June 2010. The final repayment
date of the Revised Loan Facility (the “Final
Repayment Date”) was extended to (i) 30 June 2011
by a supplemental letter of agreement dated 25 June
2009; and (ii) 30 October 2012 by another
supplemental letter of agreement dated 23 June
2010.
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(1) (continued)

On 15 March 2012, Mr. Yeung entered into a
supplemental letter of agreement with the Company
to further extend the Final Repayment Date to 31
October 2013 and to confirm that any amount repaid
under the Revised Loan Facility should be available to
further advances within the availability period of the
Revised Loan Facility.

The Final Repayment Date was subsequently
extended by various supplemental letters of
agreement to 31 October 2020. On 20 September
2019, Mr. Yeung entered into a supplemental letter
of agreement with the Company to further extend
the Final Repayment Date to 31 October 2022.

The transaction mentioned in this sub-paragraph (1)
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as the said borrowing from Mr. Yeung is on normal
commercial terms or better and it is not secured by
any assets of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

()

On 26 June 2017, Good Sun Development Limited
("Good Sun”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as landlord and Success International
Management Services Limited (“SIMSL", a company
indirect wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung)
as tenant entered into a tenancy agreement (the
“Tenancy Agreement 1”) in respect of the leasing of
the premises situated at Office No. 1003 and Office
No. 1004A on the 10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty
Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (”Office
Nos. 1003 & 1004A") for a term of two years
commencing from 2 July 2017 to 1 July 2019 (both
dates inclusive) (with an option to renew for a further
term of two years at the then open market rental) at
a monthly rental of HK$465,348, exclusive of
government rates, air-conditioning charges and
management fees and all other outgoings. Further
details of the Tenancy Agreement | are set out in the
announcement dated 26 June 2017 issued by the
Company.

On 13 February 2018, Victory Devotion Limited (a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
purchaser, Active Trade Investments Limited (“Active
Trade”, a company direct wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung) as vendor and Mr. Yeung as
guarantor for Active Trade entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in respect of the sale and
purchase of the entire issued share capital of and the
related shareholders’ loans to Merchant Charm
Limited (being the registered and beneficial owner of

Report of Directors (Continued)

ESEHRE (H)

BEXS FHEEEX
REBRBRRRXS - ZH®
BN cEXRER (&)

) RZE—+tFXAZ+H BE
BRAERAG([BE] ARRZ—
FRE2EMBAG  ERFEF)HE
Success International Management
Services Limited ([SIMSL] + — & A
BrRERZEEERBEA IR
ERMBEP)F N —HEWZR
(TMHEm=])  RAEEBBEELR
EBEERBISHEER O1E10E
1003 5% & 1004A 55 #* A Z= ([ 1003 &
1004ASE A= |) 2 W3 - A
—E—tFELAZRARE-Z—N
FrtA—RB(BEEEMR)L &
HMmE (AERRERARMSHES
E—HEEMF) AHEBE
4653487C ' TEEEM  EHE
A -ERBERFBEEMIE - BH
HE W2 E— T IFEHNART
fl % H B AR - — £ F
NAZ+HRBZAM -

RZE-NF_A+=0" ¥k
ERARI(ARRIZ—HEEZEE
BN T - tEBETT) » Active Trade
Investments Limited ([ Active Trade] -
—HBEGETEEEEEEREEA
RAEREA)EBEEER
Active Trade Z FER AN B — B
E W& WA B E & Merchant
Charm Limited (J3#BIBR A7) ([ #
gl za2HeBTRAzTZREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 R

81



82

Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) (continued)

the entire issued share capital of Powerful Concept
Limited (“Powerful Concept”)) and Massive Success
Global Limited (being the registered and beneficial
owner of the entire issued share capital of Famous
Capital International Limited (“Famous Capital”)),
which hold indirectly two commercial properties
situated at Office No. 1001A (“Office No. 1001A")
and Office No. 1004B (”Office No. 1004B") on the
10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre, No. 18
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong respectively with tenancy
agreements both dated 30 June 2017 and leased to
SIMSL by Powerful Concept (the “Tenancy
Agreement II”) and Famous Capital (the “Tenancy
Agreement lII") respectively at a total consideration
of approximately HK$147.5 million (the
“Transaction”). According to the terms of the
Tenancy Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement
lll, Office No. 1001A and Office No. 1004B were
leased to SIMSL both for a term of two years
commencing from 2 July 2017 to 1 July 2019 (both
dates inclusive) (with an option to renew for a further
term of two years at the then open market rental) at
monthly rentals of HK$74,204 and HK$163,644
respectively, both exclusive of government rates, air-
conditioning charges and management fees and all
other outgoings. The Transaction was completed on
4 May 2018. Further details of the Tenancy
Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement lll are set
out in the announcements dated 13 February 2018
and 29 March 2018 respectively as well as the
circular dated 6 April 2018 all issued by the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

()

(continued)

On 25 June 2019, Good Sun, Powerful Concept and
Famous Capital, all as landlords, entered into
respective tenancy agreements with SIMSL as tenant
to renew the Tenancy Agreement |, the Tenancy
Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement Il
respectively (the “Renewal of Tenancy Agreements”)
for a term of two years commencing from 2 July
2019 to 1 July 2021 (both dates inclusive) (with an
option on SIMSL to renew for a further term of two
years at the then open market rent) at the respective
monthly rentals of HK$584,400, HK$93,600 and
HK$204,900, all exclusive of government rates, air-
conditioning charges and management fees and all
other outgoings. Further details of the Renewal of
Tenancy Agreements are set out in the
announcement dated 25 June 2019 issued by the
Company.

Based on the monthly rental under the Tenancy
Agreement | and the tenancy agreement dated 25
June 2019 entered into between Good Sun and SIMSL
(collectively the “Tenancy Agreements for Office Nos.
1003 and 1004A"), the aggregate maximum amount
payable by SIMSL to Good Sun under the Tenancy
Agreements for Office Nos. 1003 and 1004A for each
of the three financial years ending 31 December 2021
should not exceed HK$6,296,000, HK$7,013,000 and
HK$3,526,000 respectively. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the aggregate amount of rental paid
by SIMSL to Good Sun under the Tenancy Agreements
for Office Nos. 1003 and 1004A amounted to
HK$6,294,647.61.
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Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) (continued)

Based on the monthly rental under the Tenancy
Agreement Il and the tenancy agreement dated 25
June 2019 entered into between Powerful Concept
and SIMSL (collectively the “Tenancy Agreements for
Office No. 1001A"), the aggregate maximum amount
payable by SIMSL to Powerful Concept under the
Tenancy Agreements for Office No. 1001A for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2021
should not exceed HK$1,007,000, HK$1,124,000 and
HK$565,000 respectively. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the aggregate amount of rental paid
by SIMSL to Powerful Concept under the Tenancy
Agreements for Office No. 1001TA amounted to
HK$1,006,198.33.

Based on the monthly rental under the Tenancy
Agreement lll and the tenancy agreement dated 25
June 2019 entered into between Famous Capital and
SIMSL (collectively the “Tenancy Agreements for
Office No. 1004B"), the aggregate maximum amount
payable by SIMSL to Famous Capital under the
Tenancy Agreements for Office No. 1004B for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2021
should not exceed HK$2,211,000, HK$2,459,000 and
HK$1,237,000 respectively. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the aggregate amount of rental paid
by SIMSL to Famous Capital under the Tenancy
Agreements for Office No. 1004B amounted to
HK$2,209,933.16.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

()

(continued)

The entering into of (i) the Tenancy Agreements for
Office Nos. 1003 and 1004A; (ii) the Tenancy
Agreements for Office No. 1001A; and (iii) the
Tenancy Agreements for Office No. 1004B constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but are exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

All INEDs had reviewed the continuing connected
transactions disclosed in sub-paragraph (2) above and
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(©) in accordance with the respective tenancy
agreements governing the continuing
connected transactions on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Report of Directors (Continued)

ESEHRE (H)

BEXS FHEEEX
REBRBRRRXS - ZH®
BN cEXRER (&)

2) (&)

5737 () 1003 &2 1004ASE A EFRE
s (i) 1001ASEF A= E %
N (iii) 1004B 5t A = E xR IE
THREBE+THAZBK AR A
SEBERS BREBELEMHRAUE
14A76Q2) 16 - WERHEBRERFHA
BTERE - AMERFEERZEE
HERPETRL(BERLIVBE
R) RIBIIRRBAE ZHRTE ©

ERBUFHTESCERNLENE
QNBAREZHBERERS I
MRZERFEBEISIRATE
HFISL

(@) EAEEZRAER—REKF

HaAE

(b) IZIR—RATS RN E IR
TR

O EKRREXSFERERS
ZHRHEERZE 2 RRTI R
A YAFAARAERRZ

£RERI3 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 R

85



86

Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) (continued)

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), the
auditors of the Company, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. HLB have issued their assurance
report on continuing connected transactions as
disclosed in sub-paragraph (2) above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
aforesaid auditors’ assurance report has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any
entity connected with him/her or a controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries of the
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
year.

Details of another connected transaction of the Company
during the year which is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are set out in note 37(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Mr. Yeung has the following interests in the companies
listed below whose business may compete or is likely to
compete with the Group’s property investment business
(the “Competing Business”) pursuant to the Listing Rules:

Name of company

NEER

Report of Directors (Continued)

Nature of competing business

BEERBME
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EERBERER &R

RIE

Nature of interest

BEME

Active Profit Investment Limited

Asia City Holdings Limited
SHEBERAT

Crownpeak International
Investment Limited
TERREEER AR

Lawman Company Limited

BXBRAR

Lucky Hero Limited
HRAR AT

Super Genius Investments Limited

HBEREERRQR

Since any significant business decision of the Group is to
be determined by the Board in which half of the members
are INEDs, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the

Competing Business.

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEEMFENE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEEYMFERE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEEYMERE(BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEEMFENE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEEMFERE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEYMERE (BE)

5 A

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EENERESEHBA

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
BEmEA50% Em

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

BEENRRERHEEA
ultimate beneficial owner

RREHBEER A

ultimate beneficial owner
RIXBEmHEB A

ultimate beneficial owner
RIREBEmEB A

HRAEREETMEAEXBAROESTS
RTE - MEBEEP —FKE BBILIENT
B SAKBRERATFRABLIEER
RBMFERGAZE -
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EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2019, none of the Directors was interested in
any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business, other than those
business where the Directors were appointed as directors
to represent the interests of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates
had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise, notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Interest in the shares of the Company (“Share(s)")

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December

2019
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Long position/ Number of LB BT

Name of Director Short position Nature of interest Sharesheld ERZFERMZ
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Mr. Yeung (Note) Long position Corporate interest 3,523,190,987 71.52

B (i) oY) NEHEm

Note: Mr. Yeung had a corporate interest in 3,523,190,987 Shares by
virtue of the interest of the Shares held by Silver Rich Macau
Development Limited, which is direct wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, or their
respective associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise, notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June
2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest and any
subsidiary of such entity (“Invested Entity”). The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 10 June 2014 and,
unless early termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on 5 June
2014.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors are
authorised at their absolute discretion to invite eligible
persons to take up options to subscribe for Shares. Eligible
persons under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (i) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant, adviser or
agent engaged by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity, who is eligible to participate in a share
option scheme of the Company; and (iv) any vendor,
supplier of goods or services or customer of or to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity, who is
eligible to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option Scheme to
require a grantee to fulfill any performance target or to
hold the option for a certain period before exercising the
option, but the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the offer of
grant of options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company is 492,649,119 Shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Limit")), representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Limit save that
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company under the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall
not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of such approval (the “New Scheme Limit").
Options previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with the respective provisions of the
scheme(s) of the Company or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the New Scheme
Limit.

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
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EEEHRE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of offer
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the date of offer, unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
such eligible person and his or her associates shall abstain
from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is offered; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

The offer of a grant of share option must be accepted not
later than 28 days after the date of offer, upon payment
of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a period of
10 years commencing on the date upon which the share
option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31 December
2019.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements which will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares or which require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

St =

B E XA ER < BT EI5N - AR AIRR
BRI AN E A AR B ) 3R A=A A
R B R - MRS sk Rl BEE R
ARRETRD  FREARRTLEE
A BB AR R ETTRD 2 (AT 3k o

FTERRNE S 2

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—HB  FIAL
(FELARTNRETRABBRI) KRB
3 AR BRRRAA R A SR A S e
B T RERIBIE B % BB I 336
2 REMARNATFEZBEM
RS

Interest in the Shares IR 10 R 25
Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December
2019
RZE-NF
Name of substantial Long position/ Number of +=-A=+—-H
shareholder Short position  Capacity Shares held EERTARER
TERFER HE Be/ KA E27) RO A B BABEDLE
%
Silver Rich Macau Long position Beneficial owner 3,523,190,987 71.52

Development Limited e ERBEA
pERMIERBERAT

Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian (Note) ~ Long position Interest of spouse 3,523,190,987 71.52

BNt (i) iR ALiB et

Note: Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian, being the spouse of Mr. Yeung, was
deemed to be interested in 3,523,190,987 Shares in which
Mr. Yeung had a corporate interest.

Wizt B (BB E) iR EHEB A
B LA 2 Al s 2 3,523,190,9878 %7
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had, or was deemed or taken to have, an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance, which
was made by the Group by way of the shareholder’s loans
provided by World Fortune Limited (“World Fortune”, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), and a
corporate guarantee given by the Company in respect of
the payment obligation of Pier 16 — Property Development
Limited (“Pier 16 — Property Development”, a 49% owned
associate of World Fortune) under the loan facilities
granted to Pier 16 — Property Development in the
aggregate amounts of HK$735 million and MOP273
million (the “Financial Assistance”), continued to exist as
at 31 December 2019. Pier 16 — Property Development is
principally engaged in the investment, development and,
through its subsidiaries, operating Ponte 16, a world-class
integrated casino-entertainment resort located in Macau.
The Financial Assistance is mainly used for the development
and operations of Ponte 16.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
(CONTINUED)

The amounts of the Financial Assistance as at 31 December
2019 were set out below:
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Aggregate

Shareholder’s Corporate financial

Name of associate loans Guarantee assistance
BENTER BRERER TERR B E B
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

EEEET BEEET AEEET

Pier 16 — Property Development 219 490 709

RWAVEUE 3295

The shareholder’s loans provided by World Fortune are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Further details are set out in notes 18 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Set out below is a consolidated statement of financial
position of Pier 16 — Property Development and the
Group's attributable interests in this associate according to
its audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019:

Bk HE C RREFREER - RER
HEEERA -

#E— B ARG S M IBRRME 8
K36 °

AWTHEARTNENRERZGEE
£ (B2 BN R R D T 2 MRS
BT NEMESRRBEE SN
E+-A=+—ALEEIREREA
SRR -

Consolidated

statement of Group's

financial attributable

position interests

REEERER FEEELES

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Non-current assets FERBEE 663,990 325,355
Current assets mENE E 372,918 182,730
Current liabilities UEDN=NE (474,490) (232,500)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (452,740) (221,842)
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December
2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 47% of total revenue of the
Group, of which the largest customer accounted for
approximately 12% and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 85% of total
purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 85%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the above five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float as prescribed under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board is responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
(“Senior Management”). Besides, the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board for its
determination on the remuneration of the NED and all
INEDs. Factors which include, inter alia, salaries paid by
comparable companies, qualifications, experience, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the
Senior Management as well as prevailing market condition
are considered by the Remuneration Committee for
determining/making proposals on remuneration of the
relevant Directors and Senior Management.

The remuneration packages of employees of the Group
(other than the executive Directors and the Senior
Management) are determined and reviewed periodically
on the basis of their respective qualifications, experience,
responsibilities and performance as well as prevailing
market condition. In addition to salaries, the Company
offers staff benefits which include medical insurance and
retirement benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme. The Group also operates a share option scheme
pursuant to which share options might be granted as a
long-term incentive to its directors and employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

RALNRERE

RAHEBH - RIBEAR B AR
BZBERRBEEMA  ARF—HER
EHRAARE 2 R ARRITFHE ©

N BRR

EFxeR  cyMEEe((FHZES))
AEBESNTESERARARRER
AB(SREBEAB] ZHMFE - It
5y HMEZ B e EZTSEEINTES
RERBYFATESCFHNESS
TELIEE RS - FNE B aNEE 2#
HEEEMSREEABZFHEEE
ZHAZBE(ETEE) A FLHRARM
Nz#Faek¥ EFKRSREEAEBZE
FE &5 M ZRE - BENULBRET

BB o

BRTEENEREEASIN  ~EEE
BZHMEFEIREBERESAZERE &
B BERKRBANBEMHBFRAME
T WEEMRELRE - REFEI 0 AR
AR B TRAMBEERRER KR
ERHMEATER T EIRE 2 BIKEF] - A
SETTRBBRETE - TREAEES
K lE B R B AE R I 22

BB R G

AEBEZRKBEFFEFBEH L&A
BRRMIE32 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 R

97



98

Report of Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE (A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has published its Corporate Governance
Report, details of which are set out on pages 34 to 58 of
this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is
having negative effect on the tourism industry around the
world. The sales of air tickets and the share of results of
associates in Macau in 2020 will be affected. The duration
and extent of impacts due to the COVID-19 are yet to be
determined. Due to such uncertainties, impacts on the
Group’s operating results, cash flows and financial position
may be significant, but currently cannot be reasonably
estimated.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by HLB,
who shall retire at the 2020 AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, aged 65, joined the Group
in 2003. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company as well as a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Board, and a member of the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) of the Board. Mr. Yeung is
responsible for the overall corporate planning and business
development of the Group. He was a member of the
Eighth to Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and has over 36
years of experience in finance industry in Hong Kong. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held managerial roles in
several financial service sectors such as leveraged foreign
exchange trading, and securities and futures brokerage.
He is presently the sole beneficial owner of Success
Securities Limited (”Success Securities”), which is a
licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance as well as a participant of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), principally
engaged in the provision of securities brokerage services.
Mr. Yeung has private investments in certain properties
and real estate development. He is also the sole beneficial
owner and a director of Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, being a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is the uncle of Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, an
executive director of the Company and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board.
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EEREREBASREN (F)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, aged 46, joined the Group in
2005. He is an executive director of the Company and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board as well as a director of the
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ma is also a member of
the Executive Committee. He is responsible for
implementing the Company’s strategies regarding the
business development of the Group as well as managing
the Group's business and operations. Mr. Ma has over 23
years of experience in the financial industry and years of
managerial experience. He joined Success Securities, which
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
("Mr. Yeung”), being the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director as well as a controlling shareholder of
the Company, in 2000. He has been a director of Success
Securities since November 2008 and is responsible for
overseeing its marketing affairs. Mr. Ma is presently a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC")
and a Standing Committee member of the CPPCC
Chongqging Committee. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2018. Besides, Mr. Ma
was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute
of Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of
Management by Lincoln University in 2009 and 2010
respectively. He is the nephew of Mr. Yeung.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, aged 65, joined the Group in
2003. He is a non-executive director of the Company as
well as a member of the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi graduated from
St. Pius X High School in 1976. He has over 26 years of
management experience in the telecommunication
industry in Hong Kong, the United States of America (the
“US") and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr.
Choi established Elephant Talk Limited in 1994, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Elephant Talk Communications Inc.
("ETCI"). ETCI was an American corporation whose
securities were quoted on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin
Board in the US and engaged in the provision of
telecommunications services in Hong Kong and the US.
Mr. Choi was a director of ETCI from 2002 to 2008 as well
as the president and the chief executive officer of ETCI
from 2002 to 2006 and was responsible for the planning
of the overall strategy of ETCI. He also served as the
chairman of ET Network Services Limited (now known as
Guangdong Ming Ying Financial Leasing Co Limited), a
Hong Kong company engaged in the provision of internet
access and outsourcing services in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Mr. Choi is presently a non-executive independent
director of Wealthbridge Acquisition Limited, a company
whose securities are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market
in the US.
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EEREREBASREN (F)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, aged 55, joined the Group
in 2004. She is an independent non-executive director of
the Company. She is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yeung
holds a Bachelor degree of Retail Marketing with honours
in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in Marketing from
The Chartered Institute of Marketing. She pursued her
further study on legal course and was awarded a Diploma
in Legal Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998. Ms.
Yeung has over 21 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant of Messrs. Fung & Fung, Solicitors, a
legal firm in Hong Kong. She is also an independent non-
executive director of Merdeka Financial Group Limited
(formerly known as Merdeka Financial Services Group
Limited) and E Lighting Group Holdings Limited, the issued
shares of the said companies are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung was
an independent non-executive director of Trillion Grand
Corporate Company Limited (now known as hmvod
Limited), a company whose issued shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, aged 55, joined the
Group in 2012. He is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chin is a
certified public accountant (practising) and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) as well as a certified tax
adviser and a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. He has over 33 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and taxation. Mr. Chin is presently
the sole practitioner of CNT & Co., Certified Public
Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Chong Ming Yu, aged 46, joined the Group in 2014,
He is an independent non-executive director of the
Company as well as a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chong holds a Bachelor degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University
of Hong Kong. He has been admitted as a practising
solicitor since January 1999, with focus on the field of
conveyancing, civil litigation and commercial. Mr. Chong
has over 23 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant to Messrs. Kong & Tang, Solicitors,
a legal firm in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes, aged 46, joined the Group
in 2003. She is the company secretary of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing all legal matters of the
Group. Ms. Chiu is a qualified solicitor and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators). She holds a Master degree of Laws
from The University of Sheffield, United Kingdom. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Chiu was a practising solicitor in a
local law firm and possessed experience in banking and
finance as well as property related matters.

Financial Controller

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 57, joined the Group
as the financial controller in 2008 until 2015 and rejoined
the Group in 2018. He is the financial controller of the
Group and is responsible for financial and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as
well as an associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. He has over 32 years of
experience in accounting and corporate finance gained in
entertainment and travel-related, property development,
construction and manufacturing companies.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR E

Bl #7 & @ F H% 6 A R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 114 to 292, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BUZBERE (&

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
ERETBIR

REETERE (A

REWEZ2GE
B2 A M MR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETENREEZRSEHZL

The Group’s investment properties measured at fair
value amounted to approximately HK$444,800,000
as at 31 December 2019 and there was a revaluation
gain of approximately HK$1,200,000 for the year
then ended. The fair value was determined by the
Group with reference to the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers engaged by the
Group.

R_E-NF+A=+—H > EEBEERATE
STEMIRE Y RB Y 444,800,000 7T ¢ T E %
BHIEFEMNEKKELRAE%1,200,0007T - 5
AHEDE BEXEEZ2E EEEZREMNBUIEXR
HEMMETRIEEMEE °

The valuations of investment properties involved
significant judgements and estimates including:

REYMEGES REAHE LG - B

e The determination of valuation techniques,
which is using combination of income
capitalisation method and direct comparison
method of each property;

HETENETE - ISVERAEHBRAERL
EREELBOL

e  The section of different inputs in the valuation
models.

EEZEHEERA TEETRNBEAL

Considering the significance of judgements,
estimates and the financial impacts of the valuations,
we paid specific attention to this matter in our audit.
ZRINHE REF 2 EZUERGEZHBEE - &
PIREZ TIEPHEZEER TEAIRT -

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:
MR EEBYRENFE 2 HERRZEFE
SEE

e  Evaluation the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuers.

A BEINEEER 2 B - BB K
BEM o

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on our knowledge of
the property industry and using our
valuation experts.
RIERBRFIE Y EITEO MBS B
HMEZRX  FHEFERANGERE - B
B RAFTRE MY

e Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
ERAMET L mEMKANGAZUED
AR -

We found the key assumptions were supported
by the available evidence. The fair market rents
were supported by recent renewals and in line
with our expectation. We found the disclosures in
Note 17 to be appropriate.

B0 BREREMESEER - 2T
SHEE BB RBEMER - HMRA
MEE17PrEREREE -



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates

BARZBERE (&

REETERE (A
REE&E A7z i 2 B AR

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. B2HEGEAPBTRRME 18 -

The Key Audit Matter
RRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETENRBEZSBEHZL X

The interests in associates is accounted for under the
equity method. As at 31 December 2019, the
interests in associates amounted to approximately
HK$624,188,000, including goodwill of
approximately HK$19,409,000, and the related profit
on share of results of associates for the year ended
31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$116,757,000.
REtERE 2 BERIRAEREINNER R —NF
TZA=1+—HB REERRZERZ (BREEELD
76 ¥ 19,409,000 7T ) #J /3 76 % 624,188,000 7T * i
BE_T-NF+__RA=1+—RHILFE HB@AEHG
BN BB AR N K B 116,757,000 7T

Our procedures in relation to the management'’s
impairment assessment of interests in associates
included:

BT E R B YO E = D R 2 s RUE R
RZEFBLE

e  Evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuer.

MR B BN ER 2 B1E - BE h R
BB -

e Assessing the valuation methodology, key
assumptions and estimates used against our
knowledge of the business and industry.
SR PSR R MITE AR FFE
FTERAREETDE - B R M EE -
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BYZBERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
RREETSER

REETERE (A

REHE R B 2 s 2 BER G (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETENREEXBZEHZL A

The management performed impairment assessment
of interests in associates with the use of valuation
performed by an independent professional external
valuer based on the value in use calculation. The
valuation requires the application of significant
judgement and estimation by the management in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology
to be used, use of subjective assumptions and
various unobservable inputs.
EIREC B E R 2 R EITRER (AL (EHRIE
Y HEEINBAEERMBEEREERAESHONMGE-
HEEREEERETH TEAZEE[ERE -

IERIABETABRBABRBZERRERE
KA R b5t o

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on our knowledge of
the business and using our valuation
experts.
11\2%}&1%?*@F&%%ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬂ?ﬂﬁiﬁi@ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂ@
HER Ta‘W‘Eﬁﬂ%Fﬁ WIEETT S - Bj

“’L&ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ B

e Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions used based on our knowledge
of the business and industry.
WIEHPIHZEBMITROME
REERNSIEMN -

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
BREEA L BREMKANEAZBELN
MR

We found that the assumptions made by the
management in relation to the value in use
calculations to be reasonable based on available
evidence. We found the disclosures in Note 18 to
be appropriate.
ﬂi%ﬁﬁﬁ SERE ZMRREEEREAEES
f’EﬁZ{E““%/\EE BPRBEWFT18FTEZ
WEEE



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon
("Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

BARZBERE (&

Hft 58

EXEFHEHMEESRE - HEREHET
FNFEREANEL - ETEREEH
BREMEMOZBEMBRE(HEME

Bl
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BYZEERE (&)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BARZBERE (&
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BYZEERE (B

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —=-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Revenue &= 6,7 1,147,371 1,120,278
Cost of sales THEMAK (1,117,066) (1,085,924)
Gross profit EF 30,305 34,354
Other revenue and gains H A Wzs IR A 8 4,103 6,409
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE&EM B ATz Wz 31 15,970 —
Fair value gain on KEWMEZ AFE
investment properties Wz 17 1,200 27,300
Administrative expenses THAX (71,137) (78,554)
Other operating expenses HfhsEEm 9(c) (14,524) -
Loss from operations REEE (34,083) (10,491)
Finance costs BATE R AR 9(a) (9,241) (4,003)
Share of results of joint ventures [fE{h & &3 E4E 761 597
Share of results of associates i N e 116,757 68,110
Profit before taxation B %5 A= A 9 74,194 54,213
Taxation I8 10(a) - -
Profit for the year A F E A 74,194 54,213
Attributable to: BT RIEE :
Owners of the Company /N [ 74,194 54,464
Non-controlling interests Eia il o - (251)
Profit for the year REEEF 74,194 54,213
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic and diluted — BEAREE 14 1.51HK cents &1l 1.11 HK cents &Ll

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmkAMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
—B-RE T )\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year AEE G A 74,194 54,213
Other comprehensive Htnz2mikzE(F8)
income/(loss)
Item that may be reclassified HETWEEHNIER
subsequently to profit or loss: B@m2ER
Exchange differences on translation — # & & 5N B A & B SRR
of financial statements of FIEEZERZRE
overseas subsidiaries 1,944 (1,585)
Total other comprehensive income/  BRFi1& 2 ANFEEMEE
(loss) for the year, net of tax Wi/ (E18) 85 1,944 (1,585)
Total comprehensive income AFEE2HEKRERE
for the year 76,138 52,628
Attributable to: AU R IEEN :
Owners of the Company ZA/NC S 76,138 53,060
Non-controlling interests TR R - (432)
Total comprehensive income AEEZHKRREE
for the year 76,138 52,628

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BERT 2 MY T A AER A M IR 2 A K AR

,T/'\ ®
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI TR
As at 31 December 2019
RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—B-NF —F-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
[z BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant M - B MEE
and equipment 15 31,402 26,083
Intangible assets mEE 16 6,892 6,643
Investment properties REME 17 444,800 443,600
Interests in associates iR lN W - 18 624,188 605,074
Interests in joint ventures REELEIER 19 6,069 5,308
1,113,351 1,086,708
Current assets REEE
Stock of properties MEFE 20 119,750 186,218
Trade and other receivables e E SRR
H A FEUT AR R 21 42,827 49,139
Pledged bank deposits EHEBIRITHER 22 10,355 9,964
Cash and cash equivalents Be IR EEER 23 98,752 50,720
271,684 296,041
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables EE SRR K
H fth T BR K 24 39,424 49,613
Deferred income PRIEUT A - 245
Bank loans |ITER 25 194,000 222,500
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 5,319 —
Financial guarantee contract IERE A 28 644 644
239,387 273,002
Net current assets REBEEZFEE 32,297 23,039
Total assets less EEHABERRBERSE
current liabilities 1,145,648 1,109,747

116 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B /238 575 IR A ]



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
mEMBEARRR (F

As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —=-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income EFEWA - 1,014
Lease liabilities MEEE 26 421 —
Loan from a director —HREERIER
and controlling shareholder IRERE 27 - 39,000
Financial guarantee contract BB ERED 28 968 1,612
1,389 41,626
Net assets EERE 1,144,259 1,068,121
Capital and reserves BERR#E
Share capital ¥ 30 49,265 49,265
Reserves B 1,094,994 1,018,856
Total equity RERBE 1,144,259 1,068,121

The consolidated financial statements were approved and SEBEHREREN _E-_EF=/F=+
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March AESEEeERKETE  WHNATE

2020 and signed on its behalf by: EREEE

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
=124 BEX

Director Director

EFE EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BE Bt 2 B 5k B A4 A BT IS R R 2 48 Bk 2B
consolidated financial statements. o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥R

117



118

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRARRES
Non-
Share Share Distributable  Exchange Other Accumulated controlling Total
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Ba  RBEE THAKRE @ EXRE  BMRE  ZiER a  FBEREE  BRAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETr ABTn B%Tr BT BETr BETr BT BT BT
(note a) (note h) (note ¢)
(MEa) (Wb (Ko
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\5-A-R 49265 1418963 52,333 (4,759) 976 (506,148 1,010,630 (12,774)  997,8%
Profit/loss)for the year AERHT/(E8) - - - - - 54,464 54,464 (251) 5413
Other comprehensive loss for the year RAEE R (2 EHIE - - - (1,404) - - (1,404) (181) (1,585)
Total comprehensive (oss)income ~ AEE2H(FE) /s

for the year - - - (1,404) - 54,464 53,060 (432) 52,628

Transaction with non-controlling ~ EIEERER 725
interests (note 34) (Wit 34) - - - - - 4431 4431 13,206 17,637
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+=A=1-A 49265 1418963 52,333 (6,163) 976 (447253 1,008,121 - 1,068,121
At 1 January 2019 R=F-NF-A-R 49265 1,418,963 52,333 (6,163) 976 (447253 1,008,121 - 1,008,121
Profit for the year RERRT] - - - - - 74,19 74,19 - 74,19

Other comprehensive income TEEEMZENR
for the year - - - 1,944 - - 1,944 - 1,944

Total comprehensive income REELANHEE
for the year - - - 1,944 - 74,194 76,138 - 76,138
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+-A=1-H 49265 1,418,963 52,333 (4.219) 976 (373,059) 1,144,259 - 114259
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(a)

(b)

(9]

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

Distributable reserve

The distributable reserve is the reserve of the
Company available for distribution to the
shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(q).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

(c)

REEESBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-F-NF+-A=T-ALFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtsE BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Profit before taxation B 5 BT Vi A1) 74,194 54,213
Adjustments for: EM NS EELFE
Fair value gain on WEME 2 AT ERE
investment properties 17 (1,200) (27,300)
Bank interest income RITH WA 8 (198) (193)
Finance costs B 75 Ak 2K 9(a) 9,241 4,003
Depreciation: e -
— owned property, plant —BHEVE BEX
and equipment B 15 3,192 3,802
— right-of-use assets — (FREEE 15 5,143 -
Amortisation on financial HISEIRG K0#E
guarantee contract 8, 28 (644) (644)
Share of results of BIhEEhEREEA
joint ventures (761) (597)
Share of results of associates e NG (116,757) (68,110)
Write-down of stock WRMEGFE
of properties 9(c), 20 14,524 -
Reversal of impairment loss BN RIEERZ
recognised on: BEEERMD
— intangible assets — B EE 8,16 - (3,164)
— amount due from a —ER—FHEE
joint venture 32 I8 8 - (1,500)
Exchange alignment bE AR (148) 515
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEKRE
plant and equipment ol it 15 57 -
Gain on disposal HEWBA Rz K
of subsidiaries 31 (15,970) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
HEBRERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
—B-hE - \F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtsE BT T BT T
Operating cash flows before %E& B EAT 2
changes in working capital E&HEEHK (29,327) (38,975)
Decrease/(increase) in trade UL E FER 3 M b R Uk
and other receivables BRFOR A, (35 00) 8,042 (31,430)
(Decrease)/increase in trade JERE SRR R E b RS
and other payables BRFX CRL ) /180 (12,966) 32,605
Decrease/(increase) in stock MEFERLGEM)
of properties 4,956 (104,338)
Cash used in operations REFHZ2RS (29,295) (142,138)
Income tax paid SATETS R
— Hong Kong profits tax paid — X &S FEH - (237)
NET CASH USED IN RexBHA
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEEFHE (29,295) (142,375)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Payment for purchase of BBEYE BB A&E
property, plant Fr i~ 3k 38
and equipment 15 (2,484) (468)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEWHB AR ZIRE
of subsidiaries MAFEEE 31 62,971 -
Net cash outflow from WEBEEZR® RO
acquisitions of assets HER 33 - (205,619)
Decrease in amounts due JE W Bt & R R SR IE R A
from associates 97,643 123
Decrease in amount due e —MRE& & FENRIE
from a joint venture NERAN - 1,200
Decrease in pledged EHEIFRITIF SR
bank deposits (263) (659)
Bank interest income received = YERTTHI EUA 180 165
NET CASH GENERATED RETHELE (HH)
FROM/(USED IN) ZEE&EH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 158,047 (205,258)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
GERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 BT T BEETFIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Repayment of bank loans E?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁk (28,500)
New bank loans raised MESRITER - 222,500
Loan from a director —HREERIER
and controlling shareholder IRERE X 40,000 39,000
Repayment of loan from a BE—REERIER
director and controlling REER
shareholder (79,000) -
Transaction with EIEIE AR i o
non-controlling interests IR 34 - (8,184)
Finance costs paid AT RS AR (9,125) (3,459)
Payment of lease rentals THNEEHRS (5,191) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/ mMETEH (BH),
GENERATED FROM BEEZREFE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (81,816) 249,857
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & RIREHEER
and cash equivalents @, O ) F58 46,936 (97,776)
Cash and cash equivalents at ~ FE¥IR 4 KELZHEEH
the beginning of the year 50,720 149,656
Effect of foreign exchange PE R H) v 2
rate changes 1,096 (1,160)
CASH AND CASH FXRRAERRS
EQUIVALENTS AT THE END ZEEH
OF THE YEAR 98,752 50,720
Analysis of balances of cash RE&ERBEEEEEB
and cash equivalents EEER DT
Cash and bank balances A& MIRTTEERR 23 98,752 50,720

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BERMT 2 MY 3% A ZANAR A B 16 T 2 4B A 30

consolidated financial statements. % o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in Bermuda on 27 May
2004 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle
Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Its
controlling shareholder is Silver Rich Macau
Development Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI") with limited liability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS(s)"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)"”) and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosure requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosures provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

1.

ARE TR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+T-A=+—BILFE

HEBREERK

KRARIR—ETENFRA=-++tH
BEARE-NAN—FARAER
REAMKZBERREER AT
MEBEITRONEEHRER SR
BRARI([BERZPT]) £ o RAA]
2 a9 EEE AL Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
Bermuda ° NA R E B & EM IR
BBEFEEE23REET L1612
1601-2 &2 8-10%E » HiFRKR R BB
ERMERERAR (—HEREBE
THE(RBEXHS ) T
ZBRAT) -

ARA T BXBRIREER  H
ARz EBEBHNEE T
HARMIEEAT -

EFEEEE

(a) SFEEH
W ELRE P FBMERIIBESE
gHMmAog((EA2MA
g)EMMBEREENK
EEB( BB mELE
Al ke EmaEmaEs
BBV BREER) BELE
ER(THEBGEER ] k&
B BAEARERAUNER
AEH (BB EDIFE622F) BT
HEZHEAREERER - It
FRE M BEMERIMETH AN
BHEMBAT EWHRRD 2
HRAEERT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)
The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
and interpretations which are or have become
effective. It also issued certain new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation
(“New HKFRSs"), which are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group (as defined
hereinafter). Note 3 provides information on
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements included
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group's interests in
associates and joint ventures made up to 31
December each year.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise
indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

b) GABEHRR EREE

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investment
properties and financial guarantee contract are
stated at their fair value as explained in notes
2(h) and 2(k) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
orderly transactions between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristic of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS
16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

— Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

— Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(9]

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 5.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more or the
three elements of control listed above.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over
the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e  the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e right arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling () B ATRIEERER (F)

interests (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair values of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with note 2(k).

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiaries is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2())).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exits only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group'’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKFRS 9 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group'’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures (d) BEQATRREELE(E)

(continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate or a joint venture, or when the
investment is classified as held for sale. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate or
joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interests
in associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interests if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

In the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, interests in associate and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment loss
(see note 2(j)).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

2. TEEFTEEGE)

(d) BEQATRESEREE)

ERBERAZRERBRE
BOETRATNRABLEY
RARAREE D2 RE
# 7 o 8 B 48 4 PR 25
%o AL En e
B ATETEENE -

NN SETE IR0 NG
BERRZEEEEST X &
BERERIER - MERNE
fi, 2 W s HE R B HR R
D WAk BRENEE
HEEESIBERENHEE
B AREAEKZKEK
BRI PIEH DB ERS -

EREEREAREZBER
ARAEEEETRSR - A
BERBRELELERSHME
2N R B R EER S QA
KA B AR E &
B2BERT hERAKEZ
iR e MR AR -

RAEBEZHRAFBERRE
N REBERRIREEEY
RS IR A AT IRE B B R
(RHIEE2()) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(e) Goodwill (e) BHE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each cash
generating unit (“CGU(s)") or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(j)). In respect of
associate or joint venture, the carrying amount
of goodwill is included in the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate or joint venture
and the investment as a whole is tested for
impairment whenever there is objective
evidence of impairment (see note 2(j)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of a business combination or an investment in
an associate or joint venture is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a CGU of an associate or a joint
venture, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2())).

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds on disposal
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
life at the following rates per annum:

Building 2.5%

Leasehold improvements Over lease terms

Furniture, fittings 18% — 33'3%
and office equipment

Motor vehicles 30%

Motor yacht 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
There is no depreciation imposed on the
freehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(9) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) () BILEE (BERR)

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, identified
on business combinations are capitalised at their
fair values. They represent mainly trademark
and relationship with customers. Subsequent to
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Client list 15 years

The asset’s useful lives and their amortisation
method are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
not amortised. The intangible asset and its
status are reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support indefinite useful life. Should the useful
life of an intangible asset change from indefinite
to finite, the change would be accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for such
purposes). Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value. All of the
Group'’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gain and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentives received,;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

e  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
or inventory in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9") and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability comprise:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following expected
payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (prior to adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases
Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the
commencement date at amounts equal to the
Group’s net investment in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those
incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are
included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. TEEFTEEGE)

0]

HE (%)
FEEEREFBEAN(R=Z-H
F-A-—BRMNBBUBERSE
RIS 16 57 A1)
REHEN TN AREERA A
BERZEERRER - (FRER
IR EREN D K EH
S HE AN ERAER S
WA ERX

AEBEREBEA

HENZE KT E

EHASAEENHEN AR
MEFKLLHE - WHEHRR
5 Fr 5 #E BV 48 K BB 0 LR K% [E]
BEZTEEA RN
RABERE - FIBEEMEED

BAKENHE -

MEME T RKAEANKE
R FLA B HIRER R R UGRR
HeBERSEXNBENEREF
B UERZHEHERSHRX
FTE - BREERAAR (BBERE K
R EAEENEEAAR
BRI FFAREREFENE
RETEFR - FERADEKES
A URBRASEARRE
EMAREEREFENEEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥R

145



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)
Classification and measurement of leases
(continued)

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Interest and rental income which are derived
from the Group’s ordinary course of business
are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a

contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15
to allocate the consideration in a contract to
lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

The Group as a lessor (prior to adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019)

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of
the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
or return on the Group's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures;

— goodwill; and
— investment properties

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss is whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the CGU to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
CGUs are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the Group's statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the
financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are
measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group may
make the following irrevocable election/
designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset:

(i)

(1)

the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if
certain criteria are met; and

the Group may irrevocably designate
a debt investment that meets the
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and effective interest
method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the
relevant period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method (continued)

For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. assets
that are credit-impaired on initial
recognition), the effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the
gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, a credit
adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows,
including expected credit losses, to
the amortised cost of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method (continued)

The amortised cost of a financial
asset is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, adjusted for any
loss allowance. The gross carrying
amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset
before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+T-A=+—BILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method (continued)

Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For
financial assets other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset. If, in subsequent
reporting periods, the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method (continued)

For purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, the Group
recognises interest income by
applying the credit-adjusted effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from initial
recognition. The calculation does not
revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset
subsequently improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit
or loss and is included in the “other
revenue and gains — interest
income” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

o Investments in equity
instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Group
designates an equity investment
that is neither held for trading
nor a contingent consideration
arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCI on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classitfication of financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Debt instruments that do not
meet the amortised cost criteria
or the FVTOCI criteria are
classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that
meet either the amortised cost
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria
may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition
inconsistency (so called
‘accounting mismatch’) that
would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has
not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets
that are denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of
each reporting period. Specifically:

for financial assets measured at

amortised cost that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss; and

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+T-A=+—BILFE

2. TEEFTEEGE)

(k) =@ TH(E)

(i) MKEEE)
BB EERSE(E)
(i) HEAFEGAEBDLS
Wﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ
N6 B8 K
piNE =S Co 1 /N
FEFAHA
2 m WS
MEKIAESD
MhAEATE
FABEme It
Gh - FFE B H
B S R 14 3K %
NFEFAH
i, 2 U = K
HHEBEIEA
Rk R
AT AL
NEEFAE
&= Al It
& A B B 3K
BERLRAE
TREEFE
ﬁ?i%ﬁ
R E W
%Eﬁ%i%
FEFHERT
—H(EARI=g
FHEREE ]) o AR
EEIFARETF
FREHITEAE
AR N FEE
ABEs ©

xk

SNE et K TR
ASNEETERN M EERN
FREEAZINEETE - I
BREREHRNAEER
BmeE - ARMmE

o  HRTBRIETEE
B R R A B AN E T
ENMKEE [EX
ZRNEREPER
&

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥R

157



158

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

(continued)

e for financial assets measured at
FVTPL that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL(s)") on
financial assets which are subject to
impairment (including trade and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture). The
amount of ECLs is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables and lease receivables.
The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL when there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think
tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following
information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular
financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor, or the
length of time or the extent to
which the fair value of a
financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

° existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’ s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE—

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

(continued)

e significant increases in credit
risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

e an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of
the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and
supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(1) the financial instrument has a
low risk of default;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

(continued)

(2) the debtor has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near
term; and

(3) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when the asset
has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance
with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an
internal rating of ‘performing’.
Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial
position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for
internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that
meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of
financial covenants by the
debtor; or

e information developed internally
or obtained from external
sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into
account any collateral held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the
Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued) (k) €@ A (&)
(i) Financial assets (continued) (i) MKEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) BB EERE (&)

(i)~ Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event (see (ii)
above);

(©) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it becomes probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a
function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of
the specific future financing needs of
the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is
estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable,
the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS
16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
If the Group has measured the loss
allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in
the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach
was used.

Derecoqgnition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Compound instruments

The component parts of convertible notes
issued by the Group are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for a similar
non-convertible instrument. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at
the instrument’s maturity date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(k) €®mIA (&)
(i) MBEENREDS(H)

(continued)

Compound instruments (continued)

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount of
the liability component from the fair value
of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible loan
notes, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to accumulated losses.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible loan notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible loan notes using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies,
and financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group, are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set
out below.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i)
contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination, (ii) held-for-
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are
measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity
(continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are
denominated in a foreign currency and are
measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss
for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE—

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. \Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

(n) Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

(i)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(n) FrE% (&)

(n) Income tax (continued)

(ii) Deferred tax (i) EEFIE
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary SEBHRREPZEE
differences between the carrying amounts NeEERmEEBENE

of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such
investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax for leasing transactions in which the
Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-
use assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Income tax (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. A
performance obligation represents a goods or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

2. TEEFTEEGE)

(o)

(p)

BERIAREE
EARERBEFRAARIER
EBESHEEEE - METZ
BEXAA LR Z T HEEN
@ MBER] S TR - IR
AEERES B IEMBE
FERBE - WE B RHHEE
BEAE  BESABITEE
TBHIFHR X 2 BRET 5 -

ENKARER 2 H B A
a0 RE B RRE Al S A AT
B BRIEA B a5 2 7] BE
R BRIARBEZEER
HARIE - BERTEEA—
REBRAKEMF 2 BEHD
HERBEETE  BRIFEN
&N s 2 AT REMERR )N - &
AT ERBRSAREE -

Iy 2 TR
REBEFEMBHREEAF5
% ARBRTREBENRER
(Satith) R Y s - BNEREFE
BHETHBZERERBTZ
[ZEHE] BRTEPE - BA
B —RRREEmRS (3
—#EmIIRF) X—FKIXK
BUER < RS Mk R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued)

(p) WETERE (M)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’'s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’'s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and a
contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates
them transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

(i)  Travel-related service fee income
— Revenue from the sale of air tickets is
recognised at a point in time when
the booking tickets are delivered to
and have been accepted by the
customers.

— Revenue from the sale of tour
packages is recognised at a point in
time when travel arrangements have
been booked and confirmed with
customers.

— Revenue from the sale of group tours
is recognised at a point in time of
group departure.

(i)  Rental income in respect of investment
properties under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised at point in time when control
of the properties is delivered to buyers.
The Group receives deposits from buyers
when signed the sale and purchase
agreements. The deposits received from
the contracts prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are
recognised as contract liabilities.

Management fee income is recognised
when the amounts are measurable and
the ultimate collections are reasonable
assumed.

Interest income is recognised on a time
apportioned basis using the effective
interest method.

Services income is recognised when
services are provided.

Other income consists of revenue earned
based on volume sales through various
online ticket processing systems and is
recognised when it is measurable and all
contractual obligations have been fulfilled.
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(vii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(q) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual entity, transactions in currencies other
than the Company'’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(and attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Foreign currencies (continued)

(r)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised as being
directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2. TEEFTEEGE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
E-NEFET-A=+—BILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties (continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of

(b)

the

following conditions applies:

(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources
or obligations between related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group's chief operating decision maker
(“CODM") for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

Stock of properties

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
the cost of land, development expenditure and
other directly attributable expenses. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
determined by management based on prevailing
market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective on 1
January 2019

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time, the following New HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning on 1 January 2019:

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment,
Curtailment
or Settlement
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term interests in
Associates
and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments

Except as described below, the application of the
New HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”
(“HKFRS 16")

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17
“Leases” ("HKAS 17"), and the related
interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”
("HKFRS 16") (continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 16

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 4 “"Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease” and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not
reassessed contracts which already existed prior to
the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at
amounts equal to the related lease liabilities by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”
(“"HKFRS 16") (continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on
lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

i. relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
as an alternative of impairment review;

ii. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial
application;

iii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application;

iv. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment. Specifically, discount rate for
certain leases of office premises in Hong Kong
and retail shops in Canada were determined on
a portfolio basis; and

v.  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining
the lease term for the Group’s leases with
extension and termination options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”
("HKFRS 16") (continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

On transition, the Group has made the following
adjustments upon application of HKFRS 16:

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rates applied are
approximately ranged from 3.4% to 4.0%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies

of application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”
("HKFRS 16") (continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from

initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

EREEMBREERN(H
EMBREEL ) 2 HETE
A RASFT A (8])

ERERMBHREERE 165
[HE]([EBMBHRELEDZE 16
RDEMABRENTEREE ()
BEREREBMBEREENE 165
EENBEBRETERE (H)
(EBZATNA (B)

HK$'000
BT IT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZE—N\F+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2018 FIT I TR A48 & T B IR 10,857
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant R-ZE—NF—HA—HBixiE#E
incremental borrowing rates HEBEFERMELN
as at 1 January 2019 HERE 10,680
Less: commitments relating to leases exempt B EERRE R
from capitalisation: MHEMERERAE -
—  short-term leases and other leases — R HIFEE & g A
with remaining lease term ending RZZE—NF
on or before 31 December 2019 +—-A=+—Hsk
ZAlfE R EMmIEE (321)
— leases of low-value assets — KEEEEHE (265)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NE—A—BH®
HE&E 10,094
Analysed as: DR
Current liabilities mEaE 4,999
Non-current liabilities EmEBBIE 5,095
10,094
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”
("HKFRS 16") (continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the
following types of assets:

EREEMBREERN(H
EMBREEL ) 2 HETE
A RASFT A (8])

ERERMBHREERFE 165
[HE]([EBMBHRELEDZE 16
RDEMABRENTEREE ()
BEREREBMBREERNE 165
EENBEBRETERE (F)
{ERAFA (B)

HEUTEREEAMOCHERER
REE

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

—E-hEF —TNEF

+=-—HA=+—H —HA—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Rented premises MEWE 5,692 10,094
Total right-of-use assets EREEEHE 5,692 10,094

The Group applies judgement to determine the lease
term for lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
includes renewal option. The assessment of whether
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise such
options impacts the lease term, which significantly
affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets recognised.

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 January 2019. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been
included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 16 “Leases”
("HKFRS 16") (continued)

Transition and summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

EREEMBREERN(H
EMBREEL ) 2 HETE
A RASFT A (8])

ERERMBHREERE 165
[HE]([EBMBHRELEDZE 16
RDEMABRENTEREE ()
BEREREBMBREERNE 165
EENBEBRETERE (H)
(ERAFA (B)

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
RZZE—NEF
FERIR —RA—BRE
—T-N\F BEMBWmE
+=ZA=+—H~H ERIFE165%
Z2HNEREE HE HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and M - BB RS
equipment 26,083 10,094 36,177
Current liabilities nREEE
Lease liabilities HEARE - 4,999 4,999
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HMEAE - 5,095 5,095

The transition to HKFRS 16 has no impact on the
accumulated losses at 1 January 2019. For the
purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended
31 December 2019, movements in working capital
have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019
as disclosed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (CONTINUED)

New HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following New
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material?
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business’

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Reform?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of
(Amendments) Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

U Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

In addition to the above New HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was
issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the New HKFRSs mentioned in the
consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company (the “Director(s)”) anticipate that the
application of all other New HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. €@TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments () eI EZ¥EHR
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i i
—E-hEF —E-)\F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-~
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets measured at 1R 4R ANET 2 HY
amortised cost s EE 368,811 424,960
Financial liabilities BEEE
Amortised costs B SRR 239,164 311,113
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) MEEKREERAFE
values
The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity AEERAGH T A ALY
risk and market risk (including currency risk, EERR ABEERKET
interest rate risk and other price risk) from its BZERk (BEEERE - FXE
use of financial instruments. This note presents B e B MO (EAE ER) o ANHIFEH
information about the Group’s exposure to EASEEH L ERERE - K
each of the above risks, the Group'’s objectives, SEHRFTERBEERR ZH
policies and processes for measuring and T BEKER URAEE
managing risk, and the Group’s management ERERZER -
of capital.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
E-hF+ZRA=+—BILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

BHE—
4.

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from bank balances and deposits, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables
and amounts due from associates and
joint venture. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the
credit risk is considered to be low as the
counterparties are reputable banks. The
existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, ECL rate of
cash at bank is assessed to be close to zero
and no provision was made as of 31
December 2019.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime ECL
provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the ECLs, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk
and ECL. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, trade and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture that are
individually significant have been
separately assessed for impairment. The
Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on
the background and reputation of the
customers, historical settlement records
and past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received
from individual customers in relation to
sales of air tickets and service fee income
from provision of travel-related services.
The Group's trade receivables majority arise
from sales of air tickets to the customers.
As at the end of the year, the top five
customers and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 28% and 4%
respectively (2018: approximately 56% and
9%), of the Group's trade and other
receivables balance. In view of the history
of business dealings with the customers
and the sound collection history of the
receivables due from them, management
believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivables balance due from these debtors
saved for the debtor related to the impaired
trade receivables disclosed in the below.
Management makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the
debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all of the Group’s customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group'’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group'’s
different customer bases.

As the amount of ECL were minimal
resulted of impairment analysis performed,
the Directors were of opinion that no loss
allowance for trade receivables recognised
as at 31 December 2019 under HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

For other receivables as well as amounts
due from associates and a joint venture,
management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Directors
believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group's outstanding
balance of other receivables.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirement and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

4. £@I A (E)

(b) MBERERERAFEE

(i) RBERMR(E)

At 31 December 2019
R=F-nE+ZA=1-8
Weighted More than More than Total
average Within Tyearbut  2yearshut  contractual
effective 1year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
il 3871 -£Rg BE-F BERE  ADRMR
ERAE REX  BORWE  EORIE REREER REE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRI AT ¥R BT ¥t
Trade and other payables ERESEAR
Hft R - 39,44 - - 39,44 39,424
Bank loans (note) BER (W) 362 201,018 - - 201,018 194,000
Lease iabilties il 39 5373 297 129 5,799 5,740
245815 297 129 246,241 239,164
At 31 December 2018
RZZ-\F+ZR=1-R
Weighted More than More than Total
average Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
effective 1 year or less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
il 252] —ER5 ER-F BARE  ANRER
ik BEX EIRRE  EIRRE  ReNELE Faf
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BT BRI xS
Trade and other payables ERESEAR
Hft R - 49613 - - 49613 49613
Bank loans (note) e W) 339 230,029 - - 230,09 222,500
Loan from a director and controlling ~ —ZEERERRE S5
shareholder 5.13 - 41,001 - 41,001 39,000
279,642 41,001 - 320,643 311,113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBRRMET (&

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. £FITH(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i)

(b) MEEBERERQFEGE)

REE S EE (8)

Note:

There is a clause for repayment on demand under the
facility letters regarding the bank loans granted to
the Group. Thus, the bank loans are categorised into
the time band of “within 1 year or on demand” in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2019, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
and interest of bank loans was approximately
HK$201,018,000 (2018: approximately
HK$230,029,000). Taking into account of the
Group's financial position, the Directors believe that
the bank exercising its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment is remote and such bank loans
shall be repaid one year after the end of the reporting
period. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will be
in the amount of approximately HK$201,018,000
(2018: approximately HK$230,029,000) calculated
with weighted average effective interest rate.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, it was
not probable that the counterparties to
the financial guarantee will claim under
the contracts. Consequently, the carrying
amount of the financial guarantee contract
of approximately HK$1.6 million (2018:
approximately HK$2.3 million) has not
been presented above.

fifa -

BRR T AEBRITERNHE
IR T 5] B B K E B2 IR
o AUt - ZIRITEHR LEXE
HHA A ER [ —FRAZLE
B BFRMAR c R=ZFE—NEF
+ZHA=+—H ZRTEHZ
REEB A& R F B BB EM
201,018,0007C (ZE—/1F : 4
B 230,029,000T) ° AZE A
EEFZHBMRT  EFRA R
TITIER BB ERAFERZ
A[BEMER W - MABRRITEHA
RIFEHAR—FelHE - BE=
E—ANFF+-_H=+—HIF
B BT BRI E 2
A& R FEH 27 AL BEATA)
A 8 #201,018000T( = E
— /U : % #230,029,000
JT) °

RZE—NFERZZT—N
F+—A=+—8 " #%
BRZR ST TR 8R
BEXIEHRR - FAilt -
BERGHOZEERELY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (continued)

4. £@I A (E)

(b) BEEBERERQFEGE)

At 31 December 2019

(i)

REE S EE (8)

At 31 December 2018

R-ZE-N%F RZE-N\%F
+=ZA=+-H +=-A=+-H
Expiry Expiry
HK$'000 period HK$'000 period
BYT T ERE BB JE i £
Guarantee given to bank in BtI% T —HIE# &
respect of banking RAZHIT
facilities granted to BMEMBRT
an associate fe 2 Eix 490,000 2022 490,000 2022
Currency risk (i) E¥EE

Presently, there is no hedging policy with
respect to the foreign exchange exposure.
The Group's transactional currency are
HK$ and Canadian dollars (“CAD") as
substantially all the revenue are in HK$
and CAD. The Group’s transactional
foreign exchange exposure was
insignificant.

Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk
is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, SRITH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)
(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)

(b) BiFEEBEERERATHEE)

(iv) FIRm@E(H)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to floating-rate borrowing.
The Group's income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk
Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis set out below has
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 December 2019 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$970,000 (2018: approximately
HK$1,113,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its floating-rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4. £@I A (E)

(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BIEEBREERAFEE)
values (continued)
(v) Fair value (v) DFE
The fair values of the Group’s financial REEVBEENVKA
assets and financial liabilities are B2 AFETIIRE —RE
determined in accordance with generally Bz EEBEAETE I
accepted pricing models based on IHEL A AR BT S
discounted cash flow analysis using prices RGEBRAFIRETZE
or rates from observable current market BRIRIAEMEDNETHE ©
transactions. The Directors consider that BEERE RNE—NF
the carrying amounts of the financial EZZETE—-—NF+ A
assets and financial liabilities recorded at —t+t—HBREEMBHmE
amortised cost in the consolidated financial TREE SR AL 8 2 BT B
statements are not materially different ENVEAEZERER
from their fair values as at 31 December ERNFETESESAZE
2019 and 2018, except for the following M54 gt T EBIRRI -
financial instrument, for which their HEEEEE - A FEMAF
carrying amounts and fair value and the BEERFEEAT
level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed
below:
Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2019
Carrying Fair categories into:
amount at value at REZ-AFT-A=T-BH
31December 31 December AYEREARNT
2019 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZE-0F ZE-NE
T2A=t-B +2A=1-H
WEEE  WATE 54 3R 94
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BT BRI ABTR
Financial quarantee contract B ERAL) 1,612 - - - -
Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2018
Carying Fair . Gtegoriesinto:
amount at value at ﬁé:?—)\i:ﬁ:#—ﬁ#\]
31 December 31 December AEEESRMT
2018 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
)\ —F-)\§
TZA=t-R +ZA=+-H
HREE MATE £ £-8 =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETT BB BETT AR
Financial quarantee contract ST ERAL 2,56 04 - - 04
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies which are described in note
2, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed
below:

0]

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and freehold land and
buildings

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which
requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. Changes
in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying amount of the
assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group use
judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on
whether there has been impairment of
intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2(j). The
recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of
the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value in
use calculations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. SiH bt R HE (&)
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty (a) EEFTHBAEZEZETERIR
(continued) (48)
(iv) Useful lives of property, plant and (iv) % BERREZAE

equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on as straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment
regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded
during the reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking
into account the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or services output of the
assets. The depreciation expenses for
future periods are adjusted prospectively if
there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(v) Fair value of investment properties
As set out in note 17, investment
properties were revalued as at 31
December 2019 on an open market value
existing use basis by the independent
professional valuers, whose have among
their staff, fellow members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyor (the
“Valuer(s)"). Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and
uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each of

reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, the
Group considers information from a variety

of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature,
condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contract),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(v) Fair value of investment properties
(continued)

(b)

recent prices of similar properties on
less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those
prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flow.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s
estimation of the fair value include those
related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates,
expected future market rents and future
maintenance costs.

5.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in

applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some
assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the end
of each reporting period. These estimates
involve assumptions about such items as cash
flows and discount rates used. The Group's
estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

(i) Impairment test for interests in

associates

The Group completed its annual
impairment test for interests in associates
by comparing the recoverable amount of
interests in associates to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2019. The
Group has engaged the Valuer to carry out
a valuation of the interests in associates as
at 31 December 2019 based on the value
in use calculations. This valuation uses
cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and
a pre-tax discount rate of approximately
8% (2018: approximately 8%). The cash
flows beyond the ten-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2018:
3%) growth rate for the casino and hotel
industries in which are operated by
associates.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

0]

Impairment test for interests in
associates (continued)

Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken
into account the business plan going
forward. The valuation depends upon an
estimate of future cash flows from the
interests in associates and other key
assumptions, which are based on the
Directors’ best estimates. The valuation is
sensitive to these parameters. Changes in
these parameters could lead to a material
revision of the valuation which may have
effects on the net assets and results of the
Group.

5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-R-AE+-AS+—HLFE
5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting

policies (continued)

(i) Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in sales of air tickets.
Upon application of HKFRS 15, the Group
reassessed whether the Group should
continue to recognise revenue on gross
basis based on the requirements in HKFRS
15. The Group concluded that the Group
acts as the principal for such transactions
as it controls the specified goods before it
is transferred to the customer after taking
into consideration indicators such as the
Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling
the promise to provide the air tickets. The
Group has inventory risk with respect to
the air tickets because the Group
committed itself to obtain the air tickets
from the airline before obtaining a
contract with a customer to purchase the
air tickets. This is because the Group is
obliged to pay the airline for that right
regardless of whether it is able to obtain a
customer to resell the air tickets to or
whether it can obtain a favourable price
for the ticket.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports which provide information about
components of the Group. This information are
reported to and reviewed by the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM considers the business from both

geographic and service perspective.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The Group has presented the following two
reportable segments.

(a)

Travel business: sales of air tickets and provision
of travel-related services.

Property investment business: receiving rental
streams from leasing office premises and sales
of properties in Hong Kong.

Segment results, assets and liabilities
The travel reportable operating segment derives
their revenue primarily from sales of air tickets
and provision of travel-related services.
Geographically, management considers the
performance of the travel business in North
America.

The property investment reportable operating
segment derives their revenue from leasing
office premises and sales of properties in Hong
Kong.

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment
information disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements has been prepared in a
manner consistent with the information used by
the Group’s CODM for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE_ZT—NF+-A=+—HLEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Segment profit represents the profit from each
segment without allocation of corporate
administrative costs such as directors’
emoluments, share of results of associates and
joint ventures and corporate finance costs. To
arrive at reportable segment profit, the
management additionally provides segment
information concerning interest income, finance
costs and major non-cash items such as
depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses derived from reportable segments.
Unallocated corporate income mainly comprises
amortisation on financial guarantee contract,
management fee income from an associate,
interest income and other sundry income. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. Taxation is not
allocated to reportable segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than amount due from an associate,
interests in associates and joint ventures.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include part
of the property, plant and equipment as well as
cash and cash equivalents of the central
administration companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER(EFE)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DHB¥E  BEERERE (H)
(continued)
All liabilities are allocated to reportable MBRBRHAIRERTERD
segments other than corporate liabilities. 2 XA ERIRIN KD
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly include REEEEFEBREMBER
financial guarantee contracts and part of other BRI KRR RITHRA RI#EE 2 &
payables borne by the central administration 19 ELfth FE AT AR X
companies.
Information regarding the Group's reportable E@$¢T§W$%I%ﬁ“‘%ﬁi
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for RERMEBALREEUES
the purposes of resource allocation and ,\/J?&HHEA*BEEEZM
assessment of segment performance for the WOREREHSAT -

year is set out below:

Travel Property investment Total

] NERE Ait
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
- Z\FE ZE-E ZE\F ZRnE D3R
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
YT BETT BRI BT BETR BT

Revenue from external customersand ~ HSZEF 2 MHRAT

reportable segment revenue 25AMKE 1,128,574 1,090,19 18,797 30,082 114131 1,120,278
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AT2HEIB(HE)/BA (3,939 2,029 10,968 37679 7033 39,708
Share of results of joint ventures Yt £ 3 761 597
Share of results of associates E N 116,757 68,110
Unallocated corporate income RARGEMA 1,254 2,569
Unallocated corporate expenses AORLERR (47,046) (55,068)
Finance costs BRI (4,565) (1,703)
Consolidated profit before taxation ~ BHASEEH 74,194 54213
Taxation i - -
Consolidated profit for the year REEGARA 74,19 54213
Reportable segment assets ATEHRAINEE 89,352 90,219 565,967 631,507 655,319 71,726
Unallocated corporate assets FAMLEEE
— Interests in associates —W“‘a AR 624,188 605,074
— Interests in joint ventures —RAEREER 6,069 5308
— Corporate assets —(PE4E 99,459 50,641

1,385,035 1,382,749

Reportable segment liabilities BFRHRINEE 33,186 4097 137,154 128,517 170,340 169,489
Unallocated corporate liabilities FAMLEER
— Corporate liabilties —PEAR 70,436 145,139

240,776 314,628
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other segment information

6.

7 EBE R (

=)

n

(b) EAthzHEH

Property Other
Travel investment corporate entities Total
Hei nERE At ¥ER At
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AF ZE\§ ZB-pF ZE2\§ ZB-AFE R\ ZE-naf )\
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT B¥Tr E¥Tn BT B¥tn BEfr B¥Tn BEfx
Bank interest income EGEILON 5 Q 1 1 145 150 198 193
Fair value gain on RENEZATE
investment properties Wa - - 1,200 27,300 - - 1,200 27,300
Depreciation: neE:
— owned property, plant —BENZ BRER
and equipment i (485) (554) - = @707 (3,248) (3192 (3802)
— right-of-use assets —FRESE (368) - - - (4,775) - (5,143) -
Reversal of impairment loss A TFIRERA L HE
recognised o BEED -
— intangble assets —BVEE - 3164 - - - - - 3164
— amount due from a —Eh-fHa%
joint venture RETE - - - - - 1,500 - 1,500
Write-down of stock of properties #iEMEFE - - (14,52) - - - (14,52) -
Finance costs BB (15) (39) (4,661) (2.261) (4,565) (1,703) (9,241) (4,003)
Additions to non-current assets*  REFEBEE* 2,431 17 - 148,000 5 351 2,484 148,468
L Additions to non-current assets only include the RNEIFRBEEER BIERFA

additions to property, plant and equipment (but
excluded right-of-use assets) as well as investment

properties during the year.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. TEBEHR (&
(CONTINUED)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue () WzmEosE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE¥TT BT T

Revenue from contracts REBEEFFITHZWE :

with customers:
Recognised at a point in time & — 1] 2] 2 1837

Travel business: IRPFHET
Sales of air tickets SHEMR 1,077,618 1,038,733
Travel and related service R 3EE N AR AR 75 B U A
fee income 50,956 51,463
1,128,574 1,090,196
Property investment business: 3 15& ¥ 74 ¢
Sales of properties SHE W= 8,490 22,076
1,137,064 1,112,272
Revenue from other Hi 2Rz W -
sources:
Rental income e WA 10,307 8,006
Total revenue Wiz 1,147,371 1,120,278
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(d) Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s non-current
assets. The geographical location of customers
refers to the location at which the services were
provided. The Group’s non-current assets
included property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets,
interests in associates and joint ventures.

The geographical location of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties is
based on the physical location of the asset
under consideration. In the case of intangible
assets, it is based on the location of operations

6. DHEER (&

(d) HEEHR

ATROANEERBINLER
ZWas s (AR E 2 IFRE
BEZWEMEIN - TP Z
o [ 20 B 45 B AR T 2 b R
AEBZIERDEERRY
X BEISRE REDE -
BREE RBERFAREE
ERZES

ME - BERREARKED
B AEREE
ZERMWHREE - NEET
BE RNZSZEBETLEEED
2R EMERELE - NER

NN E= N s P 5

to which these intangibles are allocated. In the [ty lie=dfa
A EME R RaERR

case of interests in associates and joint ventures,

it is based on the location of operations of such ZIEEIRBER ©
associates and joint ventures.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RANMBEF 2 iz FRBEE
At 31 December
Rt=R=t-H
2019 2018 2019 2018
“B-NE T\ ZE-hE —FN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEgTT AT B%Tr AT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &% (Fitest) 18,797 30,082 468,321 464,214
Macau P - - 624,188 605,074
North America b= 1,128,574 1,090,196 20,727 17,292
The People’s Republic of China 13 A Rt F1E
("PRC") (T EL ) - - 115 128
1,147,371 1120278 1,113,351 1,086,708
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Major customers
Revenue from customers arising from travel
business segment who over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group is set out as follows:

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

2 EER (&)

(e) XEEF
EEAEEBINE 10% KA £
REREXEBED BB W=
;YT -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BET T
Customer A EPA 132,586 —*
Customer B =FB 115,277 —*

Customer C ®RPC —* 132,333
@ The corresponding revenue did not contribute over @ REF-—NER—F—/\F Z
10% of the total revenue of the Group in 2019 and B2 MBI a5 5 Bl Tl 2K 52

2018 respectively. FB a5 10% LA E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

7. REVENUE 7. W&
The principal activities of the Group are engaged in AEB T EXB AN ERELR
the travel-related and property investment N EZ - E T X
businesses.
Revenue represents sales of air tickets, service fee WS FETH S M2 - 12 ik 27 48 B8 Ak
income from provision of travel-related services, B2RBEBWA  HEWAKEE
rental income as well as sales of properties. The ME o RNENRN - KIED R UL N E
amount of each significant category of revenue RAZETEfERNEISENT ¢
recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue from contracts with RHEZFTHZWE :
customers:
Recognised at a point in time FRE— (1A [ 2 R R
Sales of air tickets HEME 1,077,618 1,038,733
Travel and related service fee B % } A8 B AR 75 B WA
income 50,956 51,463
Sales of properties HEME 8,490 22,076
1,137,064 1,112,272
Revenue from other sources:  H At 3FE 2 Wz :
Rental income He WA 10,307 8,006
1,147,371 1,120,278
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS

8. HfttlzmR WA

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BT T
Other revenue H fth Uy 2
Bank interest income |ITHEHA 198 193
Management fee income =R Eili N e
from an associate EEEIWA 37(@a) 357 274
Other income H A A 2,904 634
3,459 1,101
Other gains Hegg A
Amortisation of financial BTG IEIR A #O 8 28
guarantee contract 644 644
Reversal of impairment loss  Ht T %I Z B IER Z RE
recognised on: EiaREmE -
— intangible assets — B EE 16 - 3,164
— amount due from ajoint — EW—fHE %
venture PEEFKIE - 1,500
644 5,308
Total =1 4,103 6,409
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-NFT-_A=t—HLFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BR®ADEA
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ B AT S A B kR (5EA) TFIE
(crediting) as follows: B :
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(@) Finance costs (a) BIFERRA
Interest on bank loans IRITERZHE 7,835 3,651
Interest on other loan HEMERZHE - 39
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBZNE 138 -
Interest on loan from a director —REEFRIER
and controlling shareholder BRERERZHE
(note 37(a)) (K13t 37(a) 1,268 313
9,241 4,003
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRA
Salaries, wages and other e ITENEAM
benefits (including directors’ BH(BREES
emoluments) <) 36,122 35,330
Contributions to defined TE R BURIK
contribution retirement plan FTE| 2 3K 1,244 1,206
37,366 36,536
(c) Other operating expenses () Htt&KEmMx
Write-down of stock of properties MR EFE
(note 20) (Kat20) 14,524 -
(d) Other items (d) HMEB
Auditors’ remuneration % EX A BN &
— audit services — ZEPRTE 925 925
— other services — H A AR 7% 280 260
Depreciation E -
— owned property, plant and —BEYE -
equipment B e 3,192 3,802
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 5,143 -
Operating lease rentals KEHERS
— properties — W% - 8,012
— plant and equipment — W KA - 471
— short-term lease — RHMEE 3,079 -
— low-value assets —1EE1ETEZ§F 267 -
Net exchange (gain)/loss HNESFE (Wzs)
==l (514) 245
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - HE
plant and equipment N2 BB 57 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 10. RirEEZR2HIE

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement

() REEEBERZBEZR

of profit or loss represents:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T)N\&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Current tax BNEARE I8 - -
Deferred tax RIER TR - -
Tax charge IBF X - -

On 21 March 2018, the Legislative Council of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits of the corporations will be taxed at
8.25% and assessable profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made for both years as the Group has no
assessable profits in Hong Kong.

R—_E—NF=ZA=+—8"
PEFEBFTREILEE B
BT —EFERB(BE]) (B
TG BRI TEHIEZR])
5 1) B 2 5| AT 45 /R AR I Bt
Ko P ERR =T —N\F=
AZ+ N NBEEXEEE I
REBERHRTE - BRIBEMRR
FIFESRBAE  PENEBE
2,000,000 JT #) F& ZR 1t a2 I 4%
825% M - H B B ¥
2,000,000 JT#Y F& SR Bt M ¥ 42
16.5% B H - TE&ERFEAM
ZBHFEHHEENEEEBL
i I S HE AL B — B R 16.5%
B

P AN 5 [ 170 7 4 2 O AR £
EEBELERIB A
it BB BB RS BE LB
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss represents: (continued)
Canadian subsidiaries are subject to Canadian
Corporate Income Tax which comprises federal
and provincial income taxes. The net federal
income tax is calculated at 15% (2018: 15%)
and the provincial income tax is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant provinces. No
provision for Canadian Corporate Income Tax
has been made as the Group has no assessable
profit arising in Canada for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: no provision has been
made as the Group has utilised tax loss).

PRC subsidiary is subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2018: 25%). No provision
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
for both years as the Group has no assessable
profits arising in the PRC.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense
and accounting profit at applicable tax

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

10. REREiEER 2 BE (&)

(b) RBARRIE 2B EMX
EEEN2HRk

rates:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT TT
Profit before taxation B 5 BT v A1) 74,194 54,213
National tax on profit before  ZiEANBARXE
tax, calculated at the tax il Tz = W
rates applicable to profit in M RSN B ETIAR
the countries concerned (7.672) 1,915
Tax effect of share of results ~ FE(REEE A TIEE 2
of associates a2 19,265 11,238
Tax effect of share of results ~ JEIEAEEXE Y
of joint ventures MIETE 126 99
Tax effect of non-deductible ~ RNA[FFHAZ 2 BT E
expense 10,423 13,501
Tax effect of non-taxable BARGBRAZHIBLE
revenue (24,278) (21,388)
Tax effect of unrecognised ANERTIEEEZ
tax losses I & 2,428 794
Utilisation of tax losses BRATIEEE - (5,908)
Unrecognised temporary RIEREGR =58
differences (292) (251)
Tax expense for the year AREEFHRIBHRET - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Company Ordinance, Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the laws
of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules are as follows:

11.

EEME

IR B GBI 383(1) 16k
BESMNDER) RO (FREDE
622G E ) FH 288 M LR AT AH
BeESMEHINWT

NCING

Salaries, allowance and Retirement benefit
Directors' fee other benefits scheme contributions Total
£35S ¢ 2RREMER BB 8RS £it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AE ZER/\E ZB-pE R\ ZE-nE ZE-\F ZE-AE B
Name HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
%4 AETn  B%Tr  BETn AT ATn BETT #¥Tn A%Tn
Executive Directors HiTEE
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) 1518 (£/8) - - 960 160 18 3 978 163
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman BEX
(Deputy chairman) (#FE) - - 807 79 18 18 825 814
Non-executive Director FHEE
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle Bigt 144 120 - - - - 144 120
Independent Non-executive BUFsiEE
Directors
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann Lo 144 120 - - - - 144 120
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose e 144 120 - = - - 144 120
Chong Ming Yu ety 144 120 - - - - 144 120
576 480 1,767 956 36 2 2379 1,457
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(Co
Notes:

(@

(b)

NTINUED)

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
directors waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Director’s material interests in transaction, arrangement or
contract is stated as below:

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 December 2008 made
between the Company and Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
being a Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Mr. Yeung”), Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The
principal amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009. The Company paid the
interest of approximately HK$1,268,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: approximately HK$313,000) in
relation to this transaction. Other details of the transaction
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save for contracts amongst group companies and the
aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE_ZT—NF+-A=+—HLEFE

fifaz -

(a)

(b)

1. EEf < (E)
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=+ HILFE HEEFREFM
B - B FE R (2 F T
Bz - (A MAZEE KR IMA K
EER 42E - SIERBEBAE -

EBEERRG  THHAAHPZEAE
mEHT

REBEAXR D] HEFF AR AERRE
BEREE(BEED)R=ZFENF
+=A—HFZ%&  BELERE
A AR 200,000,000 5T .2 B HIE
ABEZEE LEELRTHRA A
B2 B TEXZEBF KL - )R
ZEENFHA+IA  ZEEH G
BZAe 2 BHEEBNERSEBE
290,000,000 ° B Z=F—NF+=
B=+—HIFE XRAIEFUR
5311 F.8 #E# 1,268,000 (= F
—JVHE : F3E#313,0000T) ° X 5.2
A F EERARE B KT 27 -
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LHRER °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 12. SR EBAEHMERESH

EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS AL
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(a) Five highest paid individuals () EEEEHFAL

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, one (2018: nil) was
executive Director, whose emoluments are

AEEABRSFALF  H
R—Z(ZT-N\F: &) HH
TES EMeCRERWE

disclosed in note 11. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2018: five) individuals, included
two (2018: two) senior management, are as

Me EpUB(ZEE— N\F:
AB)ALTEFRBIERG(ZZ
—N\F: WEB)=REEAES

follows: HEfe@mEaymT
2019 2018
—E-NE —ET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries, allowances and other ¥ & - 8L R E M2 F
benefits 3,591 4,547
Retirement benefit scheme RIKEFET B R
contributions 72 90
3,663 4,637

The emoluments of the four (2018: five) ZHE(ZE-—N\F: A% &
individuals with the highest emoluments are BEFATZMEN T T 5% E
within the following band: A -

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
—E-AF  —F)\HF
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 T 11,000,000 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to 711,000,001 TTE
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 7T - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 12. BREBAEMEREESH
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS AL (48)
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management of the Company (b) XARSREBEAR
The emoluments of the senior management of KATSMREEAEZMEN
the Company are within the following band: FRYEGE A :
Number of individuals
A"
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 Z %% 1,000,000 T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to 751,000,001 TE
HK$ 1,500,000 7% 1,500,000 7T - 1
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
No interim dividend was paid during the year (2018: FRITERMNFHAKRE(ZZE—N
nil). The Directors do not recommend any payment F:E) - EFTERRBEE_ZT
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December —NFE+ZA=+—BLEFEIKF
2019 (2018: nil). EERBRE(ZE—NF : &) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

14. SRER

AR RV s SRR A B TR
BRI TR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T)N\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit: BSF
Profit for the year attributable to ~ ANQ BIIR R FEIEANEE
the owners of the Company Y A 74,194 54,464
2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-N\F
‘000 ‘000
Fr T %
Number of shares: BREOER :
Weighted average number of STEGRERRBN
shares for the purpose of basic AR 17 N 15 2x
earnings per share 4,926,491 4,926,491

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 were the same as the
basic earnings per share. There were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years
presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

15. % - MEKRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Freehold fittings and
land and Leasehold office Motor Motor  Right-of-
building ~ improvements  equipment vehicles yacht  use assets Total
KAsR Bl %8
THRET BERE RELERE hiE BE RRREE ait
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS" 000 HK$" 000 HK$'000 HKS" 000 HK$ 000
ABTTL A¥Tn  REfn BT BETr BBt BETR
Cost B
At 1 January 2018 WZ%-/\§-A-H 1397 2490 1983 4918 20,047 - 43409
Additions AE - 9 264 195 - - 468
Disposals HeE = = (31) = = = (31)
Eichange alignment ER AR (1,060) (239) 48) @ - - (1,784)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-)\F
t-h=t-H 1291 2,261 1,734 5,109 20,047 - 42,062
Adjustments upon application B AR R £
of HKFRS 16 (note 3 F16RGBE (WH3) - - - - - 10,094 10,094
A1 lanuary 2019 (restated) R =F-AF-A-H
(&) 12,911 2261 1734 5,109 20047 10,094 52,156
Additions hE 2,027 329 120 8 - 699 3183
Disposals HE - n) (153) - - - (226)
Eichange alignment EiAE 486 107 01 1 - 5 860
At 31 December 2019 W-B-1E
tZh=1-A 15,424 2,624 1,922 5118 20,047 10,838 55,973
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3tHiE
At 1 January 2018 R=%-\E-A-R 2404 2119 1,781 3129 3,676 - 13,109
Charge for the year Engi 38 116 164 1,189 2,005 - 3802
Disposals e - - (31) - - - (31)
Exchange alignment EHE (204) (216) (430) () - - (901)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-)\E
1 January 2019 tZA=+-BR
“5-NE-A-A 2528 2,019 1,434 4317 5681 - 15,979
Charge for the year Engi n 8 147 638 2,003 5,143 8,335
Disposals HE - (17) (152) - - - (169)
Exchange alignment EiAR 101 8 PEY) 1 - 3 426
At 31 December 2019 RZE-RE
tZh=1-A 2,950 2174 1,661 4,956 7,684 5,146 215N
Carrying amount KaE
At 31 December 2019 RoE-fE
tZh=1-A 12474 450 261 162 12,363 5,692 31,402
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E
t-h=1-A 10,383 Ul 300 79 14,366 - 26,083
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - MENRE (8)

(CONTINUED)

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
+=—A=+—HB +=—A=+—H
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000
BT T BT T

Freehold land and building held ~ RAEBAIMBEEZHE 2
outside Hong Kong KAEREL I NIEF 12,474 10,383

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$5,740,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$5,692,000 as at 31 December
2019.

Details of total cash outflow of leases are set out in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

During the current year, the Group leases properties
for self-own use. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of one to three years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Trademark Client lists Total
wWiE EFRE &3t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTIT  ABTT BRI

Cost RS
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZFE—-N\F—H—H 27,078 7,569 34,647
Exchange alignment bEE 54, 5 B (2,043) (571) (2,614)

At 31 December 2018 and R —FT— \4&

1 January 2019 +=—A=+—8xk
—E-nF—H—H 25,035 6,998 32,033
Exchange alignment PE 5, S 937 262 1,199
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—h&F
+=-H=+—H 25,972 7,260 33,232

Accumulated amortisation R:H#EiE R RERE
and impairment losses

At 1 January 2018 R_E—-N\F—H—H (23,151) (7,569) (30,720)
Reversal of impairment loss  Ja({& E518 7 @l 3,164 — 3,164
Exchange alignment ME 3R 2 1,595 571 2,166

At 31 December 2018 and R —_T—N\&F

1 January 2019 +-—A=+—8K

—ZE—hEFE—HF—H (18,392) (6,998) (25,390)
Exchange alignment bE N FE R (688) (262) (950)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZEBE—NEF

+—-—HB=+—H (19,080) (7,260) (26,340)
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hF

+=-—A=+—H 6,892 - 6,892
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—NF

+=H=+—H 6,643 - 6,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

)

PSR R M= (AF)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE—

16.

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark

The trademark named as “Jade Tours” is a well-
known travel agency brand registered in Canada. The
Directors assessed that the trademark is having
indefinite useful lives because the trademark was
expected to contribute to net cash inflow indefinitely
and can be renewed by the Group at minimal cost.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the trademark by
comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The
Group has conducted a valuation of the trademark
based on the value in use calculations. With reference
to the valuations carried out by the Valuer, no
impairment loss has been recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: reversal of
impairment loss equivalent to approximately
HK$3,164,000). Any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of the
recoverable amount would result in impairment loss.

The valuation of the trademark is based on the relief-
from-royalty method and uses cash flow projections
based on financial estimates covering a five-year
period, the expected sales deriving from the
trademark in the travel CGU and a pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 23% (2018: approximately
26%). The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2018: 2%) growth
rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for travel markets in which the
Group operates. The values assigned to the above
assumptions reflect past experience and are
consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management believes
that the assumption is reasonably achievable.
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16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Client List

The Directors assessed that the client list is having 15
years of useful lives from the date of acquisition. The
carrying amount of the client list was fully impaired
in the year ended 31 December 2014. The
recognition of impairment loss is mainly contributed
by the increase in contributory charge of fixed assets.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

6. BLEE (&)

EFRE

EXMEEPREZAERENR
WHEHHRE15F - TFREZK
HEXRBEZ _ZT-—HOF+_-AH
=T -RALEFEEE2ERE- - ER
MEBREEZREEEEE BN
SN o

17. REYXE

Fair value HK$'000
4¥E BET T
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—-N\F—H—H 292,000
Acquisitions of assets through acquisition BB B ARES

of subsidiaries (note 33) BEE (Mfat33) 148,000
Increase in fair value recognised in the REFEBEKRAER 2 A FEEN

consolidated statement of profit or loss 27,300
Transfer to stock of properties (note 20) EREYEFE (M3 20) (23,700)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-Z—\F+_-_A=+—BX

—E-hF—H—H 443,600

Increase in fair value recognised in the REFEBERRAERZ A EZN

consolidated statement of profit or loss 1,200
At 31 December 2019 R=FB-NF+=A=+—H 444,800

A fair value gain on the investment properties of
approximately HK$1,200,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: approximately
HK$27,300,000). The direct operating expense from
investment properties is amounting to approximately
HK$1,021,000 (2018: approximately HK$943,000)
and the rental income generated from the investment
properties is approximately HK$10,307,000 (2018:
approximately HK$8,006,000).

HE_ZT-AWF+A=+—HLt
FE - WEYMEZRAFERZLD
#1,200,000 TRERE Bm KR P ER

—ZT — )\ : #7% % 27,300,000
TL) o REBREMECEELERE
#4578 %1,021,000C( ZFE— N\ F :
#)BH943,0007T) - MAKEBIREY
2 HE WAL R A’ 10,307,000
T(ZZE—/)/\F : #7%5%8,006,000
JT) °
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(CONTINUED)

The Group’s properties interest held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for an investment
properties. The fair value of the investment properties
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on the respective dates by the Valuers who have
appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The management works closely with the
Valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to model. The management
reports the valuation report and findings to the
Directors half yearly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment
properties. The highest and best use of the
investment properties are its current use in estimating
the fair value of the properties.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using combination of
income capitalisation method and direct comparison
method (2018: combination of income capitalisation
method and direct comparison method) by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per saleable square foot basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy (2018: level 3). There were no
transfers into or out of level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out the fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BREWE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW = (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the fair value TRFMAEBREMEDN RN EE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment ER S
properties:
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2019 Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs weighted average
RZZ-nE
tZA=t-R
i ZAYE fERE LYEER EXTTRERAZE  EEIANETY
HKS'000
BETR
Office Nos. 1003 and 1004A, 285,600 Income capitalisation method Level3 Estimated price per HK$40,877 to HK$47,690
10th Floor, Tower 1, and direct comparison method saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre
BERD1E1081003%R WABKLERERLEE =8 ST ARERAER  AWA0871 TERB4T6907
0MASHAZ i
Capitalisation rate 23%
BRfLE
Office No. 1001A, 10th Floor, 57,500  Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HKS$46,084 to HK$53,766
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square foot
BERD1E1081001A% WABKLERERLEE =8 ST REAERER %¥46,08 TEHE% 537667
BAE
Capitalisation rate 23%
BRfLE
Office No. 10048, 10th Floor, 101,700 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HKS$45,669 to HK$53,282
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square foot
BERD1E10810048% WABKLERERLEE =8 YA RERERER #4509 TEHE%532827
BAE
Capitalisation rate 23%
BRfLE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3% 237



238

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REWZE ()

(CONTINUED)
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2018  Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs weighted average
RZE-N\§
e
it ZRTHE fERE ATEESR ENTHEGARE  SEAMETY
HK$' 000
AT
Office Nos. 1003 and 1004A, 284,600 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HK$35,472 to HK$54,224
10th Floor, Tower 1, and direct comparison method saleable square oot
Admiralty Centre
BERLE10E1003% ] WABRMERER B E EE EETARERERER B%3542 A5 24T
1004AHAE
Capitalisation rate 1.2%
BAE
Office No. 1001A, 10th Floor, 57,600 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HK$39,991 to HK$61,133
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square oot
BERLIE10 BRABRMCERERERE =k EETARERERER #%39991 TEAK61,137
100IASHAE
Capitalisation rate 12%
AR E
Office No. 10048, 10th Floor, 101,400 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HK$39,955 to HK$54,225
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square foot
BERL IR0 LON-UN A i 28 G T ARERERER AK39 95T EEY 542257
10048 HAZ

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the valuations of
investment properties were based on either the
investment method which capitalises the rent
receivables from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties
or direct comparison method by reference to
comparable market transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in estimated rental
value per saleable square foot in isolation would
result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the
investment properties.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per saleable
square foot in isolation would result in significantly
higher/(lower) fair value of the investment properties.

The Directors believe that any possible changes in
input values would not cause significant change in
fair value of the investment properties.

The properties are either leased out in return of
receiving rental income or held for capital
appreciation and are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted as investment
properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had pledged all (2018: all) of the investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately
HK$444.8 million (2018: approximately HK$443.6
million) to secure bank loans granted to the Group
(note 25).

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

17. REWZE ()

R-_ZE—hAhFEF+-_A=+—H &
EMETDRIBIRE X (BEMERNR
THERKZHERBEESRMS
MeBEAb) KEELEBE(BIZRE
AELBMBERS) EITHE -

g Fr T REAOEESERE
BAREEN, CRD)@SREDE
ZRFERELA(TR) - ER
L EREBEFHREENORD) B8SHR
BEWMEZ NTEKRRE NE(EF) -

BT 7 RE A E B BB A I 1
MR SR En Ly ATE
RIELF/ (TEE) -

EEEE  BAREZ AT
BT EHRENE S AT EER
SAEH -

YR RBREE WA AR L S
tEEATHE  RAAFEEAGE
WD BMARSREYE -

BE_T-NAFt_-_A=+—HL
FE - AKEEHEARB(ZZ N

#& 444,800,000 C(—ZF— \F : 4

75 ¥ 443,600,000 70 ) LA AR T AE
BRI IRITE SKIEL H R (FiFE25) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REFE N E 2 s

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —F-N\F

+=-A=+—-H +=—A=+—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

P5E BT T BT T

Deemed capital contribution R{EEREE (b) 103,200 103,200

Goodwill BES (© 19,409 19,409

Share of results of associates FE{LEE A Bl F4& 281,803 165,046

404,412 287,655

Amounts due from associates J& B2 A 7] 7018 (d), 37(b) 219,776 317,419
Amounts shown under EMEBEERTYR

non-current assets -] 624,188 605,074

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )



18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18.

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+T-A=+—BILFE

REtE AR 2w ()

BRI 2 B A5 E R R v-?/m\ﬁﬂk#&
RPATERNE S QR 2

associates recognised in the consolidated financial 18 7 HEE -
statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
+=ZA=+—H8 tZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net assets/(liabilities) of the S NRIEETFE
associates (AEFE) 83,910 (154,370)
Proportion of the Group's NEE 2 HEBERER LD
ownership interests 49% 49%
Share of net assets/(liabilities) i t/N
of the associates BESE//(BEFH) 41,116 (75,641)
Goodwill [EEES 19,409 19,409
Effect of fair value adjustments WEERF N EAR S E
at acquisition 240,687 240,687
Deemed capital contribution BRIEERLE 103,200 103,200
Amounts due from associates JFE Uk Btk 2 A B R IE
(note 37(b)) (BtaE37(b)) 219,776 317,419
624,188 605,074
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(CONTINUED)

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or

assets of the Group:

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REEE N Tl 2% ()

TRESFINHAKEERELE
EBKNEBREZHLERRZ

HE - REMERRY AL
TANER :

Proportion of ownership interests

BRERELD
Place of Particulars of Group's Held
incorporation/ issued and paid effective bythe  Heldbya Principal
Name of associate operations  up share capital interests ~ Company  subsidiary activity
MR/ BRAR ARE  pRLE H-BHE
BENTAR XY HRRRHE ERER KE  LAKE IEXR
% % %
Pier 16— Property Development Limited Macau 100,000 shares of 49 - 49 Property holding
("Pier 16 — Property Development”) (note) MOP100 each
TRRNEERRNERAR i 100000 BHREE VS
(TR nEER ) (Wit) 100272 Kt

Note: As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, Pier 16 —
Property Development held the equity interests of the
following companies with the details as below:

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+T-A=+—BILFE

18. RE#E ARz e ()

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or
assets of the Group: (continued)

(a) TRESIHAEEERELE
EBKNEBREZHLERRZ
HE - REMERRY AL
MEAER : (&)

Place of Particulars of Proportion of effective
incorporation/ issued and paid up interests held by Pier 16 —
Name of associate operations share capital Property Development  Principal activity
ifEY/ HTRARERER
BENTER e BRTRARRERE ERERLA IERH
2019 2018
ZB-nE 3%
% %
Pier 16 — Entertainment Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Provision of
Group Corporation Limited and MOP1,000 management services
respectively for casino operations
TARREEEARAT A 2R 7RI 24,000 257 RS EERH
R1.0008F L2 Rl EERK
Pier 16 — Management Limited Macau/ 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Hotel management
Hong Kong and MOP1,000
and Macau respectively
TAREERRAA BF/BERAN 2RANEEL00RM BEEE
K102 2Rl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(9,

(d)

The deemed capital contribution is referenced
to the financial guarantee contract (note 28)
granted by the Group to the associates.

Goodwill

Because goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the interests in associates and is not
separately recognised, it is not tested for
impairment separately by applying the
requirements for impairment testing in HKAS
36. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
interests in associates is tested for impairment
as set out in note 18(d) below.

The amounts due from associates are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. Their carrying amounts are not
materially different from their fair value.

The Group completed its annual impairment
test for interests in associates by comparing the
recoverable amount of interests in associates to
its carrying amount as at 31 December 2019
and 2018. The Group has engaged the Valuer
to carry out a valuation of the interests in
associates as at 31 December 2019 based on
the value in use calculations. This valuation uses
cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and a pre-
tax discount rate of approximately 8% (2018:
approximately 8%). The cash flows beyond the
ten-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% (2018: 3%) growth rate for the casino and
hotel industries in which are operated by
associates. The values assigned to the above
assumptions reflect past experience and are
consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management
believes that the assumption is reasonably
achievable.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

18. REFE N R 2R ()

(b)

(9

(d)

BRIEEARNLE BIEAEE W&
NAEBEH 2P BERE X (M
3T 28) o

[k

=) NEESPNN N
mREE WEBIER W
BARBE LS ST ERE 365
ZRAE R AR E T B ILRE
R - AT BT KRR
18(d) &L - Mt E AR 2
Z 2 RPAREES R R E R o

JE Bt 2/ B RO A AR R
RN EETFERD - ZF
IR Z REE R A EIL &
BERER -

AEBEBRBENBE QAR 2 e
ZopleEEER T —N
FRZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—
HZRABEELE @ BAEK
HUERBERNR S ZFE
BERG - NEBEZEME
MBREEREENE R LA
EF-T-NF+=-A=+—H
HRBER R ZESETH
B @XAERBRERE T
FH 2 B S b wt A R B B4 A B
WRE8%( —FE— N\F: 4
8%) S zHEEREBAHE
TolBaTFHZASRER
FR B & N R T AS & IR EE 35 OB
EEZBERREIR(ZF
—)\F :3%)HE - LR
ZIEAEERBRBELERS I
HEBEEIRNZEMSEYR
ZitE B EEEMREZR

SR SEERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REt&E ARl 2% (])
(CONTINUED)
(e) The following is summary of aggregate amounts (e) *"EBBMEARIZEE . A
of assets, liabilities, revenue, and results of the & WS R EE BT

Group's associates:

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

i i

—E-NF —E-)\F

+=ZA=+—8 T=-HA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Non-current assets EMBEE 663,990 729,513
Current assets mMENEE 372,918 461,884
Current liabilities RBEIE (469,014) (463,329)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (483,984) (882,438)
Net assets/(liabilities) BEEFE/(AEFH) 83,910 (154,370)
2019 2018

—EB-hEF —FE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Revenue & 808,218 735,202
Other revenue and gains H b s U A 18,958 56,321
Profit for the year RNEE @A 238,280 139,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELECRER

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —F-N\F

+=HA=+—-8 +t—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Share of net assets EIEEEFE 4,299 3,538
Amount due from a joint venture EUL —fI4& &> KA

(note 37(b)) (K1a£37(b) 8,970 8,970

13,269 12,508

Less: Recognised of impairment loss & : #& =2 R{E &5 18 (7,200) (7,200)

6,069 5,308

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )



19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in
joint ventures recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+T-A=+—BILFE

19. REE R &R (&)

BRI 2 B 7 B R B v?/m\ﬁﬂk#&
RPEINGLELEZERR
B2 $10k -

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—B-hE —F-N\F
+=ZA=+—HB +=—A=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$’'000
B¥TT BT T
Net assets of the joint venture BEPECZEEFE 14,402 12,498
Less: Non-controlling interests B FEIERRAE (5,804) (5,422)
Net assets attributable to owners & & ¥KRRELEEFE
of joint venture 8,598 7,076
Proportion of the Group's RNEE 2 BB EERLLO
ownership interests 50% 50%
Share of net assets of the BIREECEZEEFE
joint venture 4,299 3,538
Amount due from a joint venture FEUL—REI& LK
(note 37(b)) (K1a£37(b) 8,970 8,970
Less: Recognise of impairment loss & : # R RE{E &2 (7,200) (7,200)
6,069 5,308
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REEE R (E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Details of the Group’s interests in the (a) AEEREELEIELREH
joint ventures are as follows: RN
Form of Particulars of
business Place of issued and paid Group's  Principal
Name of Joint venture structure incorporation  up share capital effective interests  activity
BRAR A5H
RELELR $RRERS  ERAIRE  HRRARE ERER TEER
Surplus Win Enterprises Incorporated BV 2 shares of 50%  Investment
Limited (note) USD1 each holding
BEARERAR (W) i iERLHE  REREE RERR
B34
Note: As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, Surplus Win Hit R-FE-NFR -F—NF+—A
Enterprises Limited held 80% effective interests in =+—H BEPEERIGEF
Double Diamond International Limited (“Double % Double Diamond International
Diamond”, a company incorporated in the BVI with Limited ([ Double Diamond] -
limited liability). The principal activity of Double —ER BB ST
Diamond is pier operation in Macau. BERAF])Z80%FE B HE = -
Double Diamond = 2 7 Y f9 &
IBHFFARTS o
(b) Aggregate financial information of (b) ERIYFERZEEREZ
joint ventures that are not individually B 75 & 0l 4 ot
material:
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
+=ZA=+—HB +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE¥TT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,293 29,293
Current assets MENEE 3,460 1,659
Current liabilities nRBEE (18,351) (18,454)
Net assets BEFE 14,402 12,498

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELERERE (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Aggregate financial information of (b) BERI¥FREARzEELES
joint ventures that are not individually B ER &N : (&)

material: (continued)

2019 2018

—EB-hEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Revenue g 2,202 1,898
Expenses F (298) (403)

Profit before taxation & 50 BT V2 A1) 1,904 1,495
Taxation fi18 - -

Profit for the year REE A 1,904 1,495
The above amounts of assets and liabilities T EERBESBEENAT

include the following: KRIF :

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

" i

—E-NE —F-N\F

+=-A=+—-H +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Cash and cash equivalents RekBEE&FEIER 3,316 1,659
Amounts due to shareholders &S I% 5 1B (17,940) (17,940)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(c) The amount due from a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms

of repayment.

(d) The Group has advanced HK$12 million to the
joint venture to finance the acquisition of
certain assets. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group will not demand for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is therefore classified as

non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of amount due from a joint venture was
approximately HK$9.0 million (2018:

approximately HK$9.0 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the accumulated
impairment loss of interests in joint ventures
was approximately HK$7.2 million (2018:
approximately HK$7.2 million), which is
considered to be adequate as there are no
indication for further impairment (2018: reversal
of impairment of approximately HK$1.5 million).
The recoverable amount of this advance is
determined based on the net cash flows from
operations estimated by the management for

the coming five years.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

19. REE ¥R (F)

(9]

(d)

B —REaErtERERER
o B M EE EER

AEBEMAEDERGBE
12,000,0007T * Bl EE TE
ERHTEES -BEERA ALK
B TeZRkRmERRE
+TZEARER  MEHKZE
BROBRIERBEE °

RZE—-NF+ZRA=+—
H Bl—HAEECEREBEZ
BR M 18 %) A& 7 ¥ 9,000,000 7T

—E-NF: B
9,000,0007T) °

RZE—NEFE+_A=+—
H ReEgb¥ErEm s RF
BB & 1B 4 & % ¥ 7,200,000
T(ZZE—NF: HBE
7,200,0007T ) + B9 A 3 % PR SR
BTRTE—FIELHRE - W
BRERH(ZZE—NF : BER
1B 4778 % 1,500,0007T ) ° % E
BRZAIKECREIIIEERE
HARRAFLEMBZHENR
EFB I GFEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 20. MEFE
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—HA—H -
Acquisitions of assets through acquisition ERWENBARBEEE
of subsidiaries (note 33) (K17 33) 58,180
Additions during the year F RN 120,416
Transfer from investment properties (note 17) # B3 &Y% (K7t 17) 23,700
Disposal during the year FALE (16,078)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZBE—N\F+_A=+—"HK
—E-hF—H—H 186,218
Additions during the year F AN 1,123
Disposal during the year FALEE (53,067)
Write-down of stock of properties (note 9(c)) MURYI2£FE (15 9(c)) (14,524)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—hE+=-A=+—H 119,750
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. BN E SRR R A B

TA
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i I
—E-hEF —E-N\F
tT=A=t—-8 t=—A=1—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7E BEET T BT T
Trade receivables FEWE ZERK (a) 33,481 42,267
Other receivables HibE AR X 2,099 657
Trade and other receivables FEWE SRR X
H Ath FE Y BR 5K 35,580 42,924
Prepayments and deposits BRFERES 7,247 6,215
42,827 49,139

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.

Including in trade receivables, the lease receivables of

approximately HK$487,000 (2018: approximately
HK$234,000) arise from properties rental income.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

B BB 5 AR K I L fth B K BR K
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BEERKESER  BRASD
BEEA87 000 (ZF— N\F : #4975
#234,0007T) REEHS WA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EWWE S ERF R EMEWE
(CONTINUED) ;(4E)
(a) Aging analysis (a) BRER D #T

Included in trade and other receivables, the
aging analysis for trade receivables, based on
the due date and net of impairment loss, is as
follows:

BRERKE SRR HEAME
WP 2 FE U 5 Bk SRIR 2
HIB RANRRERE R 2 Rk
DT

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

S S

—E-hEF —T)N\&F

T=A=t—-B t-A=1+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Current BN ER 27,735 37,848
31 to 60 days overdue #HI31 260 H 2,826 3,920
61 to 90 days overdue #HI61 £ 90 H 665 234
Over 90 days overdue #HEAFER 90 B 2,255 265
33,481 42,267

The Group normally allows an average credit
period of 30 days to customers of travel
business (2018: average credit period of 30
days). For the customers of property investment
business, no credit period was granted. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 4(b)(i).

REB—RETIREEBEP
30HZFHEEHR(ZZE—AN
F:308BZ2FHEER) - 5
MEREBEBREFPME @ WE
BTEEH AEBEEBRX
2 E— SR IFE R EE 4(0)() ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21.

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables
directly (see note 2(k)). At the end of the
reporting period, there has no impairment loss
recognised on trade receivables (2018: nil).

Movement in the impairment loss of trade
receivables is as follows:

PR B 5 BRI H {th B Uk AR

(&)

(b) EWEZSRKRE

FEWE SRR ZREBETIA
BERRE  HAKEEHRK
[Bl 3% X B 2 # & 1R 1 Bl S 1E 5
i EUERAT  BEEET
HERERE SERZME(R
BisE2(k) - REREHR - &
HIEWE 5 R IER R EE B
ZE-N\F |\

R R 5 85 SR A 1 2
mT

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i i
—E-NF —E-)\F
+=—A=+—H8 +=—H=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Balance at the beginning F)aEek
of the year - 81
Amount written off as WiH R TR E 2 28
uncollectible - (81)

Balance at the end of the year F R4

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EWWE S ERF R EMEWE
(CONTINUED) ;(4E)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (0 TEBEZEWRESER

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired are as follows:

BRI HER RSB RE 2 &
W 5 RRRERE D ITEA T

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —F-N\F

+=ZA=+—H8 tZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Neither past due nor impaired 7 4% 8 Hi X )5 (& 27,735 37,848
Past due but not impaired BEAB I ERE

— Less than 1 month past due —3#EA T~ E—1E A 2,826 3,920

— 1 to 3 months past due —@H—E=={EH 2,920 499

5,746 4,419

33,481 42,267

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group.

I 4 380 A gl Rl 18 2 P U AR 3 5
BT HR I S R B RACER 2 &
BIEFAR -

8 HA B I SRl (B 2 e U AR 3R TS
HETHIURFPAR ZFF
PHEARER BRI

Based on past experience, management believes BEAEFLR  BEEEHREEH
that no impairment allowance is necessary in BRI EERETIR R ERE
respect of these balances as there has not been BERAEZEEEZWRAHEIBTEK

a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

28 HZFERIDER SR
AEDE - AEEY B ZF
RBERFAEAERS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
The amounts are pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 39). The pledged
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of
approximately 0.30% to 1.85% per annum (2018:
approximately 1.20% to 1.70% per annum).

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

. BEARITER

ZERBETHEA  FABMGEET
AEEZETRITHE (HE39) -
& ECEMRITERIZE EFH R

#90.30% £ 1.85% (—ZFE—N\F : F

MEA1.20% FE1.70%) 5T B ©

RERBEEEEE

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

»® i

—E-hEF —E-)\F

+=ZA=+—8 T=-HA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Cash and bank balances H& MIRTTEERR 40,752 35,720

Non-pledged bank deposits EEPRITER 58,000 15,000
Cash and cash equivalents in the 4R & BTGk R R M4E &
consolidated statement of ReneaxkzBAERk

financial position and cash flows IR&%EIER 98,752 50,720

Deposits with banks carry interest at market rates
which is approximately 0.10% to 0.96% per annum
for current year (2018: approximately 0.18% to
0.95% per annum).

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2019, there has an amount denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB") of approximately RMB45,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$51,000) (2018:
approximately RMB383,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$441,000). Remittance of RMB out
of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.
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RAEE  ROTERIETHERNX
#90.10% £0.96% (—ZE— \F : F
MZEA0.18% F0.95% )T B °
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e RBFESEEEBEEF  BFE—FMU
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383,0007T + 185 1 4978 % 441,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. HERBeEEEB ()
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEEEELENE EYEE
activities:
Loan from
a director and
Bank Loans Lease controlling
loans payable liabilities  shareholder Total
—REER
| \ REE
RITER ERER HEAE B @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BETT BETT BT
(note 25) (note 26) (note 27)
(P3E25) (PH3E26) (HE27)
At 1 January 2018 n=E-\E—R—AH = 27,232 = = 27,232
Changes in financing cash flows: BERLFEEH :
New bank loans raised MEERITER 222,500 - - - 222,500
Loan from a director —REEFERRE
and controlling shareholder =5 N = = = 39,000 39,000
Total changes in financing RERERELYLE
cash flows 222,500 - - 39,000 261,500
Exchange adjustments EXAZE - (2,054) - - (2,054)
Other changes: Hit25
Transaction with non-controlling BIERERR S
interests (note 34) (K1:£34) = (25,178) = = (25,178)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+t-H 222,500 - - 39,000 261,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23.
(CONTINUED)

ReRkALEEEB (&)

BMERPELNREYR : (&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (continued)

Loan from
a director and
Bank Loans Lease  controlling
loans payable liabilities  shareholder Total
—-REER
ERRR
RITER ENER HEAE EX @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BRI BETR
(note 25) (note 26) (note 27)
(Fit&E 25) (Ff&E 26) GEYD
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+-A=1+—-H 225,000 - - 39,000 261,500
Adjustments upon application REREBHBRE

of HKFRS 16 ERF16HEHEE - - 10,094 - 10,094

At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZE-NE—FA—R

(&%) 222,500 - 10,094 39,000 271,594
Changes in financing cash flows: BMEREREEET .
Repayment of bank loans BEFTER (28,500) - - - (28,500)
Loan from a director —REEREBRE

and controlling shareholder &% - - - 40,000 40,000
Repayment in loan from a director ~ EE—REE AR

and controlling shareholder REE - - - (79,000) (79,000)
Payment of lease rentals YHAERE - - (5,191) - (5,191)
Total changes in financing RERERELPAE

cash flows (28,500) - (5,191) (39,000) (72,691)
Other changes: Hit25
Increase in lease liabilities MEAEEM - - 699 - 699
Interest expenses on lease liabilities ~ BEAE 2 HEH%

(note 9(a)) (K122 9a) - - 138 - 138
Total other changes HipSeasm - - 837 - 837
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hE

+-A=+-H 194,000 - 5,740 - 199,740
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, ERHEZRFREMENER
=hH

FA
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
S S
—E-NF —E-)N\F
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—8H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEss BT T BT T
Trade payables FERTE ZIRN (a) 23,682 32,592
Accrued charges and other ~ FEETE A Kk HAth
payables JE S BRX 15,742 17,021
39,424 49,613

(a) RRERD#T
BRERNE SRR EME
MERI P 2N E S RFIZE

(a) Aging analysis
Included in trade and other payables, the aging
analysis of trade payables, based on the due

date, is as follows: MR ZBRER DT -
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —FE-NF
+=BA=+-8 t=A=+-~
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Current BN ER 22,537 31,248
31 to 60 days 31260H 583 435
61 to 90 days 61290 H 118 243
Over 90 days #8iB90 A 444 666
23,682 32,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

25. BANK LOANS 25. RITER
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
+=-A=+—8 +t—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Bank loans, secured HIRWRITERK 194,000 222,500
Carrying amount repayable: BT EAREE Y
BREE :

On demand or within one year BRER—FR 194,000 222,500
194,000 222,500

Less: Amount shown under current & : 7R & &5 %8
liabilities (194,000) (222,500)

Amounts shown under non-current 3ER BB &S| ~2 58
liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged all
(2018: all) of its investment properties (note 17) and
one (2018: nil) of its stock of properties (note 20) to
secure the bank loans granted to the Group. The
bank loans are carrying an interest rate at Hong Kong
interbank offered rate (HIBOR) plus 1.7% to 1.75%
per annum. The weighted average effective interest
rate on the bank loans was approximately 3.62% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
approximately 3.39% per annum).

260  SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED EEI8 Ik G R 2 &)

R-ZE—-hE+-_A=+—H8" &K
EEEEBEMB(ZE—N\F AT
B)REYWEMWE17HER—E(ZE
—N\F : B)MEFE (FfsE20) - 1
AAEEERRITERZETGS -
BITERERBRITRAEREM
1.7% E1.75% FHEHE - HEZ
E-—HFE+-_A=1+—RHIEE"
RITERZ MEFHERFENELY
B362%(ZZE—N\F: FHFMEY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES

26. HE&EE

The Group’s lease liabilities arise from lease properties
in Hong Kong and Canada for fixed term of one to
three years. Interest rates underlying the leases are
fixed at respective contract rates of 3.4% to 4.0%

per annum.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had lease liabilities

repayable as follows:

AEENHERBEXRERAERNE
REEFHPR—E=FNHEYE -
HENMEXETESEEONEREF
34% £4.0% °

RZE—NFE+_A=+—H &«
SEEEEMNHEAGNT :

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2019

R-ZEB-hE+=A=1+-H RZZE-NE—HA—H
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEEEAR BEEEMR SEHEENH SEEESK
BE ok HE @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETT BETT
Within 1 year —FR 5,319 5,373 4,999 5,130
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEEREAR 293 297 5,066 5,112
After 2 years but within 5 years BB ERER 128 129 29 30
421 426 5,095 5,142
5,740 5,799 10,094 10,272
Less: total future interest expenses ¥ : KA S5 % 158 (59) (178)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARRE 5,740 10,094
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE—

26.

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE
LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. Comparative information as at 31 December
2018 has not been restated. Further details on the
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in
note 3.

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies
are set out below:

26. HEEE (&)

REBECFERLEEBWEEXER
BEEVBHRELENE 169, - WHE
T NF— A —BNEBYER AR
,L&@F%/EJ&W 517 5%
NEAKREHENHERHENEESR
B R/ \F+ZA=1T—80%
HEBERWKRES - BABEEZEE
IS E R F 165 2R E—
HEHBH R EES ©

ETIERAENHEER EHH W0
T

At

31 December
2019

i

o
+=HA=+—H
HK$'000
BT T

HK$ 7
CAD pilib

4,841
899

5,740
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR AND

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

27. —REERERRRER

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

+=A=+—HB +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Loan from Mr. Yeung BEEER - 39,000

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company which is
unsecured and charged with interest at the prime
rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. The principal amount of the loan facility was
increased up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 (the
“Revised Mr. Yeung’s Loan Facility”) and the final
repayment date of the loan and all other sums owing
to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan
Facility was further extended from 31 October 2020
to 31 October 2022 by a supplemental letter of
agreement dated 20 September 2019.

In the opinion of the Directors, the borrowing of the
said loan from Mr. Yeung was for the benefit of the
Company and on normal commercial terms where no
security over the assets of the Company was granted.

RZZZENF+ZA—H HBEE
M2 |42 i A #8088 200,000,000
TZBHERRE  ZEXBREAR
mIEE - ARE B LBELRTE
RABIFIFHZETERRERFNE
R -R-_ZETAFWA+IA -
ZEXMEZASHEEETEE
290,000,000 7T ([ & ET 2155t E 2
BEXmE]) VBABHA-Z
—NENLA-_+THFEIZHEH
B RIBRI 2B R EZ BN
BZERMTBERIGEEZHM
RENREEFREH R %
F+AZ+—HBE—STEEE_F
——F+A=+—H-

EEZRR LABEEERETH
EEMEARANNE  HIE—R
BEGTET BARAHMER D
BEEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT 28. (I IEREN

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i IS
—E-hEF —F-N\F
+=ZA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
L= BET T BT T

Carrying amount FREE
At the beginning of the year A F 4] 2,256 2,900
Amortisation for the year AN Y 8 (644) (644)
At the end of the year RER 1,612 2,256
Current liabilities TEIARE 644 644
Non-current liabilities EREEE 968 1,612
1,612 2,256

In 2017, the Company gave a corporate guarantee
(the “Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the loan
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property Development
(the “Loan Facilities”). The maximum guarantee
amount borne by the Company under the Guarantee
was HK$490 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at
31 December 2019 was approximately HK$235.0
million (2018: approximately HK$435.0 million). The
contingent liabilities were disclosed in note 36.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

RZZT—tF AAFRT T+~
HYEBERNERRE ([ZE @
B m—AERITREESEER(Z
Z{R]) o NRRIBIEZERAED
& = 1R 35 & %8 & 75 % 490,000,000
o

I

R-_ZE—NAF+-_A=+—8" &
ZEFBMEBB T ZABEERNA
75 # 235,000,000 L ( — T — N\ &F :
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of the financial guarantee
contract recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position is in accordance with
HKFRS 9 and is carried at amortised cost.

No provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at 31 December 2019 and 2018 as the
Directors considered the default risk is low.

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through utilisation against future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2019,
the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$172.8
million (2018: approximately HK$163.0 million) that
are available to carry forward indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$4.0 million and
HK$28.0 million will expire within 5 years and over 5
years respectively (2018: approximately HK$2.4
million and HK$27.9 million expire within 5 years and
over 5 years respectively).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future tax profit streams.

28.

29.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

BHEREHN (A)

REBEEFEMEHREERNE IR - U
ERANZEHEEDRNAER 24
BMBARRARER - WIREHK A
SR °

IIF

A F R A E )RR B
SE-AER-FT-N\F
+=A=+-BLERHHERAE
KOFE B -

e MBRRERAZHIE

WaEBBREHNEEEBRER
S R 2R FE ER Wi i M IR - BIRAERR
HEESFI&EE 2 HIBEBEER
R -RZZE—NF+=ZA=1+—H -
AEBZHREEBRBEBHNAEBEK
172,800,000 7C( =& — )\ F : 48
# 163,000,000 7T ) + A] R PR HA 45
B A R RERDUR N o ETH
T B8 5 Bl 408 % 4,000,000 7T &%
# 28,000,000 T D BRI AF A K&
AFEEIH(ZZE—NF: B
2,400,000 7t } & % 27,900,000 7T #%
DRRAEFERRAFEEE) -

F P R SR 765 3 M) BROIR S R TR

B 4 LK ) AR AR R B IR R R AT ()
BELERREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R
Number Nominal
of shares value
RO E H{E
‘000 HK$'000
FK BT T
Authorised: ERE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &R EEEY 0.017T2
TR AR
At 1 January 2018, R=ZF—-N\§—F—8"
31 December 2018, —E-N\E
1 January 2019 and +=A=+—8"
31 December 2019 —E-hF—-H—H
R=Z2—NI#F
+=B=+—H 160,000,000 1,600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &RXE{EH % 0.01 7T
2 B
At 1 January 2018, R==Z2-NF—-A—H8"
31 December 2018, —E-N\F
1 January 2019 and +=A=+—-8"
31 December 2019 —ZE-hF—HA—H
R-ZZF—hF
+=HA=+—H 4,926,491 49,265

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of
the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu in

all respects among themselves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

Victory Devotion Limited (“Victory Devotion”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as vendor entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party as
purchaser and the Company as guarantor for
Victory Devotion to dispose of (i) the 100%
equity interest in Gain Glory Development
Limited (“Gain Glory”); and (ii) the shareholder’s
loan due and owing by Gain Glory to Victory
Devotion in the amount of approximately
HK$15.7 million, at a total consideration of
approximately HK$31.6 million. Completion of
the said disposal took place on 8 January 2019.

Style Best Limited (“Style Best”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
vendor entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third
party as purchaser and the Company as
guarantor for Style Best to dispose of (i) the
100% equity interest in Joint Cosmos Limited
("Joint Cosmos”); and (i) the shareholder’s loan
due and owing by Joint Cosmos to Style Best in
the amount of approximately HK$25.6 million,
at a total consideration of approximately
HK$33.6 million. Completion of the said
disposal took place on 22 July 2019.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

31. HEMELQ

(a)

(b)

RRr—RBEEZENB LT
BBAERAR (] (ERE
H)E—E2BYE=7F(ERE
77) RARBHERBBHIERA
I —mEEWHZE  UEE)
Gain Glory Development Limited
(['Gain Glory]) #)100% A% # :
X (ii) Gain Glory FE1< & &5 /K B
B A R & 5K 4 78 5 15,700,000
7T #R(EAAE 31,600,000
e FPMEEETEER_-F
—NF—HAN\BZHK e

Apa—HEEE2EWB QA
REFRAG(BEDHEAE
HE—ZBIE=F(EAE
7)) RARBEABEEMER
AEI—MERREBEHE - U
HENBERERAF ([ERE])
B9 100% AR 1 : K2 (ii) B 3% F& 1<t
NaE R AERRRE LB
25,600,0007T + BRED BB
¥ 33,600,0007C ° it iH &=
HER-_ZE—NFLtA=-+=
HERK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and
the calculation of the gain on disposal, are disclosed

31. HEME QT (F)

EHEEERAGBZHBREL
B 2 ERBEWT

below:
(i) Consideration received (i) SWRE
Gain Glory Joint Cosmos Total
R & st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T
Consideration received ZAEBE ARG K
by the Group incash ~ R&%{HIER
and cash equivalents  WELZ R (B 31,628 33,646 65,274
(ii)) Analysis of assets and liabilities over (i) XEEHECEEREEBD
which control was lost #r
Gain Glory Joint Cosmos Total
HE 3R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T
Stock of properties MEFE 22,213 24,772 46,985
Prepayment and deposit TB{ 7018 &% & 8 14 22
Accrued charges JEFEA (6) - (6)
Shareholder’s loan BERER (15,727) (25,567) (41,294)
Net assets/(liabilities) BEHEEEFE
disposed (BEFHE) 6,488 (781) 5,707
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. HEMB AT (&)
(CONTINUED)
(iii) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (iii) HEKNB ATz W=
Gain Glory Joint Cosmos Total
i 3% et
HK$’000 HK$"000 HK$'000

BETT  BETR BETR

Consideration received Z~&E 2 WEL 2

by the Group RE 31,628 33,646 65,274
Expenses relating HHEB#E A

to disposal (1,377) (926) (2,303)
Assignment of BRERZEE

shareholders’ loans (15,727) (25,567) (41,294)
Net (assets)/liabilities AREBEMHE

disposed of by

subsidiaries (BEFE)

attributable to BEFHE

the Group (6,488) 781 (5,707)

Gain on disposal of HEWBARZ

subsidiaries Wz 8,036 7,934 15,970
(iv) Net cash inflow from disposal of (iv) HERBATZRERAFE
subsidiaries b 2]
Gain Glory Joint Cosmos Total
R % st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

BETFT  BETR BETR

Total consideration BWEL R (BAa%E

received 31,628 33,646 65,274
Expenses paid relating B H &8 2 21
to disposal X (1,377) (926) (2,303)

Net cash inflow from  HEMBAFZ
disposal of subsidiaries IR 4 AR 5B 30,251 32,720 62,971
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(a) Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant
authorities in the PRC, the Group participates in
the relevant social retirement benefit schemes
(the “PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group is
required to contribute to the PRC Schemes to
fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the PRC
Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC.
The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the PRC
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution
represents gross contributions by the Group to
the PRC Schemes operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT 32. EEERNKER (E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme

(b) fEMRESTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme
on 5 June 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
which became effective on 10 June 2014.
Unless early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the board of Directors
(the “Board”), the Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest and any subsidiary of such entity
("Invested Entity”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors
are authorised at their absolute discretion to
invite eligible persons to take up options to
subscribe for shares. Eligible persons under the
Share Option Scheme include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (ii) any non-
executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible to
participate in a share option scheme of the
Company; and (iv) any vendor, supplier of
goods or services or customer of or to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity,
who is eligible to participate in a share option
scheme of the Company.

RARRZE—WFARA
N —IERERRAERT B ([ BB AR A
HE D) YR -E—WENA
THA - RIFBARTRK
RAEIHESS((EEE))
RELI - BRIBRES S
BN A RIS ER N F -

BT E B e EREAE
SRBTEHASESAKEE
AR B A B Fr A SR 2
MERUNZER 2 TMHE
AE([REERDIELERZ
BEMBAL

RIZBIRENS  EFERE
A2ERBEFEREBALE
R AR AR B I (D - M RCHE
AElZAEEBALEBROASE
BERKERBREFMKREER
BoEMEE(TRmEBIR
B WBERATES) : (A%
BERKERBARERMREER
B2EMIFATES(RHEE
MIEBITER)  (iVAKEE
falp B R RIS ERIIRE BB
ZRBAERZEARNABER
a8 2 AR - EREH
HARIE R (v) AEREEAKE
RAHEAREERAERS
HEARRNRIBRESE ZEME
R - EmIRGHEERES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

There is no provision in the Share Option
Scheme to require a grantee to fulfill any
performance target or to hold the option for a
certain period before exercising the option, but
the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the
offer of grant of options.

The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company is
492,649,119 shares (being not more than 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
(the “Scheme Limit”)), representing
approximately 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
the Scheme Limit save that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company under the Scheme Limit so
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of such
approval (the “New Scheme Limit"). Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the
respective provisions of the scheme(s) of the
Company or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the New
Scheme Limit.
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(b) fEMRRESTE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT 32. EEERNKER (E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) fEMRRESTE (&)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme(s) adopted by
the Company (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of offer shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of offer,
unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which such eligible person and his
or her associates shall abstain from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the
option is offered; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

& B A AT Pt - AR AR
A8 AR R (] E Al BB A A2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
The offer of a grant of share option must be
accepted not later than 28 days after the date
of offer, upon payment of a consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
upon which the share option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up
to 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS

In April 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Gain Glory and
Perfect Top Development Limited (“Perfect Top”) for
an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$58.2 million. The principal assets of Gain Glory
and Perfect Top are properties in Hong Kong, the
purpose of the acquisition is for the Group’s business
operation.

In May 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of and the related
shareholders’ loans to Merchant Charm Limited
(“Merchant Charm”) and Massive Success Global
Limited (“Massive Success”) for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$147.5 million.
The principal assets of Merchant Charm and Massive
Success are investments in their respective
subsidiaries which hold investment properties in
Hong Kong, the purpose of the acquisition is for the
Group’s business operation. Details please refer to
the announcements dated 13 February 2018 and 29
March 2018 respectively as well as the circular dated
6 April 2018 all issued by the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+T-A=+—BILFE

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS 33. Wig&E = (&)
(CONTINUED)
The acquisitions of Gain Glory, Perfect Top, Merchant L8 Gain Glory * Perfect Top * Merchant
Charm and Massive Success did not constitute Charm & Massive Success I MK FE 75
business combinations and were for the purposes of S0 BEESTEWEDE - BESE
acquiring properties. In accordance with HKFRS 3 IS mEEREIF [ EBKEH] B
“Business Combinations”, such acquisitions did not FAWREIWEEATE - Al - AAQA]
give rise to goodwill. Therefore, the Company RUEE AR EEER AR
recognised the assets and liabilities at the dates of
acquisitions.
(a) The assets acquired and liabilities recognised at (a) RZWEHZERBEERE
the date of the acquisition are as follows: WREENT :
Merchant Massive Gain Perfect
Charm Success Glory Top Total
Bt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT A%Tr A%Tr B%Tr B%Tx
Net assets acquired: BRBEESRE .
Investment properties REME K7t 17)
(note 17) 53,200 94,800 - - 148,000
Stock of properties (note 20) ¥ E (A5 20) - - 20,750 37,430 58,180
Trade and other receivables  JEUE SR TN
H YRR 33 213 3 9 258
Trade and other payables ~ ERTE ZER R
HiERARR (181) (391) = = (572)
Tax payable TR (1) (236) - - (247)
Net assets BEFE 53,041 9438 20,753 37,439 205619
Total consideration, BREUTHAR
satisfied by: B
Cash consideration HeEKE 53,041 94,386 20,753 37,439 205,619
Consideration paid in cash E2H &K E 53,041 94,386 20,753 37439 205,619
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CONTROLLING INTERESTS

In November 2018, 1338 Successful Venture Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
purchaser, entered into a share purchase agreement
with a company, as vendor, which is the holder of
25% of all outstanding and issued shares of 665127
British Columbia Ltd. (665127 BC") to purchase and
accept the assignment of (i) 25% of all outstanding
and issued shares of 665127 BC; and (ii) the entire
amount of the shareholder’s loans owing by 665127
BC to the vendor at a total consideration of
CAD1,370,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,184,000). The said acquisition was completed
in end of November 2018 and Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade
Travel”) became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company upon completion. Details please
refer to the announcement dated 9 November 2018
issued by the Company.

The difference of approximately HK$4,431,000
between the decrease in the non-controlling interests
and assignment of non-controlling shareholder’s
loans and the consideration paid has been credited
to accumulated losses.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

34. TRANSACTION WITH NON-

4

34. EBFEREZ RS

RZZFE—N\F+—8 AR7—MH
2 & MY B A 7)1338 Successful
Venture Ltd. (fERE ) E— R A
(tEA/E 7 ) (#F F665127 British
Columbia Ltd. ([665127 BC|) FT &
BITEINRE BTG 2 25% )
IO EERE EREER
() 665127 BCFTAEITEINR
BT M Z225% : (i) 665127
BCHEXRBHZREEREZH A
#2184 1,370,000 I0 7T (B A4
75 #£8,184,0007T ) o Lt EE 18
ERZE—N\F+—AKZK M
Jade Travel Ltd. ([Jade Travel]) 7 #%
WHEEKEKABARR—HEHES
BB AR - FBRELEAAE T
BAPAZT-—N\EFE+—ANLAH
NG

JE4E AR A 2 Rk > N B AR JE I AR AR R
EFREENRENEZEBLHEE
4,431,000 TE T A RETEIE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had no
outstanding capital commitments (2018:
approximately HK$808,000 in respect of
renovation works for the stock of properties
which does not provide for in the consolidated
financial statements).

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for the Group are payable as
follows:

The Group as lessee

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

35. &iE

@) RZFE—hEFE+=ZA=+—
H ARBETERINHER
EE(CZE-N\F : BEMER
B T2 498 % 808,0007T
W AR R ERE B 75 W& IE B
1#) o

(b) R=ZF-—NEFE+_A=+—
B NEERETAREHLE
MEZ e R R E (5K
eI

FEEEREEA

At

31 December
2018

i

—E-NF
+—-—A=+—8H
HK$'000
BT T

Within one year —FA

In the second to fifth years, inclusive AL )

5,551

TF (BREEERE) 5,306

10,857

The Group lease certain office premises and
office equipment under operating leases. The
leases typically run for period ranging from two
to five years. None of leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEERBEEEZHEHRET
MRAEMEREBAERE - M
W—MR_EZRE - HHL
TBREIAES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEFT-_A=+—HILFE

35. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) At 31 December 2019, the Group had
contracted with the tenants for the following

35. &IE (48)

() R-ZE-—NF+_A=+—
B NEBEEBEFETHZARK

future minimum lease receivables: =ERKELLT :
The Group as lessor AEEERHBEA
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i i
—E-hEF —T-N\F
+=ZA=+—H8 +t—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year —F K 13,675 3,539
In the second to fifth years, RE_FFFERF
inclusive (BIEEEMT) 9,253 -
22,928 3,539
Property rental income earned during the year FARDM 2 WERSWAL A

was approximately HK$12,668,000 (2018:
approximately HK$8,006,000). All of the
Group's investment properties are held for
rental purpose and one of stock of properties is
rented. It is expected to generate rent yield of
approximately 2.5% (2018: approximately
1.8%) on an ongoing basis. The Group's rental
property has committed tenant for the next two
to three years.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company gave the Guarantee to a bank in
respect of the Loan Facilities in 2017. The maximum
guarantee amount borne by the Company under the
Guarantee was HK$490 million (notes 18 and 28).

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at

31 December 2019 was approximately HK$235.0
million (2018: approximately HK$435.0 million).
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7 12,668,000 C( — & — )\
& #4975 #8,006,0007T) ° AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEA TR S
In addition to the transactions and balances detail GG EMBHmRE i H AR
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, S RERBIN - REBNFERNERE
the Group had the following material transactions ALTBEUNTEARS :

with related parties during the year:

(@) The Group had the following () AEERAEEREREA
transactions with the related parties THETUTRS :

during the year:

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE BT T BT T
Management fee income & 4 F JiE U — R B
received and receivable  ATZEEBEUA
from an associate 8, (i) 357 274
Interest expenses paid to B X ft—ZEEFR
a director and R 2
controlling shareholder  F| 2 5% 9a), 27 1,268 313
Rental income received B2 A] 2 YK JE UL
and receivable from e WA
related company 37(f), (h) 9,276 6,991
Note: HaE -
(i) The management fee was charged on actual cost (i) EIEE i N E B R R K
incurred by the Group for provision of management B 17 AR 755 BT 2E A 2 B BR Bk K
and technical services. By o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEATRX S (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) The outstanding balances with related (b) RB|EKEFEAL K
parties at the end of the reporting EEasmT

period are as follows:

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i S
—E-hEF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-8B t-—A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEss BT T BET T
Amounts due from JE L B 8 R B FRIR
associates 18 219,776 317,419
Amount due from a joint FEU—REIA &%
venture I8 19 8,970 8,970
Loan from a director and —HREEFR
controlling shareholder 1A% A% 3 & 5% 27 - 39,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEALRS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Key management personnel () FEEEAEHE
compensation
Compensation for key management personnel, TEEEASZ2HEEEBEER
including amounts paid to the Directors as MENEBEZENESHIER
disclosed in note 11, senior management of the WM 12 WBEZENEARREHR
Company and certain of the highest paid EERABRETESHEEZ
employees as disclosed in note 12 is as follows: FIE)WIT -
The Group
rEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LiFis BET T BT T
Salaries, allowance and  ¥& - AL K EHAM
other benefits &7 5,358 5,524
Retirement scheme RIRET B
contributions 108 111
Total emoluments are MR A
included in “staff costs” [ 8 T 9(b) 5,466 5,635
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d) On 1 December 2008, the Company entered

(e)

into a letter of agreement with Mr. Yeung
regarding a term loan facility of up to HK$200
million, the loan is unsecured and charged with
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong
dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The principal
amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 and the final
repayment date of the loan and all other sums
owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr.
Yeung's Loan Facility was further extended from
31 October 2020 to 31 October 2022 by a
supplemental letter of agreement dated 20
September 2019. The said loan from Mr. Yeung
constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year, a two-year management and
services contract entered into between Jade
Travel and a company owned by a director of
Jade Travel in an amount of equivalent to
approximately HK$840,000 per annum also
constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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37. BEA TR F (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

In June 2017, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement |I”) for a
term of two-year in respect of the leasing of
one of the investment properties of the Group
to a company which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung, the tenant therefore is a
connected person of the Company. The rental
chargeable under the Tenancy Agreement | was
determined after taking into account of the
valuation conducted by the Valuer in connection
with the market rental chargeable in May 2017
in respect of the said property. The entering
into of the Tenancy Agreement | constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the Company has complied with all
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 26 June
2017.

In February 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a company which
is direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yeung to acquire the entire issued share capital
of and the related shareholders’ loans to
Merchant Charm and Massive Success, which
hold indirectly two investment properties
situated at Admiralty Centre respectively with
tenancy agreements both entered into in June
2017 for a term of two-year (the “Tenancy
Agreements II”) at a total consideration of
approximately HK$147.5 million (note 33). The
acquisition was completed in May 2018.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

37. BEA TR F (&)

(f)

(9)

RZZF—LHFXA AEEF]
VRAHMFENEE RS ((HE
el AR BEAEER—
BHGEEL2EERBEE LA
AHEAREEF —BAREY
¥ AUZBEP/ARRZHE
BATLT - REE IR FHYA]
WEE £ T & E B ER L L
BMER—_F—LFRHANT
SR WERE ST AN E
E o REBELETHAETHAE
Rl THE % AR A — I8
FEMER H RARFEEST
FHRAETHAZZFBER
T E—HFBRLHARA]
BHA-—Z—tFRAZTRN
SR

RZE—NE-R KA&EFEHE
—HHRGTEEREEERES
MARIEIN— D EE W - K
B Merchant Charm & Massive
Success ) 2 B E 1T IR A & A
FARRER  ZmEAREE
BEMED RIS E S L
REWME ITHEHR=ZF
—tFRNARILABERENTE
EHmz(HERZEI]) - BRE
#9 /& 75 ¥ 147,500,000 7t ( it &%
33) c WIESBTHER ZZ—N\F
R RATEK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

(continued)

Upon completion of the acquisition of Merchant
Charm and Massive Success, the tenant in
respect of the two investment properties of the
Group is a company which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung, therefore, the
tenant is a connected person of the Company.
According to the opinion letters of the Valuer,
the rental payables by the tenant under the
Tenancy Agreements Il were at the market
rental prevailing at the date of the relevant
Tenancy Agreements Il and that the commercial
terms in the Tenancy Agreements Il were fair
and reasonable and on normal commercial
terms. The Tenancy Agreements Il constitute
continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the Company has complied with all
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 13
February 2018 and 29 March 2018 respectively
as well as the circular of the Company dated 6
April 2018.

In June 2019, the Group entered into three
tenancy agreements (the “Renewal of Tenancy
Agreements”) for a term of two-year to renew
the Tenancy Agreement | and the Tenancy
Agreements Il respectively. The tenant in respect
of the relevant investment properties of the
Group is a company which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung, therefore, the
tenant is a connected person of the Company.
The rentals chargeable under the Renewal of
Tenancy Agreements were determined after
taking into account of the valuation conducted
by the Valuer in connection with the market
rental chargeable in June 2019 in respect of the
said properties. The entering into of the
Renewal of Tenancy Agreements constitute
continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the Company has complied with all
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 25 June
2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher level of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines debt as total borrowings which are bearing
variable interest rate such as bank loans (note 25)
and loan from a director and controlling shareholder
(note 27). Capital represents total equity attributable
to owners of the Company in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the debt-to-
capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. As at 31 December 2019, the debt-to-capital
ratio is approximately 17% (2018: approximately
25%).

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged the
following assets:

(a)

the Group pledged the time deposits of
approximately HK$10.4 million (2018:
approximately HK$10.0 million) to certain banks
for the issuance of certain banking facilities of
approximately HK$9.6 million (2018:
approximately HK$9.3 million) for the
operations of the Group (note 22);

World Fortune Limited (“World Fortune”)
pledged all (2018: all) of its shares in Pier 16 —
Property Development to a bank in respect of
the Loan Facilities;

the Group’s all of investment properties and
one of its stock of properties totally with
carrying amount of approximately HK$547.3
million (2018: all of its investment properties
with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$443.6 million) were pledged to secure
against bank loans granted to the Group (note
25); and

the Group pledged one of its freehold land and
building held outside Hong Kong with the
carrying amount of approximately HK$10.5
million (2018: nil) to secure against a credit
facility of approximately HK$5.4 million (2018:
nil) granted by a bank for the operation of the
Group’s travel business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  40. A AT Z BB E R &5

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B E
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AT 2ZBHBARR T
Company
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR Z1RE 1,111,236 1,270,675
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and e BEARIER
other receivables H A FEUR AR SR 495 482
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITER 6,801 6.556
Cash and cash equivalents RekRELFHIEHR 70,153 24,557
77,449 31,595
Current liabilities RENEE
Other payables and accruals H Ath AR R
JEFtE R 3,004 2,626
Bank loan RITEK 60,000 100,000
Financial guarantee contract MIEREREH 644 644
63,648 103,270
Net current assets/(liabilities) FEEE (AE) FE 13,801 (71,675)
Total asset less current EERAERRBES
liabilities 1,125,037 1,199,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  40. A

Y

N A 2 BRI R R EE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE B ()
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AT ZHBEARRTE ()
Company (continued)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Financial guarantee contract ~ AT IER & &) 968 1,612
Loan from a director and —BEERERRR
controlling shareholder =4 - 39,000
968 40,612
Net assets EEFE 1,124,069 1,158,388
Capital and reserves BEARR #E
Share capital iz 49,265 49,265
Reserves (note 40(b)) &t (Fy7E 40(b)) 1,074,804 1,109,123
Total equity ERBE 1,124,069 1,158,388
Approved and authorised for issue by the board EECRN T _ZEF=A
of directors on 30 March 2020. =+ BHbE R T)E -
On behalf of the board RERESE
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
=308 BIEX
Director Director
ZF EZF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—BLLFE

40. AR T 2 M BARRR KRG
2 (&)

(b) RAFZHEEE

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
gyl Rt #mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T

At 1 January 2018 RZZT—)\F
—A—H
Loss and other RNEEEBER
comprehensive loss Hith 2 EEE

for the year

1,418,963 (249,435) 1,169,528

= (60,405) (60,405)

At 31 December 2018 and R—ZT—/\F
1 January 2019 +=-—A=+—H
EZT—NF
—H—H
Loss and other REEBER
comprehensive loss Hi 2 HEEE

for the year

1,418,963 (309,840) 1,109,123

- (34,319) (34,319)

At 31 December 2019 RZEBE—NF
+=A=+-"

1,418,963 (344,159) 1,074,804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of subsidiaries which principally affected the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as
defined under note 2(c) and have been
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

41. T EH B A =)

(a) THREHINHAKEXE B
EXREBRNIEZEZWNE
REFHB - BRRBIIAN - P
R PRI E Rk -

PREZF REI R 20
REZZEMB AR - L O

BRTAKREKEZ

Proportion of ownership interests

ARE TR

BRRERLH
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
Incorporation/  and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests  Company subsidiary  Principal activities
HRARL/ ERTRAR A5E HARXE M-EBHE
WEL = &8 BRI BERAFHE HERER KB DARE TEER
% % %
Macau Success (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares/ 100 100 - Investment holding
Limited B HK$1,076,000 REAER
RPIERE(BE)ERAR 10,000,000 813,/
11,076,000 T
Macau Success Management Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$ 100 100 = 100 Provision of administration
Services Limited 0 100 RAR 1,/ A 1007 services
R TIRARS
World Fortune Hong Kong 1,000 shares/ HK$1,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
5k EA 1,000 &R (3 / RERR
7E51,000 7T
665127 BC Canada 9,400 common shares 100 - 100 Investment holding
MEX without par value REER
9,400 R A E (B2
LER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e M ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

41. T EMBE LR (F)

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
(@) (continued) (a) (&)
Proportion of ownership interests
BEERRLY
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
Incorporation/  and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests  Company subsidiary  Principal activities
ERRL/ BEERTROR 5@ HALNE B-BHE
WEARERE BXibd HERAFE BRER BE DEARE IEEH
% % %
Jade Travel Canada 15,000 class “A" 100 - 100 Wholesale and retail
JIIEYN non-voting special shares business of selling
of CAD1,500,000 and airline tickets and
7 common shares tour packages
without par value HERE RIKT
A%#1,500,000 1172 ERHER
15,000 [A] £ TEEHR
ERFREEHIR
RIRIEREE L
BBk
Good Sun Development Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
BEBERARAR B 18RI,/ 81T NERE
Total Gain Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$ 1 100 - 100 Property investment
PRARAR BB 1R,/ B8 1T NERE
Powerful Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
ERIARAR BE 1R,/ 81T NERE
Famous Capital International BVIHong Kong 1,000 shares/USD1,000 100 - 100 Property investment
Limited EERZEE,/  1,00088H,/1,00055T NERE
Perfect Top BVI 1 share/USD1 100 - 100 Property investment
EBRAHE 18RI, 1% NERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HLEFE

41.

42,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Significant Restriction
Cash of RMB held in the PRC are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividends.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is
having negative effect on the tourism industry
around the world. The sales of air tickets and the
share of results of associates in Macau in 2020 will
be affected. The duration and extent of impacts due
to the COVID-19 are yet to be determined. Due to
such uncertainties, impacts on the Group’s operating
results, cash flows and financial position may be
significant, but currently cannot be reasonably
estimated.
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41.

42.
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RESULTS

Five-Year Financial Summary
LEMBHME

ES

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“2-NE T\ ZTt§f CZTRF CZT-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT
Continuing operations HERERE
Revenue Wots 1,147,371 1,120,278 589,935 564,848 941,078
Profit/(loss) before taxation ~ REHELLEK Y
from continuing operations  BF AR/ (B51E) 74,194 54,213 4,369 (16,299) 7,500
Taxation HE = - - - -
Profit/(loss) after taxation REBBECLERY
from continuing operations  Fi4 R/ (E518) 74,194 54,213 4,369 (16,299) 7,500
Discontinued operations ~ DHAILEEEHK
Loss after taxation from REBRIEEERK L
discontinued operations BRiieEE - - (37,825) (20,766) (19,143)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERN/ (FE) 74,194 54,213 (33,456) (37,065) (11,643)
Attributable to: AN T EIERELE
Owners of the Company /NS S 74,19 54,464 (29,810) (30,977) (6,670)
Non-controlling interests IR - (251) (3,646) (6,088) (4,973)
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ AEERF / (B8) 74,194 54,213 (33,456) (37,065) (11,643)
Earnings/(loss) per share KA TRREEER
attributable to owners R/ (B8):
of the Company:
From continuing and REBELER
discontinued operations BRIHEEEK
— Basic and diluted -EXREE 151 111 (0.61) (0.63) (0.14)
HK cents &1L HK cents/&{l  HK cents Bl HK cents/Bfll  HK cents /51l
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Five-Year Financial Summary (Continued)

hFMEBE (&)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=B=1+-8
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —“T-N\F T+ T F _—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BT BT
Total assets BERE 1,385,035 1382749 1,046,047 1,188,434 1,153,279
Total liabilities ={g (240,776)  (314,628) (48,191)  (182,077)  (107,607)
Net assets EEFE 1,144,259 1,068,121 997,856 1,006,357 1,045,672
Total equity attributable to 22 RIIREEfE(L
owners of the Company BameE 1,144259 1,068,121 1,010,630 1,033,534 1,066,188
Non-controlling interests il g - - (12,774) (27177) (20,516)
Total equity ERAE 1,144,259 1,068,121 997,856 1,006,357 1,045,672
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A.

Particulars of Properties

Y E A
Particulars of the properties held by the Group at the end RBEFR AEBFEENMEFSBL
of the reporting year are as follows: T
Investment properties A. REYE
Attributable
interest of
Location Use/Status Type Tenure the Group
rEE
ith 25 R R ER HAFH iR
1 Office Nos. 1003 and Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
1004A on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BB EERE 185 A BE I ERZ2 A
BEROIEI0E
1003 5% &% 1004A SR H A E
2 Office No. 1001A Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BB EERE 185 A HE I ERZ2 4
BEFHOIEI0E
1001ASRPH A ZE
3 Office No. 1004B Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BAREEREB 18 A HE HERZ2 4
BEROIEI0E
1004BSE WA ZE
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Particulars of Properties (Continued)

Y ReE1E ()
B. Stock of properties B. M¥FE
Attributable
Gross interest of
Location Use/Status  Type Floor Area the Group
F&E
1t B R/ MR ER HREEE PEfE R
1 Office Nos. 1905 and 1906 On Sale Commercial Approximately 100%
on the 19th Floor of building 1,532 square feet
Eastern Commercial Centre,
Nos. 395-399 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREHHBHME3BE39%  FE HE #1532 FHR
REEEDL19E
1905 5% & 1906 5 i R =
2 34th Floor and Store Room On Sale Commercial Approximately 100%
of Sunshine Plaza, building 5,134 square feet
No. 353 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BB E3535 FE HE £95,134F 7R

SHMAEMELREDE
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